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10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
10 0.33
221,329.93 122,920.35 113,124.01

9,836.89
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2022 31 16,524.95

2022
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20 15
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2022

473 1.01
432 0.93
54 0.12
1,749 3.75
212 0.45
196 0.42
1,889 4.05
764 1.64
504 1.08
253 0.54
158 0.34
74 0.16
62 0.13
17 0.04
94 0.20
59 0.13
32 0.07
23 0.05
1,159 2.48
827 1.77
756 1.62
7 0.01
49,693 106.48
257 0.55
378 0.81
59,366 127.21
12,699 27.21

46,667
100.00

6,469
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30
2022
1 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2031 15 4,565,713| 4,119,130 4,107,084 .80
2 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.375 2044 15 2,983,250 2,689,270 2,967,281 .36
3 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2024 10 15 2,963,375| 2,868,710 2,951,739 .33
4 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2028 15 2,647,273| 2,620,179 2,692,500 77
5 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.500 2024 15 2,344,801| 2,279,900 2,360,169 .06
6 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2023 15 2,214,159| 2,187,599 2,249,125 .82
7 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2024 15 2,211,301 2,152,601 2,230,464 .78
8 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2025 15 2,156,923| 2,059,161 2,106,259 .51
9 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2028 15 2,046,180| 1,947,112 2,037,228 .37
10 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250 2029 15 1,790,454| 1,684,831 1,704,495 .65
11 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.625 2026 15 1,588,614| 1,536,675 1,595,934 .42
12 |1taly Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro 1.400 2025 26 1,472,309| 1,285,620 1,450,251 211
13 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.875 2029 15 1,479,813| 1,361,903 1,431,467 .07
14 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 1,437,287| 1,392,534 1,428,629 .06
15 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.375 2025 15 1,377,949| 1,311,715 1,424,824 .05
16 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2032 15 1,455,992| 1,358,680 1,350,913 .89
17 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.250 2025 15 1,264,088| 1,213,840 1,249,078 .68
18 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 15 1,193,800| 1,175,441 1,199,525 .57
19 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.750 2028 15 1,105,598 1,047,111 1,149,783 .46
20 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2031 15 1,176,650| 1,060,262 1,055,244 .26
21 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 1.000 2046 15 1,002,303 878,487 902,037 .93
22 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2030 15 981,517 905,143 901,645 .93
23 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.000 2026 15 861,416 824,225 897,627 .92
24 |Fannie Mae, TBA 3.500 2052 837,048 857,000 838,022 .80
25 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 2027 15 747,711 752,205 772,833 .66
26 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 2.125 2041 15 692,457 551,401 688,093 .47
27 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 10 15 682,909 631,278 643,346 .38
28 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.125 2026 15 646,738 602,965 613,507 .31
29 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 2045 15 602,088 598,251 581,237 .25
30 |United Kingdom Inflation Linked Gilt 0.125 2024 22 586,666 400,338 553,411 .19
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2022

99,037,985 13,729,636 17.06 2,365

2013 31
89,446,622 12,399,985 17.06 2,365

2014 31
80,930,802 11,219,437 16.62 2,304

2015 31
62,793,186 8,705,019 16.62 2,304

2016 31
38,241,199 5,301,377 17.10 2,371

2017 31
38,320,854 5,312,420 17.13 2,375

2018 31
38,097,687 5,281,482 17.79 2,466

2019 31
39,629,858 5,493,887 19.08 2,645

2020 31
49,135,309 6,811,628 20.59 2,854

2021 31
46,667,122 6,469,463 20.15 2,793

2022 31
2021 49,876,143 6,914,330 20.99 2,910
10 49,265,276 6,829,645 21.14 2,931
11 49,873,453 6,913,957 21.29 2,951
12 50,202,997 6,959,641 21.43 2,971
2022 49,223,883 6,823,907 20.93 2,902
49,936,086 6,922,640 21.09 2,924
49,932,377 6,922,125 20.79 2,882
47,176,543 6,540,084 20.36 2,823
46,662,604 6,468,837 20.15 2,793
44,560,849 6,177,470 19.50 2,703
46,408,984 6,433,677 20.34 2,820
45,160,218 6,260,561 19.78 2,742
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2,884,060 1,221,594 5,804,455
(2,884,060) (1,221,594) (5,804,455)
258,740 819,629 5,243,566
(258,740) (819, 629) (5,243,566)
590,870 965,008 4,869,428
(590, 870) (965,008) (4,869,428)
364,900 1,456,548 3,777,780
(364,900) (1,456,548) (3,777,780)
212,200 1,753,400 2,236,580
(212,200) (1,753,400) (2,236,580)
86,150 85,370 2,237,360
(86,150) (85,370) (2,237,360)
17,260 113,350 2,141,270
(17,260) (113, 350) (2,141,270)
124,270 188,409 2,077,131
(124,270) (188,409) (2,077,131)
390,420 81,250 2,386,301
(390, 420) (81,250) (2,386,301)
256,963 326,833 2,316,431
(256,963) (326,833) (2,316,431)
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USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank
Secrecy Act
CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10
476 CSSF CSSF
2022 11 2023 10 31
100 10
10 3.30 3.00
10 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 0.825 0.75
100 0.55 0.50
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BMA
BMA

2001 100

31

5,000 1972 Exchange Control
Act 1972 BMA

75

100
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2020 2021 31
2021 2022 31

131

23 103

2022 31 UFJ
138.63
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2022

31

2022 31

59,487 8,247
0 0

126 17
328 45

0 0

424 59
41 6
1,217 169
TBA 1,032 143
2 0

73 10

0 0
62,730 8,696
10,397 1,441
2,338 324
68 9

437 61
269 37
TBA 1,882 261
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

636 88

0 0

17 2

9 1

1 0

9 1

0 0

0 0
16,063 2,227
46,667 6,469
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61,718 8,556

0 0

40 6

(22) ©)

0 0

46,667 6,469
2,316

20.15 2,793
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2022 31

3,778 524

0 0

3,778 524

221 31

123 17

113 16

10 1

17 2

0 0

484 67

3,294 457

340 47

0 0

570 79

949 132

53 7

1,912 265
(6,114) (848)

0 0
(120) 1n
(22) (€))

1 0
(6,255) (867)
(4,343) (602)
(1,049) (145)

0 0
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2022 31
(1,049) (145)
(34,952) (4,845)
35,060 4,860
(2,257) (313)
2,274 315
305 42
385 53
936 130
(185) (26)
TBA 1,207 167
(107) (15)
52 7
(369) (51)
TBA (1,474) (204)
5 1
0 0
€)) )
0 0
(340) 47
(570) (79)
(949) (132)
6,114 848
120 17
22 3
13 2
(3,422) (474)
818 113
5,549 769
(6,857) (951)
636 88
222,444 30,837
(222,001) (30,776)
220,631 30,586
(221,263) (30,674)

0 0
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2022 31

20.59 2,854
1.40 194
(1.84) (255)
(0.44) (61)
20.15 2,793
.14)
46,667 6,469
0.98
0.95
6.69
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ASU 2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR LIBOR 2023
30 LIBOR
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2022 31
350 2,268
350 1,028
14,130 45,088
239 447
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PIMCO
12
5,000
10
JITF

133/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
ooooodoooinoooooodd

2022 31 2022 31 2022 31 2022 31
4 419 3 279 210 7,920
4,311 78,919
@3 (3,976) @)  (2.650) 73)|  (21,334)
(10,660)|  (194,595)
Gl 3.557) o) (2,371 (363)]  (13,414)|  (6,349)| (115,676)
2022 31 2022 31 2022 31 2022 31
52 2,883 33 351 257 5,417
140 3,913
4 290
20 1,337
8 470
234 2,062
18 575
(113) (6,260) @as2)| (1,937) 327)|  (6,836)
(205) (5,868)
(4) (327)
Q@ (1,800)
@7 (2,048)
(2,396)|  (28,876)
(53) (1,661)
(61) (3,377) (2,298)|  (31,933) 149)  (1,586) @0 | @,419)
2022 31
159 11,935
140 14,645
30 2,840
11 1,055
211 18,635
1,066 115,089
361)]  (26,926)
(250)]  (26,145)
@163)]  (14,550)
(22) (2,219)
9|  (25,393)
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2022 31

T i i B¥iR
{ Ly [ A=)

LT w4k im
Tyske Realkredit A'S

1. D00 dise 10,/01/2050 DEK . 2187 3 256
1 DO dwse 14,/01,/3053 aa7 15
1. 500% due 10/01/2053 156 b
Herdea Kredit Realkroditaktieselaksh
0. 500 dwe 19,901,/2043 4Fm 56
L. DO dse 10,01,/ 2050 176 |
1. B00% dise 10,/01/2053 it i7
o DOUFS dhae 100002063 100 (+]
Nykredit Renlkredit A/S
L 000% dwe 10,01/2050 3408 T
1. 000% duwe 10/01/2053 1. 885 211
L. 500 dse 190,701 /3053 =aTe bl
3. 000% dise 1001/ 2047 6 i
it GO0 dwe 10,01,/3063 500 T
Roalkrodit Danmark A/S
100 dise 10,701,/ 3050 |} 241
1. 000% dwe 10/01/2053 455 T
L. 5O dwse 16,701 /2053 158 o4
D 000% dise 10,01,/2053 100 (4
2. o00r% dwe (4000 204T A I
1, 749

13
Isperial Brands Finance FLC

3. 125% dwe 07/26,/2024 20 1945
ATET, Inc.

2550 dise 125013033 251 212
bia i 2157
(BeimeE 52, 682)

FIEFRN 2

Fanmie Mae

1. 356% dwe 07253087 H] 5
L 3565 dse 0725,/ M0G7 7 T
1. 419% due 10,01,/ 3044 2 2
L 446% dwe 0525, 2006 3 3
3 D00 dwse 05,01/ 2043 53 L]
3000 dise 08,01/ 2043 186 181
Foanmie Mas, THA

B B0 due 070002062 (k) BET B8
Froddie Mas

1 ATSY dse 12/15/ 3037 10 10
Ginmie Mae

03835 dise 0820/ 3068 54 52
B vl Bl gy 1, 169
(EUFImEE 51, 1600
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2022 31

MR Evih

LR 0] (S 0]
EEMBRER 106, 6%
A 27 LR (c)
0 L25% diee 07/ 15/2022 KK 500 5 505
0. 125% due 017152023 441 452
0, F25% due 10/15/23024 (f) g 2362
O L25% dhse 04 15/2025 .05 2, 106
0. 1255 due 10,15/ 2005 143 A5
0. [25% dhae 04,15/2026 [ilux] 6l
0. 125% die 07/15/2005 1,175 1, 200
0 125% doe 10/15/2026 (f) ] 643
0. 125% dwe 04,15/ 3027 407 413
0 125% dise 01/15/2030 95 =4
00 1Z5% dee 07153030 ] 358
0, 125% dwe 01/15/3051 1, 060 1,055
0. 125% dise 07/15/2031 (1) 1119 4,107
0. 1255 dwe 01/15/2082° () 3 1388 1. 351
0 1I5% dise 0215,/3051 552 465
0. 125% doe 02/15/ M52 372 317
0. 250% dwe 01/15/2025 214 1,249
0250 dise 07715/ 202G I. B85 1, T4
0. 2508 dwe 02/15,/2060 145 12
0. 375% dwe 071572023 9 iLrd
0. 3758 dhae 07/ 10/ 2020 ] 270
0. 375% hse 0115/ 027 1,333 1AM
0. 375% due 07/15,/2027 e 73
0. 500% dwe 04,15,/2024 {f) 2. 480 2, 360
0, 5% dee 01/15./3028 (f) o820 2.8
0. G25% dwe 04/16/2023 (f) - 2,245
0. 625% due 01152024 213 2,230
0. 625% dwe 01/15/2006 1L 537 1, B0t
00 625% dise 02715./2043 1540 144
0. 7508 dwe 07/15/2028 I M7 = 037
0. TB0% due 02/15/2042 171 65
0. TBOR dae 02/ 15/ 2045 ] 1]
0. 875% dise 01/15/2020 1, 362 1,431
0. 8TS% doe 02/15,/2047 6 540
1. DO dwse 02,15,/ 3046 578 S0z
Lo 000% dise 02,15,/ 2049 B B4
1. 379% due 02/15/2044 (1) T 0Ea 2, BeT
1. 7508 dwe 01,15/ 3028 L M7 1, 150
2. 000% due 01/15/2026 #24 BE
2125 dee 02/ 15/2040 224 282
2. 125% due 02/13/2041 a5l GEE
o 3TE% dwe 0115,/ 3026 L 32 L. 435
+ i dwee 01/158./2000 33 7
3. 370% dwe 041002032 191 2k
3. 6254 dwe 041530028 256 30
3 BTE% doe D4,15/2028 -1 105
.5 Troasary Bonds
1. 625% due 11/15/m50 () 800 357
F MR 49, 693
(EPITEE 151, 116)
b i3 e e TEENE B AN
AREIT Trust
S 1508 dwe 0415,/2037 [ T
Bane of America Pundirs Trust
3. 16 due 01/20,/2047 44 5
Bayview Dpportunity Master Pund IVa Trust
3. 475% dise 0B,/28/ M3 12 12
CIM Trust
2 006% due 02,/25/2049 L} L]
Countrywide Home Loan Bortgege Pass-Through Trust
1. BEE% dwe 04,25,/ 3035 BT T8
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2022 31

Wik Byl

R &5 T0d]
5 First Boston Mortgege Securities Corp
L 626% dise 01,25,/ 3032 5 =1 5 i
GEAMF Trust
1. 741% dwe 09°25/2035 (d) 18 18
G5R Mortgage Loam Trust
31T dwe 09,725,/ 2035 11 11
Howksmoor Wortgages
1. TOG% dwe 05,25,/ 3053 G 162 205
Howe Equity Asset Trust
1. 1S% due 0225,/ 2066 § BS 5]
HSI Asset Securitization Corporation Trast
L. 166% dae 05,/25,2037 o b
Indyinc THOX Mortgege Loan Trust
1. 486% dwe 0725/ 20056 112 107
1. B46% dse 05,/25,/2004 116 109
JPorgan Mortgage Trust
L B1% due 08,2535 1 1
Lohman 15 Trust
T 156% die 12525/0037 (d) 31 az
Long Beach Mortgage Losn Trust
1. T41% dwe 08,26,/ 2005 2 2
Mollon Residential Funding Corporation Mortgnge Pass-Through Trust
L. T0% dhae 0815,/ 2082 B B
Fow Residentinl Mortgege Loam Trust
2. 750% dise 07/25,/20549 116 113
Option One Morigege Loan Trust
1 861% dse 11,25,/ 3034 [ax] 1]
Hosidential Morigage Securities 32 PLC
1. 07% dwe O6/20/2070 rily T ]
Saxen Asset Securities Trust
L. 316% doe 09,25,/ 3037 § 14 L
Stratton Mortgage Funding FLC
1. B53% due 05./25,/2051 e (7] B
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Granited FLC
1. 9515 dwe 10,20,/2051 123 154
Twin Bridges FLC
1 BT0% dise 06,12,/ 3053 170 214
Wolla Mortgege Pess-Through Certificates Trust
2.9759% dwe 03/25/2037 (d) H 15 15
i e o T ERER 1, B
(Ko DTEs 31, 58E)
T koA SRR D 1N
Boaphorus CLO IV DAC
0820 dwe 12715/ 20030 EAR 250 265
Calrn CLD 11T DAC
0. 050% doe 10,20,/ 2028 137 146
Grosvenor Place CLO BY
0TI dse 10,30/ 3020 =] 54
Harvest CLO XIV DAC
0. G0 dwe 11182029 19 Z1
Midecean Credic GLO Y
164N dse 070192028 5 155 195
OZLM XXIV Led
22 dwe 07720/ 2032 100 b
STWD Lid
1, 990% dhae 07/15/2068 B2 B2
TIL Crodit Wind River CLD Ltd.
2 124% dise 041552031 100 us
Thw b=l 5 ERSN 059
(R 51, 027)
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2022 31
MR By
S ] £l
r &, %

hustralin Govermment Bond
b 000% dwe 09°20,/2025 (e} AL & § 62
Canada Goverrmest Bond
4. 350% dup 13701/3026 {c) CAD I7a 158
Fraece Governsent Bond (c)
0. 105 dee 03,01/2026 EUR 217 253
0. 100% dise 07,25, 2061 e 128
0. 100% dise 07/25/2038 (k) o7 123
Italy Bucol Poliennali del Tesoro (z)
0. 100% dise 05,15,/ 2083 212 206
0. 40% dse 05,/ 15,/2080 220 33
1. ADDE doo 05,26, 2025 - 2B6 1.450
Japan Governsent CPI-Linked Bond {c}
0. 005% dwe 0310/ 2061 ¥ 20,402 164
0. 0P dhae 03/ 10,3028 100241 51
Moxico Government Internaticsal Bomd
4. 500% due 11/22/2036 (c) M a0 17
Poru Goverrment Interraticnal Bond
5. 040 dwe 021320209 FEN ([ 28
B L5 dwe 08132032 200 44
United Kirgdom Inflation-Linked Gilt (c)
0. 125% dwe 03,/22/2024 Lrity 400 553

1. 876N dwe 11/20/2022 157 211

B4 Paribas Bank

(0. T90%) due D60/ 2022 EUR 20 e |
(0, 410%) dus 06,01,/2022 ¥ 45 i
0. 406% dise 08,01 /2002 NED 8 5
HSBC Bank PLC
(0. T80%) due D60 2022 EUR 1] ]
0 420% dwe D601 /2022 e 1 |
Sumitoso Mitsul Bankirg Corp
(0, 780%) duo 06/01/2002 EUR 35 a7
Sumitomo Mitsul Trust Benk Ltd
(0, T80%) due 0601,/2022 B
(0. 410%) due 0B/0L/2022 ¥ - A
0 420 dhae D600/ 2002 h* ] 50
185

Ao R 008
51080 due 00/30/202 {o) ARS 5,400 =t
SEA 208
(oS $210)
BEERES A () 127 5% § 59,487
(B 361, 718)
EWF U7 4 FER

Ggh () (oo 1%) (51}
(BREEE 17 -2 7.4, W $22))
oo RS LU, B (2T, a0 (12, 768)
R 100 0% § 4B 66T
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2022 31

* Yol TR EEEA SR TR L TS D LS,
(a) 20224F5 ﬂm:ﬁmmm:mmﬁmm ERCEG MO B, BRI B LS50
fLOEz kY hi.

TR EER,
(e) BEBROMEERIIC Y LECRLTMESATINS,
(d) R ETIC R I,
() F—atiid, MMETOHEY &R,

mi#&A wama e et e
HEN #iAeHY  (BSBSE) (BSBAE B AR E S
BN 0. 830%  06/05/2022 060772022 0§ (06580 3§ (7, 500
DEL 0ENR 061772022 06.701/2022 (118 118
BEL DBMN ORSZE/DOCE 10602022 {1,359 {1,359
L 0.820%  06/30/7022 06 /06,2022 {1, 359 {1, 359)
LRGN [ (14, 397)
PR R LR

wEE WRe R4 HE LIRS
mEY WARKIY (1B UI/B/E)  MAED  ShmSREeD
5= 0, B1% 05/ 2/ 2022 06/ 06, 2022 (2.5 5 (2,338
AR LA 1 (2,338
A L LT b2 A SEOBE
MDA 8
st o b
BLL
T WEFT  EHLNE S0E# £t

# L
R 4 §1149) 5 (10, 2i8) 3 ! H i 35 {10y, 35}
ELRRRE ] (119) _§  (10.278) o 03 (10391
#eE W L
1 & [ fn a8 % 0 % 0§ {2, 538)
W L&t 3 0§ (20388 0§ 0
ARAN 3 (119)  § {12, 616D [ 1 {12, 735)
B L-ERRE LR R LR dade 5 e 3 (12,738

EUFrE, 2022965 A3 ARMED, HEFICLSMANSSUCE O rd S e oy s LU (M) ShitERoRE TR,
() 022FE A3 ARE, TEOwAS—BHORMNICE-TE, WESEI12, sl FA-DEABENEE L 2T E,
LoatEac g RE L i Lr

fded  ELEEE Rilcds  EROE ToloRe HE (RE) 0 o =saf—
Zm tdndkig ki buhSiid WEGGIEH  BA e dE

= i R B T )

BN H ¢ 3§ (e 3§ I ] 0§ LB 3 AR § (84

i
DEU '] (2 B3} L] V] (2, B37) 2 EBZb {12
v A BN 4 7= IR
3N o i 12, 538 1 (2, 338y 2,351 15
BANBICEORORGMENASN 3 01 (10,307 3 (2338 3 5

P EEERE 5 O 30 E T IR, S PR AR 061 % D, MECREERERRL T T R, THEAREL, S m sy, s
P L s g L Ol - R e e - b G,

S CSEE LRI SRR, OF FAnBRFRICE2MENTELS

oy A —ilt, WETRITEORFE S AOoRRES (ROl G RT. ARE LU OO ERERS A0
# 2oaf— e —11, F— S E TSR0 A X —REI SRR S i SR OSTHR SRS, w2 F - HENe T L a
MU, MRS S EROEE w2 —NRdE sENoZk,
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2022 31

#H L L ST C
d-¥oaith EURIBOR Interest REate March Futures Long 03,2023 18 5 ] 3 [¥1)
Baro-Babl 5-Year Note September Futures Short OS2 00 " ¥ T ]
Fure-BTF 3-Year Note September Futures Shaort 0o/ T 3 4 o
Baro-BTP 10-Year Bend June Futures Zhert 062022 5 i 1% 0
Euro-Band 10-Year Bond September Futures Short on,/20m2 T T T 0
Earo-Buaxl 30-Tear Bond June Futures Shart O/ 2022 1 88 20 o
Earo-04T 10-Yeur Bond Septesber Futures Short [, e e 3 3 i L
Barodchatz I-Year Note Septesber Futures Shart On2022 n & & LU
Japan Government 10-Year Bond June Futures Short Gt/ 2002 2 (43 & ]
I.5 Treamsury 2-Year Note Sepiember Futures Shart 20 16 %] 4 ]
1.5 Tressury 5-Year Note Seprember Futures Lonig 2022 28 11 [ (14}
L5, Treasury |0-Year Note September Futures Short [H R | e 2T {1m an L1}
I.5 Treasury 20-Year Bond Septesber Futures Shart 02022 3 0 & ]
U5 Treasury Ultra 10-Vear Note September

Fatures Shart /2022 H (n 15 o
IS Treasury Ultra 30-Year Bond Septesber

Fatures Short 0o/ 2022 H] El 5] L
SN E [ TE [] 110 ] (21}

L L | wRE EEAEGE
ERaA i BEeF (A~ 8.9 fookide R i Pt b5 A Ak
s J-Month EURINOR (0. 526%) 1121 2023 EUR  1.400 5 26) 5 (26} 3 o 5 (2}
i J-Menth USD-L1B0K 1. 0GEY £0/06,/2022 5 3,900 {BY {8) 1 1]
s F-Month USD-LIROR 1. 540 L1/ 052008 L] " £ I o
L J-Meath USD-LIBOR L5 11715/2053 100 {17} {17) o 242
L 5-Year French CPI Ex

Tobacen Duily Referemce

Index R 03152024 ELUR 160 1} @ o L1}
2 Y B-Month EURIBOR [, 7O 112087 100 14} {4} o {1}
-1 1 E-Month EURTIOR 0. B50% 01272087 100 {1 “ o {1}
ih E-Menth EURTBOR 0, G50 SlLsaneT 100 {4} ) o {1}
EH E-Month EUETHHE L. DO 05132027 200 {5} {5} o {2}
i G-Month EURIBOR L 000 05/ 18/2087 104 {3 13 0 LY
=i Baink of Japan

Incol lavernlised

Dvernight Call Rate 0, 4500 03./20,2020 ¥ 110,070 {9 30 o (25}
= Bank of Japan

Ungol Lateral i sed

Dvernight Call Rote 0. Dair E2/15,/203] 4, 000 B o I o
i Eurcestat Eurcsens HICP

Ex Tobacco Unrevised

Series W54 0, (00 071572022 EUR HLbi] ] i o o
i Eurostat Furosone HICK

Ex Tobweco Unrevised

Serivs NS4 0, Do FISS202T JLES] | 1 | [}
i Eurcstai Eigoeone HICHK

Ex Tobaceo Untervised

Serivs N84 0. D0 03/15,/20G] 400 24 (79] o 14}
i Eurcstat Eurozeme HICP

Ex Tobacco Unrevised

Series NSA 3, DO 0515 2042 200 x 1 3 [
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2022 31

T f bl AN EE A RHER
EREH  EmEeRNN BiE&E (H.~ 8.9 L Y A ) ik AR
=4 Eurostat Eureeone HICH

Ex Tobacoo Unrevised

Serivs NS4 0, oI 05152037 EUR B0 5 (1) 3 1) 5 0 5 i1l
m Eurestat Ewrozone HICT

Ex Tobaces Unrevised

Series NS4 0. DO o415,/ 2052 al et s ] 11t
L3 ] Eurcstatl Eurvzome HICH

Ex Tobacco Unrevised

Series NSA 0, DO 0516 2052 10 1] L] o o
K UE Eetall Price Index 0, (0i 04152082 P 1040 ® ] o
E-% 1 IE Retail Price Index 0, DO 03/05,/2024 200 & 5 o o
4 UK Retall Price Index 0, (00 05152024 30 2 > o o
i IE Eetail Frice Index 0, DOirs 01/15/2025 300 (117} {1404 ] {1}
4L IE Betall Price Index 03, DO i2/15,/2006 1 ] 1 ] o
i LF Betail Price Index 0. D00 0E/15/2030 am (56} (51} o {1
foq ] IE Reiail Price Index 01, DO 4152031 70 (14} (14} o ]
EL IF Retall Price Index 0, [0 01/15/2032 200 13 12 ] o
dt ] IE Reiail Price Index 0, DOi 03 15,/20038 200 (44} (43 3 o
TH U5 CPE Urban Consimers

NEA 0., DOir 09 /15/2022 3 100 B 5 ] L]
it U3 CPE Urban Consumers

WaA 0, DO 02062023 370 G a3 o {1}
o IS CP1 Urban Consumers

HEA 0, (00 0305, 2083 100 () {2} ] o
= US CPT Urban Consumers

hNEA 0, DO% 03,07 /2003 100 {2} il ] 1] L]
Zin US CPI Urban Consusers

HSA 0, 0 03,708,203 3040 {5} {5 I o
i L5 CFf Urban Consumers

HSA 00, N 03212023 L] 17} 7] I o
L LS "1 Urban Consumers

HEA 0, DOis 04132023 5IT 52 s ] {1}
4] U5 O] Urben Consumers

W3 0, GO 02053 ToO 14} 4 I [}
i Us Ol Urban Consimers

hSA 0, DOirs 0305/ 2006 400 4 43 ] {1}
i IS CP1 Urban Comsumers

NEA 0, s 06/ 13,/ 2026 200 18 15 o o
il 15 CF1 brban Consumets

NEA 0, 0OD% 05 14,2006 10 ] W o L]
- US CPI Urban Consumers

KSA 0, 00 06./01,/2026 180 L] W o o
=i U5 CPI Urban Consusers

hEA 0. DO 08,125,207 300 ek 3 33 o {1}
=L US CF1 Urban Consumers

KEA 0 OI 08,023 fa0eT 200 31 31 o o
i U5 (10 Urban Consumers

WA 0, DO (2/05,/ 2028 140 (200 (21} | L]
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund discussed in this repart (each a "Fund” and callectedy, the " Furds™), whach also indudes eadh dass of units of thal Fund (each & "Olass™ and collectively,
the "Classes™), is a senies rust of PIMCO Bermuda Trast (e "Trust™), an open-ended wnit tust established under the Lawrs of Bermuda a5 a multi-series trust pursant
Lo fruest e oo tisd Bry Windhestter Global Trust Company Limited on Augest 8, 2001 (a5 smended from time o time, the "Trust Déad™) Effecthe a of the dose
of business (Exstem time) on September 249, 2017, Mapdes Trustee Senaces (Bermuda) Limied (the “Trustee™) was appoinfed as trustee of the Trust Padfic nvestment
Management Company LLC (CPIMCO", the "Manager™ or the " Imvestment Adwsar™) is the sponsor of and was responsible fior structuring the Trust

Ercesn Brothers Harrenan & Co. {"BBH ™) has entered intd an agreerment with State Streel Corporation (T50ate Sreet”™) under which State Streelwill bogquare BBH'Y
Ivettoe Sences butiness; wihech indudes its austody, fund dcooumting and adminisration, transher agency, depositary, foreign enchange, tustes and securities lending
services. The completon of the ransaction is subgect to qustomany dosing condfiors and regul atory appeovals

Thee Trust is subject 1o regulation and supenation as provided for in the investment Funds Act 2006 and refated ruled refating to dandand funds

The terms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to estabiish further funds in addtion 1o the Funds
agrently in operation 45 of ihe date of this report

References to unithobders (each, & "Unitholder ", and collectively, the "Unithobders ) in, or units of (or an investmenting, the Fund shall mean Unithoiders of the Fund
wihid hold urits, or dasses of wnits (as applicable), which are atirbutabée to that Fund

e Funds presented in this report are listed below

Fund Offed
PEMED Bermuda Foreign Do Duranon Fund DHiered oy 1o fund with a Fong of Funds” sieaciure, & defosd n the e of e B omerg Trss
FRMCD Bermisda 1. 5. Low Duramion Fund Aeporanion, Japn, o 10 hond wath wam dar s mucture i any siber predeson

PIMED Emergeng Martss Bond Fund LITF)
PIMCD Emergng Mart et Bond Fund (Ven-Hadge d
FEMICD Emergng Mart et Bond Fund §

PIMIED Euen Total Fietum Fund DHered 10 aad irveanoa n Jepan by wary of pabde offerng twosgh & deviburor in Japan, snd mry

PIMICT Peal Fanam Furd boe el o othe imaion a1 the decmnion ol the Wasnge

FIMCD Sy Term St py™ I:ITllrtd 10 redad invesnoss in Jepan by wry of pabc oféring twough a debutor andior 2 sakes
handing company i Japan, and m iy b ofered o coher inveon a1 che decnvon of de Bassger

FIMED Emurgrng Mot s Bond Furd M) Ollared anky 1o oher Fundk 102enve & an underlong s et vebicls b such ok

= R ST ! Y oo iy PRRLT et arm gy e et i £ i et Tl Py " derow o deliowt i e vl e vyt gty drmscunmy e o i ey wash g sl ch ey ey b pasicira

Pl £ 00 Qo ! R S T vy o Bl ey o b iy o sy 8 vty vy bl ok Pty

Liits of e FIMCO Euro Tokal Renum Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund, and AUD, JFY, and USE Chasses of FINKCO Short-Term Striteqy have Deen regritersd under e
Finandal Instruments and Exchange Law of kspan. Units of each of the remaining Funds and the € (USTY, § {1FY), and ) (LEE) Classes of PIMCO Short-Term Strategy
have not been and dre noT QuEmently expected 1o be regestened under the Rnandal Instuments and Exchange Law of lapan Mtﬁ}flil'lt,‘h'. siyih Units of hese Funds MWy
ok be, directly of inditectly, offered in Ligan of 1o Sy fessdent @ Japan, excepl in complisnce with applicalle Japanets avs 50d fegulstions

1. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUHTING POLICIES

The folbowing is a summany of significant accounting polacies consis tently foll cwved by the Trwst in the preparation of its inandal statements in confiarmity with
acttunting prinaphss generally accepted in She United States of America (U5 GAART). Each Fund is treatéd &% an nvestment company under the reporting
reqguirements of LS, GAAP The preparation of fnandd statements in acoordance with UL 5. GAAP requires management bo make esimates and assumptions that
affect the repoeted amounts of assets and lisbilites and dedosyre of contingent assets and Babilites at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts
of increases and deqeases in nel assels from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates

i} Aequirad Funds The Trustee and the Manager may apply all of a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (TR, PIMCO Emenging Markels
Bond Fund (¥ en-Hedged), and PIMCO Emeraging Marers Bond Fund 1 {each sefemred 10 hetsn &5 3 “Fund of Funds™ of Bhe " Acquinng Fund®, which envests in ather
Furds) to the respictive credit of the PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund (W) {refermed 1o heren as an ~Aoquired Fand(3)") Any assels 50 applied will be held in such
Acduited Furdish 35 if receed direcsly. Whisre assels are 50 appised, the Aoquered Fundis)wall reond the issue of units to the relevant Aogubring Fund a1 the gssue plice
peer unit of such wning and will repurdhase such units at the repunchase prce per it of wuch umits at the Gme of repurchase

Ranos showm in ihe Rndnoa Highliohts do notindude expenses of the Adoquired Fund(D). See Nate 9, Fees and Expenses, for further information regandng fund fees,
a4 apphcable

(b} Secuxities Transactions and bmvestment Income Securities ransactons ane recorded as of the rade date for finandal reporting purases, Seouriees pundhased of
sodd on avwihen-ssved of delayechdelivery basis may be settied bevond a standard settement period for the security after the rade date Realized gaing and |osses
fron seenties wid are recorded on e dentfied contbasis. Dividend mooime i reconded of the ex-diidend date, except certain dvidemds from foreion Seasmities
where the ex-dinadend date may have pasted, which are reconded 5 soon a5 a Fund is informed of the ex-dividend date Interest income, adusted hor the aatretion of
discounts and amortzation of premiums, i< recordad on the acmaal besis from settement date, with the EXCEpROn of secunities with & forward S1arnng effective date.
b nbenest Bcome 14 mecodded on the adoudl bass from effecve date For convertible searities, prempums attnbutable 1o the converaon featune dre not
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amortized . Estimated tax liatilties cn certan foreign senmities ane recorded
on an aomuad bass and are redected a5 components of interest income or net
chande in ureealied appreaation (depreiation) on ifmvestments on the
Statements of Dperations, as appropriate. Tax labeities reafized a5 3 result of
sipch wecunity sakes ane reflecied 6 o corponent of nel reshized gain Joss) on
imeestments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and lidses on
rrorigage-related and other asset-hacked sequnties, if amy, ane riorded 45
components of interest income on the Statements of Operations. Debl
obdigations may be placed on non-zowal status and relabed interest income
ray be reduced by ceasing cument acoruals and waiting off inferest receivable
wihen the collecion of all or a portion of interest has become doubtiul based
on consstently appled procedures. 4 debt obligation is removed from non-
accrual status when the iSouer fesumes intefest payments of when
collectabeity of interest is projabde

kel Cash and Foreign Currengy  The financal statements of each Fund are
presented using the asmendy of the primary stanomic evwironmentin which it
operates (e “functiond cumency™). The functional qamency for each of the
Funds is listed in the below tatbie

The market valses of foreign securities, cumency holdngs and other assets
and liabilities are ranslated into eadh Fund's functional oarency based on the
aument exchange rates each business day, Purchases and sales of securities
and income and expense items denominated in foreign qurrendies, if any, are
wrandated into each Fumd’s respective funcBonal urrency at the exchange
rabe 0 efiect on the transachon date The Rends do noL Separ alely repont the
effects of changas in foreign exchange rates from changes in market prces on
securites hekd Such changes ane induded innet realized and net dhanges in
unredized gan of loss from imvesiments on the Staternents of Operations
Thie Fumsds iy ifvest i foreign currendy denominated secunities and may
engage in foreign currendy ransactions either on a spot {cash) basis at the
rate prevailing in the currency exchange market at the Sme or Hrough a
tarwand foreign curmency coniract. Reahized foreign eathange gains o losses
ansing from sales of spot foreign qumendes, airmency gains or losses realized
between the rade and settlement dates on secunties ransactons and the
difference between the recorded amaunts of dividends, interest, and foreign
withholdng taxes and the functional agrenty equiealent of the amounts
actually received or pad e induded in net realized gain or loss on forem
Qe Ry FARSACHoNS on the Statements of Operations. Met unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses asising from changes in foreign exchange rates on
Toreign dendmenated sssets and hanlnes ather Ban iveesiments in w0mties
hield af the end of the repodting penod are induded in net change in
unredized Jppredaticn of depreddBon on fofsgn QaTency Jisets and
[abilities on dhe Statements of Operations

The Met Asset Value {"HAVY ") and total retums of certain Furds or Classes
theseaf, & applicable) are presented in the curmency forwhich the NAY is
reported (the “HAN currency™) a5 detailed in each Fund™s Offering
Memarandum (the “Offering Memorandum™), For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAV and the 1063l refuem in the N&Y qurrency, the
Begrining and ending NAVS are comwerted wsing the pencd beginning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dsmibutions are convérted using the

Fork
Fond Tl HAV Corrermy Dirvaak
FIMCD Emaigang Marues Bond Fund | Yen-H adged) Jaganiega yen U5 dollar
FIMCD Emazgang Markces Bond Fund il Jupanesa yen U5, dollar
= JiBRL
L] J{IDR]
= J{NFD
= JiMAK
= JITAN
® J{TAR)
FIMED Eura Total Renun Fund Eien o
FIMCA Real Rietum fund 5 dolar LS. dollar
FIMCD Sher - Teem Sowingy
= AD Asmahan doflar U5, dolar
= LC0ED U5 doller US dollar
= JUFn Jpparasa yen US dollar
= JnEm Jepaness yen U5 dollar
=Py Jipanesa yen U5 doler
* s (L5 dol 15, dollar

[ Multictess Operations  Each Class of 2 Fund affered by the Trusthas
fights. to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the ame
Fund, a5 applicable, excepl for spedific aisets and gains and losses designated
b a Class relating to cumency hedging operaBions. Inoome, non-Class spedfic
expentes, snd non-Class spedlic reaked and unrealized cagets) gans and
leesies are Alocabed toeach Class of units based on the relative net et of
edch Clags of the respeciive Fund, s applicable. Class spedfic expenses
cumently indude management, advisory, adminisirative, agendy, and
distribution fees, where applicable

[e] Dizeributen Palicy The following table shows the antiopated frequency
of distribuBions for each Fund. Distibutions from each Fund may be dedaned
and distniwited to Unitholders only upon the authonzation of the Manager,
wihich authonzation may be withheld at the Manager™s duretion

Declared Dy and Paid Meathhy
FERCH Ewen Totd Aedurn Fusd

Dieclared and Paid Monthbye

FRLICE) Emeegng Black ez Bond Fund LITR
PRI Erroes garng Miask s Blond Fund [Yen-Hedged
PEVC) Ernar gang Mk ts Bond Fund |1
FRRICD) ShoreTorm Soamgy

= JUFY

= i
Declared and Paid Bosrierky:
FRLCE) Bermids Farsgn Lo Durason Fond
FRLICE) Barmuda U Lo Duswion Fued

Dieclared and Paid Annualby

FIMCDO Fead Rerrures Furdd
exchange rate at the time of the diiribution See the following table for the PRUCT) ShareT |u-:;
HAY cumency of eadh respective Fund: L a;n“ ki
1 LR P 1]
Furel e NAV Duarrerey = I
Curtenoy . @
FINCY B mrerardes Formign Lows D smson Fnd J,&.mgm U5 dellw The Manager does mot mpect to declare distribotions with respect 1o this Fusd
F!hl:ﬂﬂum;nij 5. Linsy Dirstssn Fusd Japibies o S dellar fer Classes theraad, il applicablel; but may, in its discretien, declare and pay
| PILACE) Efnecgng Mlarkem Bord Fued LIITEL Aspanis ven S bl dis Bridutions to the Linithelders at any time.
PRMACT) Emergeng llarkerm Bond Fusd (M1 U S dellar S delly FEUICT) Erna ging bt Bond Fund (M)
= D
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Disaribuetions, if any, will generally be made friom the ralevant Fund's (or
Class's, If applicable) netimvestment income. in addition, e Manager may
authorize the payment of net realized capital gains available for distibuton
Additional distributions may be dedared as the Manager deems appropriate
Distribertions paid with respect to amy Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
will peckpce the NAV of such Fand for Class thersof, if appBcable) At the
disetion of the Unitholders, cash dismbutions from a Fund {or Class thereof,
if applbcable) may eithver be refnvested in additional units of 3 Fund (o Class
thereod, If applicable) or paid 1o a Unithalder in cash. Cash payments will be
paidin the MY asrency of the Fund. Eadh Fund {or Class thered, if
applicable) may dedare further distrbutions i coamldered recessany in order
Lo ainitain 4 redsonable level of distributions for @ Rund (or Class thereal, it
aq:»lu:.ablej I e event that there 15 inddequale net mcome and nel reaized
Capital gains b0 pay 4 destribution of & Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
required bey the Offering Memorandum, the Banager may pay a distribution
condsing of 4 portion of the capatal of sudh Fund (of Class thensod, o
applicable). Distributons not collected within six years from their due date
will lapse andwill sccnee 1o the benehi of the relevant Fend (or Class thereod,
it applicable)

1) Mews Ascsunting Pronsurcemems and Regulatory Updates In Yarch
2020, the Rnanoal Accognong Standands Board { FASE ) 1ssued an
Accounting Standards Update ("ASLT), ASL 207004, which prosaces
optional guidance 1o ease the potent 3 accounting burden assodated with
ransnoning vy Fom e London Enterbank Offered Rase (" UBOR™) and
other referenice rates that Fe expected o be decontinued ASL 2020-04 is
eflective for certain reference rate-related aontract modfications that ooqur
diaring the period Maxdh 12, 2020 throwgh December 31, 2022 In Mach
2021, the administrator for LIBOR announced the extension of e pubiication
of a majority of the US0 LIBOR settings to June 30, 2023 Management is
continuoudy svaluating the patential éffect a discontinuatson of LIBOR could
have on the Funds” imeestments and has determined that it is unlikely te
ASU's adoption will have 3 matenial impact on the Funds’ finandal
statements

3. INVESTMENT YALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

{a) Invesstmint Valua tion Pelicies The price of 3 Furd's wmrs is based on
thie Fund's NAY. The NAY of a Fund, of each of its Classes, a5 applicabde, 15
determined by dividing the total value of portiolio investments and other
Asyiers attributable to that Fund or Class, less any Rabilities, by the toeal
nuarmbes of urits cutstanding of that Fund o (lass On each Fund’™s Deaing
Chy (e et i thee cuifeent Offeding Memoranduim of the

Trust), Fund units ane ordnanty valued a5 of the dose of reqular rading on
the Mesw York Stock Exchange ("N SE Close ™). infrmation that becomes
kncwn to the Funds o their agents after the time a5 of which MAY has been
caboulated on a particular day will not generally be used to rereactively adust
the price of a security or the KAV determined earlier that day. Each Fund
resenves the right to change e tme a5 of whidh its HAY is cakadated if

the Fund dases earlier

Fiof parperies of caculanng NAY, portdolio seounes and other J5se1 for
which market quotes ane readity available are valued at market value. Marker
walue k= generally determired on the basis o officsl doting peices or the last
reported salis prices, of if no sales ane peported, baded on quates oblained
from established market makers or prices (induding evaluated prices) wpplied
Iy the Funds approved pang seraces, quotanon neportng systems and
ather thirdkparty sources (logether, "Pricing Senvices™). The Funds will
noemnally use priding data for domestic equity securities recetved shortly after
the WYSE Clase and do not nonmalky take into aocownt rading, dearandes o
setflerments that fake place after the MNYSE Close |f market value pridngis
used, a foreign (non-U0 5 ) equity sequrity raded on 3 foresgn exchange of on

more than one exchange is typlcally valued using pridng infomation from the
exchange considered by PIMCO 1o be the prmary exchange A foeelan fion-
LLS ) ity Security will be valued a5 of the dote of rrading on e Toreign
exchange, or the NYSE Close, If the NYSE Cose ooams before the end of
frading on the foreign exhange. Domestic and faregn (non-U 5 ) fmed
income securities, non-exchangs traded denvatives, and edquity opticns are
normby valued on the bass of quotes abtained from beokers and dealers or
Fricing Services using such data reflecting the prindpal markets for thoss
securities Prices obtained from Pridng Services may be based on, among
oftver things, information provided by market makers or estimates of market
values obtained from yield data relating to imvestments or securiies with
similar characleristics. Certain fioed ingome sequrities purchased on a
delarped-delivery basis are marked to market dally unsl cetdement at the
fonmard setiement date, Exchange-traded opsions, except aquity options,
futures and options on futures e valued at fe seiement price detemmined
by the refesvant exchiange, quotes abrained from & quatation reporting Sy,
established markel makers of pridng services. Swap agresments are valued
o e bads of maicket-based prces wpplied by Prdng Senices of quabes
obtaned trom brokers and dealers. A Fund's irreslmants in open-end
management investment companies, other than exchange-traded funds
(TETFs"), ane valued af the NAWS of sudh irvestmenls

If & foreign {non-L1 5 ) equity seqanity’s value has materially changed after the
dioze of the security’s pimary mxchange of prindpal market but before the
NYSE Clse, the secunty may be valped at fair value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager. Foreign fon-L1 5. ) equily
senunties that do not made when the BYYSE is open ane also valued at fair
walise, With respect to foreign non-U S b equity securifies, a Fund may
deterrrine the T vaue of investments based on information provided by
Fricing Services and other third-party vendoes, whach may redomimend fair
vl or austments with reference 1o other securiies, indices of asseis.
comsidering whether Lar valuasion is required and in deternining fair

values, a Fund may, among other things, contider significant events lwhich
may be congidered 1o indude dhanges in the value of U5 sequnities or
setnities mdices) hat ooqur after e dose of the relevant market and before
the NYSE Close. A Fund may ulilize modsling tools provided by thind-party
vendors to getermine fair values of foreign (non-U %) sequnties. For these
punposes, anry mowvernent in the applicable reference index or instrument

(" zer0 trigger ™) between the earlier dose of the applicable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed to be a significant event, prompding the
appication of the prcng model (effecvey reusdting in daiy fair

valsations) Foreign exchanges may pemit trading in foreign (non-L15 )
Bty Secufities of Ayt when the Trudt IS not open for business, which my
result in a Fund’s partiolio nve stments being atfected when Urithol ders ane
unabile to biy or Sell units

Sendor secured flaating rate loans for which an active secondary market exsts
[ & reliable degose will bie valeed a1 the mean of the Lot avislable bidfask
prices in the market for such laans, as providied by a Pricing Sendce. Senior
secured floating rate loans for which an active secondany market does not
axisd 10 a refisble degree will be valued a1 fair value, which is ntended 10
approcdmate market value. In waluing a senicr sacured floating rate loan at
fakr valae, the tactors considered may indude, but are not imited o, the
flbowing: () the aedtwontiness of (e boreower and sy intemediate
partidpants, (b the terms of the foan, () recent prices in the market for
sirmalar hoans, if any, and (ch recent prices in the market fioe instruments of
sirndlar quality, rate, pedlod untl mext Mberest fate reset and maturity

Investments valued in osmendies other than the fundlionad QT ENCY

of & Furd afe cormesnied i the Rinchons] cumendy wing eotange rates
obrained from Pridng Serdces. A5 a resdt, the value of sudh imesiments and,
in sy, the MAY of the Furd's whits meny bee atfected by changes in the valiee
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of qumendies in relation 1o the functional umendcy. The walue of Evestments
traded in Soreign markets of denominated i curnen des other tan

the functonal qumency may be alfectsd ugnificansy an a day that the Tastis
not open for busness. As aresult, o the exdent that a Fund holds foreign
(non-UL5 § imeestments, the value of thode irnestments may change at Bmes
i you cannot purchace, redéem of &ochangs units and the vatue of such
kst ts will be reSected it Fund's next calaulated NAY

Imvestments for which market quotes or marke t-based valuations are nod
readly svalable se valued a0 Tar value 35 detervened i good faith by

the Manager o persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adoplied
methods for valuing secunities and other assets in droamstances where
rarket quates sre not readily available, and has delegated 1o FIMCO the
regponsitelity for apphying the fair valuation methods, In the event that market
quotes or market-based valisations are nok readlly vailabie, and the sequniiy
OF 5560 cannot be valwed pursant 1o @ Manager appioved vauation
rrethid, the value of the seourity or asset will be determened in good faith by
the Valuation Comireimes. Markel quotes e oonssderad not readily aealable
i cincumatan oes whene thene is an absence of cusrent of reliable marke
based data (e g, trade information, bidfask information, indicative market
dquitanons (T Broker Quaabes”), Prang Senaoes’ praced), induding when:
ewenls occur Alter the dose of the relevant market, but pror to the NYSE
Chose, that materially aifect the values of the Fund's securifies or assets In
addition, market quotes are considened not readily avalable when, due to
extracrdinary drourmstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
securites rade Ao nat open for rading for Sie entire day and no other
ket prices are avallable. The Manager is responsible for monitoning
significant events that may materially affect the walues of the Fund's securities
o ansats and B determining whether the valise of the sppdicable seournises of
Aty should be reevalusted in light of such SqniScant events

Whien a Fund uses Tae vakiation (o determine the value of & pormolio seaunty
of o astel for purpodes of cakaulating its NAY, wch imeestrents will not
b priced on the baus of quotes fram the peimany mearket in which they are
Iradied, bt rather iy be priced by another method that the Manager of
persons acting at ther direction believe reflects far value Fair valuation may
require ubjective determinatons dbout the value of 2 sequrity. While

the Trust™s policy is intended to result in 3 calaulaion of a Fund™s NAV that
Tairly reflects sequrity walues a5 of the fime of prigng, the Tnast cannct ensure
that far values determined by the Manager or persons acting at their
direction would acourately reflect the price that a Fund ¢ould obtain for a
security if it were 1o dispose of that sequrity & of the Gme of priding (for
Instance, in a forced of dismessed sale). The prices used by & Fund iy differ
from the wakse that would be realized if the securites wene sold

(bl Fair Valoe Hierarchy U S GAAP describes fair value a5 the price that

a Fund would receive o sell an auset o pay o transfer a Babilityin an ordery
Lransacmon betweien markel particpants at the measanemen( date It
establishes a fair valwe hierardhy that prionifizes inputs tovaluation methods
and requanes desdosure of te fair valis hierarchy, itﬂﬂl'-atﬂﬂtf each magos
cabegony of astets and labilises, that Wegreqates tar value medsurements nlo
lewels (Lewel 1,2, 0f 2). The inputs oF methodology used tor valu TH) SE0UnDes
A fuaf necestarly an indcason of e s S Med with indettng in those
securifies. Levals 1, 3, and 3 of the fair value hieranchy are defined as follows!

® Lgwel 1—Ouoded prices in active markets o exdhanges S identical assets
and liahdines

B {evel 2=Sgnificant other abservable inputs, which may indude, but are
nok limited to, quaoted prices for similar assets o liabilties in markets that are
active, quated prices for identical or smila assets o liabilties in markeels that
are not active, inputs other tan quoted prices that are cbservable for the
assets o Rabiliges (swch a3 interest rates, yield ourves, volatilities, prepayment

speedk, loss sevenies, aedt isks and default rates) or otver market
comabofated inpuls

® |pvel 3—Significant ynobservable inputs based on the best information
vl sbli i che CnOEMSLARCES, 10 the extent obseryable inpuls e not
avallable, which mazyindide asasmplions mads by the Manager or persons
JtEng At their drection hat ane wed in detemning the fai valoe of

o tipil ]

In gccondance with the requinements of LS. GAAP, the amounts of transfers
inand cut of Ll 3, if material, are disdased in the Motes to Schedule of
Investments for each respective Fund

For faur valuations wing significant uncbsenvable inputs, U S GAAP requires
1o diecioge transbers into and out of Level 2 of the tar value hierardhy and
punchases and isswes of Level 3 atsets and liabilties during the pericd
Additionally, U 5 GAAP requires quaniitative information regarding the
significant uncbsenvable inputs wsed in the determination of tirvalye of
assets or Babilities categorized a5 Leved 3 in the far value hierardey. In
acoordance with e requirernents of LS GAAR, a2 fair vaue hierardhy, and if
materid, details of significant unobssrvable inputs, have been induded in the
Motes to Schedule of Imestmenis. for each respective Fund

el Valuation Teehnigues and the Fair Value Hierarshy

Lewel 1, Lewal 2 and Level 3 trading assets and trading liabilioes, a0
lairvabue The valiation methods (or "technigques™) and significant inputs
wsed in debédrmining the fair vabues of portfolio securities of ather désets and
liabifities, cabegorized as Level B, Lewvel 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
are s follows:

Fixed income securities induding corporate, convertibde and municipal bonds
and notes, LS. government agences, LS, treasury oﬂigac OHS, SOVETEIgN
Iszues, bank loans, comvertible prefemed securities and non-LLS. bonds are
nomially valued on the bass of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers or
Fricing Serdces that use bioker-dealer I.'].-'DI&'.iIIﬁS. repOrtid rades of
valeation esimates from thelr internal pridng models. The Fricng Senvices’
intema models wse inputs that are obsenalie sudh & s detals, nienes
ranes, yield Qunies, prepadient speeds, aedit inkakpreads, defaull rates and
quoted prices for imilar assets Secunities hat use smila valuation
techniques and inputs a5 desonbed abowe e Calegonned &5 Livel 2 of the
far value herarchy

Fied incorme Securities punchased on & delaped-delverny bads or a5 8
repurchase commitmment in a sale-buyback ransaction are marked to marked
daly until serlement at the forward setflerment date and are categorized as
Lewd 2 of the fair value hierardhy

Mangage-related and asset-baced seqanities are v ally isssd as separate
ranches, o dasses, of securities within each deal These seamities are aka
nonmaly valued by Pricing Senviges that use Droker-dealer quotations,
reported rades of valuation estimates from el intemal pridng modeds. The
pricing maodels for these sequrities uswally comsider tranche Jevel atimbutes,
aument market data, estmated cash fows and market-based yeld spreads for
each ranche, and incorporate ded collateral performance, & available
Meatgage-refated and assal-baded secunties thatl wse similar valuation
technicuies and inputs a5 descrbed abowe are categonied as Level 2 of the
fair vialue hieranchy

Cormmon stacks, ETFS, exdhangs-traded nates snd finandal demvative
instruments, sudh &% fulures contracts, fights and warants, of oplicns on
futures that are raded on a national seqanties exchange, are stated at the
last reported sale of setthement prce on the day of valuation To the extent
these seqmities are actively raded and valuation adjustments are not applied,
thiey are categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierandhy
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Investments valued (denorminated) in currencies oder than the fenclional
asrency of a Fund e comvened to the functional curency using exchange
rates (anrency spof and forward rates) obtained from Pricing Senices. AL &
result, the MAV of & Fumd's units may be affected by changes in ghe value of
Cprendes in relation to te functional damency. The value of secunities raded
in foreign markets of denominated i curendes other than the nctional
currenay may be sflscted sgnifcantyy on a day teat the Trustis mot open for
business. Valuation adustments may be appled to certamn sequnties that are
solely traded on 3 foresgn exchange to acoount for the market movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close. These seauities
are valped wsing Pridng Senvices that cansder the comelation of the rading
pattems of the foreign security to the infraday rading in the U 5 markets for
Evesiments. Saounities using these valuation sdjustments ane categonzed &
Lewel 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Preferred secunties and other equitdes
traded on inactive markets of valued by reference o similar instruments are
Alyo caregorized 5 Livel 2 of the far value hieandhy

Ecpuity-linked securities ane valued by referendrg the last reported sde o
setherment price of the |inked redenenced squity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchangs adjus iments are applied 1o the last reported peice o
cover] the linked equity™s rading Qarency b T CORACT S Simng curency
Thede invashments ane cabegornized a5 Leval 2 of the far value Feerarchy

Imrettmisnts in registensd open-end nvesiment companies. (other than ETFS)
will b valued based upon the Navs of sudh investments and are categonzed
as Level 1 of the fair walue hieranchy. Investments in unregistered open-end
imeestment companies will be caladated based wpon the NAVS of sudth
imeestments and are considered Lewel 1 prostided that the NAVS are
observable, cabodated daily and are the value atwhich bath purdhases and
sales will be conduched

aluation scustements may e spptbed 1o certan exchange raded futes and
ophions to account for market movement bebween the exchange settlement
and the NYSE dose. These seaurities are valued usng quoles obtained from 3
Quotanon feporting System, establshed markel makers of pracng sendoes
Fenandal derivatioes ang these valiation adustrments are calegorided ai
Lewel 2 of thie falr value higranchy

Erquity exchange-tfraded options and over the counter finandal denvatne

s brurents, sudh a6 fonward [-:n:w_:p CUFTERNCY CONYTACTS And GplicNS ooniracts,
derive their value from underbang asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
ogher inguils or 3 comtenation of these factors. These confracts are nomally
walued on the badss of quates oblained fram a quotstion reparling Syilem,
established market makers or Pricing Senvices (normally determined as of the
MY 5E Closed, Depending on ®e product and the tenms of the transaction,
finandal derrvative instruments can be valued by Fricng Senvices using a
series of echniques, induding simulation pricng models, The priding models
use inputs that are coserved from actively quoted markets sudh as quoted
DS, mouer detals, nchoes, bidtadk spreads, inbenedk ratis, impsed
walatilities, yield qurves, dvidends and exchange rates. Financial detivative
InstrurTen s that use samilar valuabon Tedhnegues and inputs &5 described
abowe are categonized as Level 2 of the fair value feeranchy

Centrally desed avaps and owver the countiel Svaps demee et value from
underling asset prices, indices, reberence rates, and other inpuls or a
combanation of these tactars. They are valwed wsing 3 broker-deater bid
quotaton of on market-based pices provided by Pridng Services {normally
determined a5 of the WYSE Clote) Centraly deared swaps and over the
counter swaps can be valued by Fricng Sendces using 3 series of fedniques,
induding smulation pricng models. The peiding models may use inpats that
are ohsenved from actvely quoted matkets such a3 the cvernight index swap
rate (COR"), LEPOR fonward rate, interest rates, yiedd curves and aredit
spreads, These sequiities are categoeized a5 Level 2 of the far value hieranchy

winen 3 fairvaluation methed is applied by the Manager that wses significant
uncbservable imputs, investments will be priced by 3 method that

e Manager of persons acting a1 the dinecion belenve refiects fair value and
are caiegonzed as Level 3 of ihe fair value hierarchy

Frody priong procedures set the base prce of 4 fived income seurity and
subsequenty acdjust te price propartonally b market valise changes of 4 pre-
determined security deemed 1o be comparaile in duration, generally a LS
Treasuny or Sovereign node based on country of issuance. The base price may
Lot & Borcskcier-cheabed quate, Wansaction price, of an intemal value a4 dernved by
analysis of market data, The base price of the security may be retet on a
pegiodic bass based on the availabilitg of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Cversight Committee. Shgnificant changes in the
uncbservable inputs of the prosy pridng process (the base price) would result
in direct and proportiona! changes in the fair value of the seaunty, These
SeQunties ane calegon ied & Level 3 of the Tair value Merardry

If inc-pusty evalksed vendor pnong i not avalae of not deemed 1o b2
Incative of fair vialue, the Manager may elect toobian Broker

Cuotes directly from the broker-dealer or passed-through Broker Cuote from
& thard-party vendar I the event that far valise 2 based upon & snge
sourced Broker Cuale, these senmnties ane categodised o Level 3 of the fair
value hiesanchy Broker Cuotes are typicaly recenved from establithed market
partidpants, Although independently receved, the Manadger does Aot hiave
the ransparency o view the underying inputs which suppoet the markeg
quedation, Significant changes in the Broker Quote would have direct and
propartional chamges in the fair value of the security

Feference instrument valuation estmates far value by utilizing the comelation
of the sadurity to one of more broad-based seqmities, market mdices, andior
other finandal instruments, whose prigng information i readily available
Uncteervable inputs mayindude those used In algoniton formulas based on
percentage change in the reference instruments andfor weights of each
reference instument. Significant changes in the unoteensatie inputs would
et in derect amd propontional dhanoes m tihe tar value of the seamty
Theete secufities are cateqorized a5 Level 3 of the far value hierarchy

Shirt-1eimn debil mstraments (Sudh 38 commend d paper) having a femaining
rreasurity of &0 days of less My e valued an amortzed Cost, S0 long &6 he
ArmorTized oost valise of such dhort-term debil instruments s Spproadmanedy the
same a5 the fair walue of the instrument as determined without the use of
amirtized costvaluation These searities are categorized as Level 2 or Level
3 of the fair value herardry depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES ARD OTHER INVESTMENTS

[a) Deleged-Delivery Transactiors Certain Funds may purchade of tell
sedisities on @ delayed-delivery bass These trancactions invole 3
commitment by @ Fund to purdhase or sell sequities for 3 predetermined price
or wiekd, with payment and delréery taking place bepond the customary
settement pericd. When delayed-defivery transactions are outstanding,

& Fundwill designate o receive a5 coll#teral liquid assets in an amount
suffident bo meed the purchase price or respective cbligations. When
purchasing a sequrity on a delayed-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and ks of cwmership of the sequnty, induding the fisk of price and yield
fluctsatons, and tekes such flectuations inke sa0ount when determaning its
NaY. A Fund may dispose of of renegonate a -i':lh'eﬂ-l!%ll'\-%'y Transaoton
Afves it is entered in o, which rmay result in 4 realized gain of loas. When

4 Fund has sold a sequnity on a del ayed-deliveny basis, the Fund doss nat
paridpati in fubufe gans and lostes with respect to e sequnty

[b) Inflationdndexed Bonds Certan Funds may invest m inflation-indesed
s Infation-indeoed bonds. are fived incorme seountes whode prinapal

el Rapart | Mg 31, 2027 L

160/352



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

valye is periodically adusted by the rate of inflation. The enterest rate on
these bonds is generally fieed at issuance at a rate lower than gypical bonds
Croer the life of an nfation-mdioeed bond, howeves, inTenest will be paid
based on 3 prindpal value, which |s adusted for inflation Any inmease o
decrease in the pandpal amownt of an infation-indexed bond will be induded
as inkenest income on the Statements of Operations, even though fvestors do
ik receive ther prindpal untl matuity, Repayrent of the orignal bond
principad upon maturity {36 adusted for inflatian) is guaranteed in the case of
15 TIPS, For bonds that do not provide a similar quarantee, the adjusted
principal value of the bond repaid at matusity may be less than the original
prindpal

el Loan Partcipatiors, Assigrmems and Originationa Certain Funds may
immvest in direct debt imstrumentis which are interests in amounts owed 1o
fenders or lending syndicates by corporate, governmental, o ofher bomowers
A Fund's invesements i loans may be in the form of participations in loans or
assignments of all o 3 portion of loans from third parfies of investments in of
ofgnations of loans by the Fund, A loan is often administered by & bani: or
other fingndal institution {the "lender™) that ats a5 agent for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of e logn, a5 specified in the loan agresment

A Fund ey irneesin muldpbe series or tanches of & boan, which may have
warying temns and camy dfferent assodiated nisks, When & Fund purchases
AssignAnents fromm henders it acquires drect nghts. against the bomowers of the
boans, Theds laans may indude parSiapations in badde |oxns, which are [aans
Laken out by bomowers for a short period (ypically less than one yean)
pending arrangement of more permanent Snandng theoagh, for exampie, the
Fsswance of bonds, frequently high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
acquisitions

The types of nans and related investments in which the Funds may invest
include, among others, senior loans, subardnated |oans (nduding second
feen Igans, B-hotes and mezzaning loans), whole loans, cormmendial real
estate and other comemerdal loans and struchured boans. A Fund may
Ognate 1ans of a0quEne direct inbenests in boans through primary loan
distributions andior in pivate Fansactions. in the cae of suboedinated loans,
there may be sonificant indebledness rarking ahead of the borrower's
obligation to the holder of wdh & loan, induding in the event of the
curower™s ingohvency. Mezzaning loans are typically secured by a pledoge of
AR ety interest in fe morgege Dormower that owns thi real srate rather
than an inlenett in a mortgage

Imvettmients in |aans may ndude unlunded |oan comeniirmen ts, which are
contractual chisgations for funding. Unfunded loan commitments may indude
revolving red t fadlities, which may obligate 3 Fund to supply addtional cash
b the barmowes on demand. Unfunded loan commatments. frepresent a future
obligation in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
niot be utdized by the bomgwer When investing in a loan partidpation,

a Fund has the nght to feceiae pa-fmmsc'ipnnclpal interest and .]I'I'r'-'i-EE 1
whidh it is entitled onby from the lender seling the loan agreement and only
upon receipt of payments by the lendsr from the borower. A Fund may
fisciyie & Cofrnment ik based on the undroan pofion of the nderheng
[Ene of redit portion of 3 [oan. In cenain arourmstances, & Fund may recene 3
peralty e upan the prepaymient of 2 loan by 2 bormower. Fees ssmed o
paid are recorded a3 a cornpanent of inlenest incoms or inferest egenze,
respecively, on the Statements of Operations: Unfunded koan commiments
are reflected a5 a liabdity on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

|d} Mertgage-Related and Oibar Asset-Backed Securities Certain Funds may
meetl in mortgage-related and other ssset-hadeed secunties that deecty or
ndrecty repeitent 3 parnapabion in, of are seored by and payable from,
boans onred property. Morlgage-rel sted securifies. e created from pools of
regdential or commerdal mortgage loans, induding mortgags |oans made by
savings and loan ireHhobons, mormgage bankers, commerdcal banks and

otfeers. These sequniies provide 3 monthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal. Interest may be determined by foed or adustable rares
Thes fate of prepengrents on-underying mongages will alfect the prce and
wilatility of a mortgage-related security, and may hawe the effect of
shortening of extending te effecive deraton of the seauity rdlatbne 1o what
wias anficipated at the Gme of purchase. The timely payment of prindpal and
interest of Oertan mormgdge-related seomnties b quarantesd vath the full faith
and credit of the U5 Government. Pools areated and guaranteed by non-
govemnmental issuers, indudng government-sponsored corporations, may be
supported by viarious forms of insurance or quarantess, but there can be no
assurance that private insurers or guaraniors can meet their obligations under
the msirance pobdes o guarantee arrangements. Many of the risks of
Inwes g en morgage-relaed sequrites sequed by cofremerdial Fodigage
loans reflect the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
markets, the ability of tengnts 1o make lease payments, and the abdity of 2
property 1o atiract and retain tenants These seounities may be less ligeid and
may exhibat greater price volaility than other types of mortgage-related or
ottvel dset-badked secuities, Other aasar-badied Seounines e deatsd fom
many types of assets, indwding but not limited 10, auto loans, accounts
recebrable, such as oredit cand receivalbles and hosgitad acoount recesvables,
home equaty loans, stodent loans, boat boans, motile horme [aans,
recreational wehicle loands, manufactured housing loans, aircralt beases,
computer leases and syndicated bank foars. The Fund may invest in amy bevel
of the capital strucnare of an issuer of montgage-tadied o asset-badoed
sequrifies, induding the equity or “fistloss™ wanche

[e] Collateralized Marigage Obligatiers (7O MO} are debt obligations of 2
legal entity that are collateralized by whole mortgage foans o private
mortgage bonds and divided inbo dasses. TS are struchured into multiple
dhasses, often refermed o a5 “tranches”, with eadh dass bearing a different
stated mahanity and entitled oo 3 Gfferent schedude Bor payments of prindpal
And imbefest, incudeng prepayments. CWCk may be [ess lioued and may exdsebil
qreater price volatiling than ceher types of morigage felated of asset-backed
seqities

[f] Stripped Morigage-Back ed Securities ("SMES") are dedvative mult-dass
mortgage sourites. SMES are wsualy structured with two dasses that receive
different proportaens of the interest and princpal distibutions on 3 pod of
morigage dsers An SMBS will have one dass that wall receve Ji of the
interest {the interest-cnly or 10" dassh, while the other dass will receive the
entine peincpal (the prindpal-only or “PO" dass) Payments receved for 105
are indudied in intenestincome on the Staements of Operations. Becaiss no
principal will be regeived at the maturity of an [0, adjusiments are made o
the ooil of the seawity on & monthly basis untl mateity. These sdjusrments
are indidied in inferestincome on the Statements of Operasions. Payments
received for FOs are reated as reductons 1o the mst and parvaue of the
Seaities

[a) Collateralizad Debt Obligatiars (T CD0<"™) include Collaterahzed Bond
Ciligations (TCEOL"), Collateralized Loan Obligations ("CLOs™) and other
simdlarly sinsctured secunities. CBOs and CLOs are fypes of asset-badked
secumities A CEOis a trust which is badeed by a dversified pood of high i,
bt irvestment grade fixed income searities. & CLOTs a trust typically

coll terakzed by a pocl of loans, which may indude, among others, domestic
and foreign senicr secured loans, senior unsequred Boars, and subordinate
comporate bears, indudng loans that may be rated befow investment grage or
equivalent snraned koans. The nisks of an irvestment i & COO depend Langely
on the type of the oollateral secufities and the dats of the CDOin whidh

& Fund invests. in addition to the noomal risks sssociated with fived incams
seourities discuised elswhiens in this repant and the Funds” Offering
Memorandum (2 q., prepayment nisk, credit msk, hquidity nsk, market ntk,
structural sk, fegal risk and interest rate rick fahich may be exacerbated if
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the interest rate payable on 3 structured finendng changes based on
rusliples of changes in interest rates of inversely to changes in interest
rate), CBOs, CL0s, and other CDCS cary additicnal nsks ndudng, but not
lemited to, () the possbilicy that dsinbutions from collateral seouities wall not
b adecuate 1o make interest or ather payments, &) the quality of the
collabersl may dadine in value or default, (@) the risk that a Fund may imaest
I CEOs, CLOS, of othver COOE that dne subdedinate o other dasses, and (v)
the compl e stnachare of the security may nod be fully understood at the time
of investment and may produce digpu tes with the issuer or unexpected
imvestment resudts

(b Paymant Indind Securities Cértain Fundst may ifvedd in payment in-ind
securifes (T FIEST) PIES may gree the issuer the option ateach interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor addtional
debit sequrities. Those additional debt securities usually have fhe same terms,
induding mahgity dates and interest rates, and assodated risks as the
oniginal bonds. The daly market quotations of the oniginal bonds may indude
the soorued interest (eferred 10 35 @ 'rirl:w:r price”) and reguire a o 1A%
adustment from the unredized appredation of depred ation on invesiments
tointerest recesvable on the Siatements of Assets and Lisbelites

(i} Restricted Secaities Ceman Funds may hold investments that are subject
torlegal or contractual restrictions on resake These searties may be sold
privabely, but may be required to be registered or exempled from such

eI sion before Leesng Sl 30 the public. Private placement seuries. are
deneraly considensd 8o be resmicted. Disposal of nesmicted imvestments mmay
Imedve I'irﬂl‘*{EGEUH’iﬂ;I'IEI;l?I[IG[I(ﬂﬁ and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acceptalle prce fdy be dfficult o schisve. Redtincted imastments beld by
the Funds at May 31, 2022, as applicable, are disdosed in the Motes to
Shedile of nestments.

()} Structured Botes Certain Funds may investin stnuctured notes and other
related instruments, which ane privately negotiated debt obiigations in which
the princpal and’ or interest ks detemined by reference 1o the performance of
a benchmark asset, market o inferest rate {(an "embedded index ™), such as
selected sequitles, an index of seamities or speaied inberest rates, or the
differential performandce of two assets of markets, sudch &5 indexes reflecting
bomts. Structured irstraments may be issued by corporations, indudng
panks, & well a5 by governmiental agendes. The terms of such stuctured
nstruments noemally provide that their pondpal andfor interest payments are
[ b St upratangs of doweTrerarck (DUt ondinanly not below 2ero) 1o
reflect changes in the embedded index while the structunnd instrurments ane
subtandng. As a result, the intenest andfor princpal payments that may be
ke on & Struchuned product mdy vany widely, depending on a vanety of
tactors, induding the wolatility of the embedded index and the efect of
changes in the embedded index on prindipel andder interest payments

k) U5, Gavernment Agencies or Government-Sporsared Enterprises
Certain Funds may imvest in seqites of U5 Gowernment agendies of
government-sponsored enterprises. U5 Govemment seqanfies ane
obligations of and, in certain Cases, quaranteed by, the L% Govemment, its
agendies of insmumentalities. Some US. Government seouniies, wch a5
Treasury bdls, notes and bonds, and seoxiSes guaranteed by the Govemment
Mational Morgage Asodation CGNMA™ or "Ennie Mae"), are sapported
oy the full fath and dredht of this U5 Governiment; athers, such as hose of
the Federal Horme Loan Banks, are supported by the rght of the isuer to
boron from the U5, Department of the Treasury (e ~ULS. Treasury™); and
athers, such a5 thase of 1he Federal Mational Mortgage Associaton (TFNMA™
or “Fannie Mae™), are supported by the discretionary authority of the U5
Goverenent o purdhase the 3gency’s obligaticns. L5 Goemment e e
may ndisde 2ero coupon securities, whidh do ot destribute interedt on a

ourrent baws and tend to be sulbject (o a greater risk than interest-paving
secuities of similar matuites

Governmen-retated guarantors (e, not badeed by the full faith and credt of
thie L5, Gowemment) indude FRMA and the Federal Home Loan Matgage
Corporation (TFHLMC™ of “Fredde Mac™) FNMA & 3 givermiment Sponsoned
COMporation. FHMA purchases comentional § e, not insuned of quarantesd by
any government agency) reddential momgages from a list of appacwed
seflers/eendcers which indude state and federally charered savings and loan
Asodations, mubial savings banks, comimendal banks and aedt o and
mortgage bankers. Pass-through secunites issued by FHMA are guaranteed a3
1o timely payment of princpd and interest by FNMA, but are not badeed by
the full faith and creditof the U5 Government FHLMC issues Paridpation
Certificates ("PCs"), which are pass-through seqsites, each representing an
undividad inkerest in a pool of residential mosigages. FHIMC quaraniees the
frmely payrment of interest and Wtimane ollection of principal, but PCs are pat
backied by the fiulll f2ith and credit of the LS. Govemment

In Juree 2009, FRMA and FHLMC stamed sosng Linfiorm Mongage-Badoed
Sequriies ("UMBS") in place of their aament offerings of TEA-eligible
Lenphities (the “Single Seourty itame™) The Singie Seqrity Rikate Seeky
o wppoet the overall ligedty of the TBA market and aligns the
characteristics of FNMA and FRLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sequnly Inmbanve may have on the market for TEA and othet momgage-
backed securities ane uncertain

Ricll-timing sirategies can be used whee 3 Fund seeks to exdend the
expiration or maturity of 3 position, such as a TEA sequnty on an underfyding
assed, by disimg out the position before expiration and opening a new
position with regpect b substangally the same underying asset with a later
expiration date, TEA securities purchased or soid are reflected on the
Staterments of Assets and Liakilities as an asset or liablity, respectively

[ When-ssued Tranzsctions Certan Funds may punchase o sell secunties
on & when-ssued basis. Thete Wansactions e made condBonally because 4
seurity, althoagh authoeized, hat nod yet been iswed in the markel
Transactions to purchase or el securities on 3 when-dssued batis imaodve

4 commitment by a Fund bo purchiase or sall these sequrities for a

prede termened price o yield, with payment and defrvery taking place beyond
the astomany setement period A Fund may sell when-issied seqmities
befiore they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

[m) Bank Obligatiors Eank obligations in which a Furd ray imest endude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fioed time deposits
Certificates of deposit are negotiabie certificates issued against funcs
deposited in & commendal bank for 3 defiréte period of time and eaming a
cspedfied neturn, Bankers” acceptances are negotizble drafts or bills of
exchange, nommally drwm by an impoeter or exporter 10 pay for speafic
fefchanickse, which s "sccepted” by & bink, meaning, in effect, ghat the
bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on
masurity. Fixed tme deposits are bank obligations payable 31 3 aated
maturity date and beanng interest at a foed rate. Fooed time deposits may be
widhdrawn on demand by the imvestor, but may be subject o eary
wathdiawal penalities which vary depending upon market condifians and the
remaining matunty of the oblgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINARCIHG TRANSACTIORS

The fallowning disdodunes contamn information an the Funds” ability 4o lend o
bemowy cash or securities o0 the extent permitied ander the Offenng
Memorandum, which may be viewed as bormowing or fnandng transactions
by the Funds. The location of these instruments is desaribed below . For 3
detailed desaipton of credit and counterpaty risks that can be assodated
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with borrowings and other finanding transactions, please see Mote 7,
Prinaipad and Cither Risks

{4} Repurchase Agreements Certain Funds may engags in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a ngical repurdhase agresment,

a Fund purchases an undertying debt obligation (oolla tera) subject 10 an
obligation of the seller 1o regurchase, and a Fund to resell, the otfigation at
an agreed-upon price and Hme In an opsn maturity repurchase agreement,
there 15 00 pre-getemmined repurchase date and the FQreenent can be
Lesrrini il By Bk Fuined oF Cominterparty A0 any time. The market valie of e
coflateral must be equal 1o o exceed the total amount of the repurchase
obligations, ndudng nberett. Repunchase agreements, indudng sotrued
nierest, are induded on the Statements of Aseets and Liabilities Interest
eamed is recorded a5 3 component of interest income on the Statements of
Operatons. In perods of increased demand for ooflateral, a Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of collateral, which may result in interest expense to the Fund

(b} Reverze Aepurchaze Agraements Certan Funds may enter info revense
repurchase agreements. in 3 reverse repurchase agreement, 3 Fund delivers a
securify in exchange for cash to a finandal mstiuBon, the counterpaty, with
a simadtanecus agreement bo repunchase the same or substantially the same
SECurity 3t an -i-'}ﬂ?li‘d Upon price and dabe I an open mananty reverse
repurchase agresment, there is no pre-determined repunchiate date and the
agreement can be terminated by the Fund or counterparty at any ime

A Find ks enbiied o reene pendpad and Interest payrments, if Ay, Made on
U sescuity celiveeried 1o the counterparty during dhe beem of the agreement
Cash receved in exchange for sequrities delivered péus accued nterest
DuyTreenits 10 be iridcke by & Fishd 10 counbeipantes ane reRectied a5 & liabslity
on the Statements of Assets and Liabdides. interest payments made by 3 Fund
[ COURnREpar i & reoordied &% 3 Component of interes expenie on te
Staternents of Operations. In perads of increased demand far the sequnty,

2 Fund may recerve a fee for wse of the seqeity by the ccamterparty, whidh
iy resall in interest income to 3 Fund. A Fund will segregate assets
determined to be §quid by PIMCO cr will otherwise cower its obligations
unider reverse replrchase agreements

) SaleBuybeckes Certain Funds may enter into Snandng ransactions
referred to a5 ‘sale-buybacks’. A sale-buybadk finandng Iransadeon consse
of asale of a securnity by a Fund 1o 2 finandal institution, the counterparty,
with 2 simultaneqys agresment bo repunchase the same or substantialy e
tame seqmity 31 an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is naf entiied to
recetve prindpal and interest payments, it any, made on fe sequnity sold 1o
the counterparty during the term of the agreement. The agresd-upon
procierds for securites to be repurdhased by a Fund are reflected s a [abilin
o the Statements of Assets and Liabities. A Fund will recogrize net ingome
pefretanted by e prioe dfferential between the peice feomed for the
transherred security and the agreed-upon repurchase prde This ks commanty
referred 1o a5 the ‘prwce drop’. A priok drop ConSist aof (1) the foredgane mbenest
and nflationary moome aduiments, § any, 3 Fundwould have otheranse
recetved had the security not been sobd and (i) the negofiated finandng terms
between 3 Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
adjustments, if any, are rednded as components of interest income on the
Statemnents of Operations. Interest paymenits based upon negotiated fmandng
terms mmade by @ Fund o -:-Juf-[-':rrmir:s AN Teonded 85 4 Component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. In periods of indreased
demand fior the sequrity, & Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the security by
e CounBerparty, which may resal i interestinoome ia Fund. A Fund wall
Segrigale Siets detenimined to be Bouid by PIMCO of will otherwite Gover its
obligations under sbe-buybad Tansactions

{d} Short Sales Certam Funds may enter into short sales transactions. Short
sales ame wansactions i whidh the Fund selis a seourity that it may pot own
A Fund may make short sales of seqsities to §) offset potential dedines in
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long positions in similar sequrities, (i) to increase the Bedbaliy of the Fund
(it} for investment retum, {v) a5 pert of a e arbiirage strategy, and (v) as
parrt o i1s deverall portlolio man sgement strategied immbang the use of
derivative mstruments. When a Fund engages in 3 thon sale, it may bomos
thie Security sold shart and delaver it ta the counberpaty. The Fund wall
ordinarily have 1o pay 3 fee of prémium 0 bomow a seaurity and be obligated
0o repny the lender of the Security amy diadend or intenest that aorues on the
a0 Ty dusrineg thee pericad of the boan. Securities soid in short sale ransactions
and the dvidend or interest payable on such securities, if any, are reflected az
payatie for shoe sales on the Statements of Assets and Liatelities, Short sales
expose the Fund to the ridk that itwall be required to cover its short position
at & time when the sequrity of other asset has apprediated in value, tus
resulting i ksses to the Fund. A shoet sale s " against e box™ if

the Fund heids injits porticlio or has the nght 1o aoquire the sequrity sold
short, of securities identical to the seouity sobd short, at na sdditional cost

A Fundwill be wbgect to addional rsks 1o the extent that i engages n short
<ales that are nol "against the bax™ A Fund's loss on a shom sale could
tredhetically be unlirmited in cates whene the Find is enakie, forwhativer
reasan, bo dose out its short position

B. FIH AHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fodlowing disdiosures contain information on bow and why the Funds use
financiad derivative instnuments and how nandd dedvative instruments
affect the Funds’ finangia position, resulits of operations and cash flows. The
location and fair value smounts of these instruments on the Statements of
Assets and LiabiiSes amd the net realized gain Joss) and net change in
unrealized pprecation {deprediation) on the Statements of Operatons, each
categon 2ed by type of finandal derivative conmract and relased risk expesure,
are induded in 2 table in the Motes to Schedule of nvestments. The inandal
derivative instrumenis outstanding a5 of period end and the amounts of net
realized gain (o) and nel change in enneali 2ed sppredabon (depredat on)
on in andal derivative indruments during the pericd, 2 dsdotedin the
Pt 10 Sohedule of Fnestments, senee a3 ndicatons of hie wolume of
financia derivative activity for the Funds

[a} Forwsard Foreign Currency Comtracts Certan Funds ray endgage in
fonerard foreign cumency confrads in connection with <ettling planned
purchases of sales of tequnied, ta hedge the curmen oy Exposune Jssoaated
wath sorme of all of 3 Fund™s secunties or & pan of an vestment strategy. A
fonsard foreign qurency conlract is an agreement behwien twio parties (o bay
and sell 3 curency a1 a se1price on 3 Tuture date. The marked value of 3
fonevard foreign @mency contract fluchuates with changes in foreign cumendy
exchange rates. Fonward foreign aurency contracts are marked to market
daty, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund a5 an wnrealized gain o
loss. Realized gains of Iosses are equal o the difference batween the value of
the contrac at the Gme [twas opened and he value 3 the time iTwas dosed
and &g necorded wpon delivery of receipd of the cumency. These oon racts
ey imvoive market nisk in excess of the unnealized gain or loss refleced on
the Statements of Assets and Labites. In additon, 4 fund could e epuied
b rigk if the counterparties are unable 1o mest the temms of the contracts of if
the value of the currency changes unfavarably to the funcionadl aurency. To
maligate sch risk, Cash o securities sy be exchanged as collateral pursuan
b the termis of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Class, may dso enter inlo fonward foreign
Qumency confracts designed to offset the effiect of hedging at the Fund level in
order b leave the hedged Class with an exposure 1o oumendes otfer than e
functional awrency. There can be no guarantee that these Class spedic
fonward foreign currency conracts will be suocessil

AreaniRapatt | Miy 39, 2007

163/352



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

{5) Futares Comracts Cerlain Funds may enter into fulures confracts. &
futures confract is an agreement bo buy o w2l a security or ather asset for a
561 price on 3 future date andis traded on an exchange. A Fund may yse
fuanares. conIFacts to manage its exposune o the seunties markets of o
mwements in inferest rates and cumency values. The primary risks asodated
with the use of futures contracts an: the imperfect correlation Between the
change in maketvaue of the wecurntes hetd by @ Fund and the prces of
fuhares contracts and the possbilitg of an iliquid markel Futures confracls
are valed based upon ther quoted dilly settement pnces. Lipon entenng
Nt & Butures Coniract, & Fund is nedquained b deposilwith it futures broker an
amount of cash, U%. Govemment and Agency Obligations, or seledt sovereign
debt, in accordance with the initial margin requirements of the broker or
exchange. Fulures contracts are marked to market daity and based on such
mowverments in the price of the contracts, an appropniate payable o recefvable
for the change in valwe may be posted or aolected by the Fund (Futures
Variation Margin®). Futures Vaniation Margins, if any, are dsdosed within
ceniraly deared finandal derivative instruments on the Statements of Assels
and Liskeltes Gaing of [oises sne recognized but ot considered realized unal
the coniracts eqire or dose Futures Goniracts irmadve, 10 varying degrees,
risk: of ko in excess of the Futures Vanstin Margn indudsd within
exchange traded of centrally deared Snandal demvative mitrumints on the
Staterments of Assets and Liakilities

fd Qptiors Contracts Certain Funds may wiite of purdrase options 1o
enhande retums oF 10 hiedge an easing posabon of hatee investment. Cénan
Fursds mury write call and put aptions. on securies and fnandal dervatee
Imstruements they own of in which they may invest Writing put cpdons tends
tovincrease & Rend's éxpodune 5o the undedying insnament Wnting call
ophians tends to dedease a Fund's exposure ba the underding instnament
When a Fund wites acall or put, an amount egual 1o the premism regesved I
recorded and subtequenty marked to market to reflact the current value of
the opion written. These amounts are induded on the Statemnents of Assels
and Liabdities. Prerniuns receved from wiiting opSons which expire are
treated a5 redized gains. Fremiums received from writing cptions whidh are
exerdsed of dosed are added to the progeeds of offset against amounts paid
on e undedang ftuires, Svap, SeQurily OF QUITERCy Transaction Do detamine
the realized gain of Ioes, Certain opgions may be writlen with premiums o be
detemined on 3 fulure date. The premiums Tor thiese oplons & based bpon
nplied wolanlity parameters at speatied tems. A Fund a8 2 wiilsr of a0
ophion has no control ower whether the underlying enstrument may be s0bd
(Tcal™) or purchised ("put™) and a5 4 result bears te market mk of an
unfaeceatde changes in the price of the instrument uiderlying the written
option. There & the risk 3 Fund may not be able to enterinlo a doding
transacton becawse of an iilquid market

Certan Funds may also purchase put and call options. Purchasing call aptions
tends o inmease 3 Fund's exposure 1 the underhdng insrument. Purdhasing
put options tends to derease a Fund's expasure to the underhying instnement
A Fund pays a premivmwhich is induded &5 a0 a5eet on the Statements of
Asgets and Liabdibes and sudmequently marked 1o maket o reflect the
aament value of the option. Fremiums paid for purdhasing options whidh
fxping e meated 55 realized lodses Certan options may be purdhised with
prefraums o be determened on a futune date. The premiums for these opions
are based upon implied wolatlity parameters. at spedfed terms. The sk
aspaatedwith purchasing put and call options s limited 1o the premium
paid. Premiums paid for purchating aptions whidh are exercied of dosed e
added to the amounts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underdying
imeestment Eransaction to determine the realized gain or loss when the
undérking ramsaction is exequted

Cradit Default Swapttana Certain Funds may write of purchase credit default
swaptions 1o hedge exposure to the credit risk of an investment without

making 3 comemitment o the underlying instrement. A aredit default svaption
{5 am option to sell or by credi pratection 1o a spedlic reference by entening
into a pre-defined svap sgreement by some spedfied date in te future

Fereign Currenty Options Certzin Funds manywrite or purchase foreign
QuITency options 10 be used a3 3 short of long hedge against possitie
varatons in foregn exthange rates of [0 Qan exposen: b fonEgn ourmendes

Inilation-Cappad Optiens Certain Funds may write or purchaie infation-
capped oplions to enhance retumns o for hedging opportunites. The purpose
of purchzsing inflation-capped oplices is to protect 3 Fund from infation
erosn above 3 CErtain rate of 3 gven nodonsl eposure. A foor can be
used bogive downside protecthon toinvestments in inflationfinked producs

Inerest Rate-Capped Optisne  Certain Funds maywrite or purchase interest
rate-capped oplions 1o enhance rebars of for hedgng opportunities. The
purpose of purchasing interest rate-capped options & to protect a Fund from
foating rate risk above 3 ceriain rate on a given notional exposure. A flogr
cam be used (o gve dowmside DROTEC of 10 IMASImEn S i inRerest rate linked
products

Iniarest Aate Swaptions Certan Funds may write of purchase inferest rate
swaplions which are opfions to enter inta 2 pre-gefined swap agesment of
to shaonten, extend, cancel of ashensise f'r’-Cll.'l",' i #5000 B0 gTEErment,
by some spedfied date in the fuhare. The wiiter of the swaption beoomes te
Counberparty 10 thie twap if the buyer exerades. The mierest fale S¥aplion
agreement will spedtywhether tie buyer of the swaption will be 4 Soed-rate
receiver of 3 fiwed-rate payer upon exefdse

Ojptiore: on Exchange-Traded Futunes Contracts. Certain Funds may wiite of
punchase opaions of exchange-raded futures Conracs (" Futures Option ™)
Pedige an exishing poeitbon of future investrent, for speculative pUIDOSES of 10
TP 3 ENPROGLING 1 Marker mOvements. A Fullres QDU i &n opton
contract in whidh the undertying insrument 5 3 Snge ulures contrac

Optiors en Securities Cértan Fands may wiite of pundhase oplichs on
sequities toenhance refums of o hedge an exdsting positan of fubure
investment An option on & seauity uses a specied security as the underhing
insbnsment for the ophon Contrac

[ Swap Agrasments Certain Funcs may fvest in swap agreements. Swap
agresments are bdaterally negotised agreements betwesn 3 Fund and a
Counterparty 10 exdange of svap imestment cish Bows, asgets, Toregn
curmenides of marketdinked retams at spedfed, futue intenvaly. Swap
Mernents may De pivabely negotiated i the OTC marketor may be deded
throgh & third-party, known a5 3 ceniral counberparty of defivatives deardng
crganization (“centrdly deared swaps ™). A Fund may enfer inlo asset, gredi
delault, cnoss-currendy, inbenedd rate, kdal retum, vanance and afher fomns of
SWaD Agreements b manage its exposure B0 aedt, aaTendy, interesl rane,
commadity, equty sndinflation risk. In connection with these agreements,
a0 ties or C3sh may be identified as collateral o mangin in accordance with
the terms of the respeciive svap agreements to provide assets of value and
recourse in the event of default or banknpooginscivency

Centraby deared swaps are marked to market daly based upon valations as
determined from e underbding contract of In aocordance with the
Tequirermens Of Bhe Ceniral counternpadty of defivatives deanng ongan 2aton
Changes in market value, if amy, are reflected 35 3 component of net change
inunredined appredation (depreaanon) on the Stabements Df'-."p-.‘:&l.'l-.'ﬂs-
Draly changes in waluation of centrally desred Swaps (™ Swap Vanation
Masgin™), if sy, are dischosed within centrally deared finandal derivative
inatnaTenls on the Statements of Adtets and Liabdites OTC avap paymnénts
received or paid at the beginning of the meassrement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilites and represent premimes paid or
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recaived upon entering into the swap agreement ip compersate for
differemnoes benwesn B stated tems of the swap sgresment and prevailing
riost conditions (medit Spreads, aerency exdhange rates, inteest rates, and
other relevant factors). Upfront premiurrs receboed (paid) ane inidally reconded
a5 hiahalives (aserd) and wbdedquently marked to macker o reflact the asment
waiue of the swap, Thess upfant premiums are reconded a8 reaized gains of
bossies on e S1aements of Operahons upon termination of mansity of the
swap. A liquidation payment received of made at the termination of the Svap
Is reconded as realized gain or loss on the S1atements of Operations. et
peripdc payments pecenved of paid by 3 Fund are induded a3 pant of reaized
gaing or losses on the Statements of OperaSons

For purpeses of applying certain of a Fund's invesement policies and
resirictions, swap agreements, like other denvative instruments, may be
watued by a Fund st market value, notiona value or full exposure valus. In the
case of a credt defaull swap, in applyng certain of the Fund's imeesirment
podicies and restrictions, the Fund will valus the credt default avap atis
noticnal valug of its full eposure vifue e, the sum of the nodona amount
for thie contract plus the mckel valwe), but may value the cedt default svap
atmarket value for purposes of applying certain of the Fund’s ather
nestmEnt pobdes and resricions. For axamgle, the Fund mdy value aédit
default swvapes at full expodure value fior purpodes of the Fund's aredit quality
quidelines (if any) because awch value in general better reSects the Fund's
actual sconomec exposure during the e of the gedit default swvap
agreement As a result, 3 Fund may, at times, have notional exposure 1o an
asset dass (before neting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
resiricticn nited in e Fund's Offeng Memorandum. I tis context, bath
the natonal amount and the market vaue may be posiive of negative
dependng on whether thee Find is seiling or bising protection thaough e
et default seap. The mranmer in which censn secunbes of ofer
instruments are valied by the Fund for pomases of Apphing imvestment
policies and restnCTIons My differ foem the manner in which those
meestments ane vakued by other types of imeestors. Entenn g into s p

Ay eernen s involves, 1o vaning degrees, ebements of interest, credit, markel
and documentation ek inexceds of the amounts recodqnized on the
Ltaternents of Assets and Uabilities Such risks imedve the possibality that
there will be no liquid market for thess agreements, that the counterparty to
the agresments may default on its cbligation 1o perfomm of disagree as to the
meaning of contraciual terms in the agreements and that there may be
unfaecratie chamges in interest rates of the values of the asset upon which
the awap is based

A Fund's masdmurm risk of boss froe countenpamy cedit sk 15 the discoented
net valpe of the cash flows to be recetved from the counserparty over the
CONTaR"s remalming life, to the extent that amount is positve. The risk may
b mitigated by having a master netsng arcangement betwesn & Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collaterd to 3 Fund 1o cower 3 Fund's
expidure 10 thie counkerparty

T the extent 3 Fund has & policy 10 Bmit te nel amount owed 1o of 10 be
risceivied fromm & single colnbeparty tnder Easlng swap agnesments, wch
femitation only applies W counterparies 10 OTC Swaps and doss ol apply 1o
centrally deaned twaps whiene the counter party 5 3 cenral OUnlEpETy OF
derivatives dearing onganization

Credit Default Swap Agreements  Certain Funds may enter into

credt default swaps on corporate, loan, sovereon, US. minicpal of LS
Treasury issues io provige 3 measure of protection against defaults of the
Fosuers (1. e . bo reduce risk where 3 Fund owns of has exposure i he
riherenced ablegation) of 1o Rake an A0t |ong of short poimion wWith fespect
te the likeditood of 3 partiodar isswer's default. Credit default swap
Apeernents Fvolve one party making a stream of payrments (refamed 1o 4
thes by of pratectian) to anather party (e seller of praotecion) in axchange

fior the right to reveive a spedfied retem in the event that te referenced
enlity, obligation of index, a5 spedfied in the svap sgreement, undengoes
cetain edit event As a seller of protection on Tedit default swap
agresments, 3 Fundwill generaly reveive froen the buyer of protecsien a ficed
rate of ncome thaoughout the tenm of the ssap provided that e is no
redhit event At the saller, 3 Fund would effectively add leverage ta il
prortiolio because, in sddtion Do woaal pel asiers, the Fundwould be
subject b invesiment exposure on the notional amaount of the awap

It & Fand is & seller of probecton and a credt svent aodurs, & defined under
the terms of that particular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either () pay 1o the
banger of protection an amount equd o fhe notional amount of he swap and
take delivery of the referenced obligation, other defiverable obligations or
unckrhying securities comprising the referenced index or i) pay a net
cetifement amount in the form of cash or sequities e o the nofional
arnciant of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced obligation o
underhing securities compaising the referenced index. If 2 Fund is 3 buyer of
profection and & edt event oooirs. a5 defined under the terms of that
paricular swap agresment, a Fund will sither (1) recerve troem te <eller of
protection an amdunt equal to the noSonad amount of the tiwap and deliver
the feferenced oidigaton, other deliveratie abligatons o underying
securities comprising the referenced index or (i) receive a net <etfement
amount in the form of cash or secunties equal o the notiona] amount of the
swap less the recovenyvalue of the relerenced obligatien of enderlying
sequrities oomprising the referenced index. Regoveny values are estimated by
market makers considering either industry staniand recovesy rates of entity
spedfic factors and considerations uni a credit event ocours If & cedit event
hias oooumed, the: recovery vahpe is determined by a fadlitated aucion
witveredry & munimmum number of dlowabde beoker bk, together with a
spedfied valuation method, e ubed 1o Claulate the se1dement vatue The
alfiny to detiver osher obligations may result In 3 cheapest-to-gdeliver opton
{the biyer of prasection”s right 1o choose the delverable chgation with the
Icweest value foliowing a aredl event)

Crifit default wvap agresments on credit indices mvolve one party making a
stream of payments (o another party in exchandge fof the mght to redenve 3
spedified return in the event of 2 write-down, prindpal shortfall, inberest
shorsfal or default of all or part of the referenced entities comprising the
aredit index. A creditindex is a basket of gedt insinements of exposures
desegnied to be representative of seme pant of the credit maket &5 5 whaole
These indces are made up of reference aedits that are judged by a pall of
dealers to be the most liguid entities in the oredit default swap marker based
on mhe sector of Se index Components of te indices may indude, but are
ot Bmited to, investment grade securities, high yiekd sequrifies, asiet-baded
se0s fes, emergeng markets, andior vanous credit rabings within each secor
Creditindices ane raded using cedit defaull swaps with standardered terms
induding a foced spread and standard maturity dates. An index credit default
swap references o the names in the index, and if there is a defauly, the aedt
event is seted bated on that name"sweight in the indee The composition of
the indices changes perodically, uswally every six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weight i the index. A Fund may use qedit
default swaps on cedit indices to hedge a portiolio of cedit default swaps or
bonds, which I3 less expensive than it woud be 1o buy many cedi defaut
owaps to achieve 3 similar effen Creckt default swaps on indoes ae
instruments for profecting investors owning bonds against default, and
traders use them o peulate on changes in aedt quality

Il redhit spresds, represented in sbaclute terms, wtilized in detemnining
the marked value of Tedt default swap agreements on corporate, boan,
sorireign, LS. mumdpal of U5 Treasury issies a4 of pemnod end, it ary, an
disclosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Fnsestments. They serve & an indicator
of the currend stahss of paymentperormance sk and represent the likelibood
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or risk of geaus for the referenced entity. The implied aredit speead of a
partioutar referenced entity refizcrs the cost of buyin giselling protection and
iy incade uplont payrments reguened to be made 1o entef nto the
agreement. Wider aedit spreads represent a detesionation of the referenced
entity's credit soundness and a greater [ikeshood or nsk of default or oher
credit event octuming & defined under the tems of the agreement. For credit
default svap agnetrents on asset-Dadied Securites gnd credt indices, the
quoted marke? prices and resudting values senve as the indicator of the qurrent
status of the paymentperfrmanace rigk. noeasing market values, in absolute
tesmns when compared [o the noticnal amaunt of the swap, represent a
deferioration of the referenced enfity's cred? soundness and a greater
[kelihcod or risk of default or other oredit event oourming a5 defined under
thie termns of the Joeeement

The maximum potential amount of future paaments (undisoounted) thal

a Fund a5 & seiber of prodecion could be required o make under 3 oredi
default svap agresment equats the notional amount of the agresment
Hortinal amounts of eadh indivics oedt gefault swap agreement
outstandng as of period snd forwiech 2 Fund is the teller of protection ane
disdosed in the Nates 10 Schedule of investments. These potential amownts
wiould be partially affset by any recovery values of the repectve refenenced
obligations, upfnont payments redeived upon éntering inlo the agreement, or
net amounts received from the settiement of buy protection gedit default
twap agreements entered into by 3 Fund for the same referenced entity o
entities

Imterest Rate Swap Agreemeris Cerlain Funds are subject bointerest rate
risk exposure in the nomnal coprse of pursuing teirinvestment objectives
The vaue of the foed rate bonds that 3 Fund holds may decreate ifinterest
rates rise. To help hedge against this risk and to maintain its 2ty to
generate income at prevaling market rates, a Fund may enter into interest
rate svap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exchange
by & Fund with another party for iheir respective commitment to pay or
recene interestan the nodona amoent of |:I|'iI'ID1Z-&1 Certain forms of interesty
Fabe S SOnesments mdy indude: (1) inbenedl rate caps, under whidh, in
et or 3 premium, one Pty agrees Lo make payments 1o he other to the
extent thatintenest rases eoceed 4 edlied rane, of “cap”, (i) intenest rane
Nors, under whidh, in retum for a premiom, one party agress 10 make
DyTreents 1o fe ather o the extent that interest fases Tall below a speatfied
rabe, of “floce™, (1) interest rate collars, under which a party slls 3 cap and
purchates a foor or vice versa in an attempd 1o prodect itelf against interest
rate mowerments exckeding given MEnEmum of Faamurm levels, () callabie
Imterest rate wvaps, under wiich the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consderation for the fight to early terminate the swap transaction in wisole,
at 2erg 006t and af 3 predetemmined date and Ume price 1o he I'f'-i-‘-uflfln’-‘i.’l e,
{v) spreadiocks, which allow the interest rate svap users to lodk in the
forward diflerential (or spread) betawen the interest rate swap rate and 3
spicfied benchmark, or (4) bass seaps, under whath g pares can
enchange vanable interest rates based on different segments of money
kLS

T. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|} Principal Risks In the nomal course of business, the Funds (or Acguined
Furdis), if applscabile) irsde fn sndal mstruments and enter into Snandal
Iransachons where itk of potential boss edsts due bosudh things a5 dhanges
I the manket {market nk) or falure of inabslity of the afher party (o a
transachan 0o pertorm (redit and counterparty risk), See bélow hor a detaled
description of select prindpal risks

Fund of Funds Risk To the @aent thal ceemam Fundgs imest ?Jlﬁfeﬂtijlh' all
Of their respedive asets in Acjuined Fundis), the nsks ssodatedwith
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investing in these Funcs will be docely related bo the rises assodated with the
senrites and other irvestments held by the Aoquired Fundfs). The atilitg of
thie Fusnds b achise Thisir respecinoe inves Irenl oby s may depend upon
the abiliey of the Acquired Fundis) to achieve their respective investment
oiedivies There can be 1o d4siprance that he mvestment objecte of amy
Acrpined Fund(s) will be schieved. The NAV of an Acquiring Fund wall
fluchsate i responie 19 dhanges in the reipedive NAN of the Aoguend
Funde) in which it imesis

In the rormal cowrbe Of business, Atqueted Fund(s) rade findnaal i rurments
and enter inio finanda fransactions where sk of potential loss exists due to
changes in the market {market risk), or falure or inabikity of the other party 1o
a tramsaction 1o perfom (oedt and oounterparty risk)

Market Riskz & Fund™ ivestments i Snancesl dematne i strurments and
other finandal instruments expote the Fund to vanouws risks sudh a4, but naot
limited £o, interest rate, foreign {mon-L 5 ) currency, equity and commedity
nisks

Interest rate rigk is the ik that fixed inoome securites and ofher instuments
hetd by 2 Fund may dedine in walue becaute of an indrease in interest rates. if
nominal interest rates ise, thevalye of certain fieed income seowifies held by
 Fund would likely derease. A nomingd interest rate can be desaibed a5 the
sum of a redl interest rabe and an expected infation rate Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredctable. and 3 Fund may lose money if
thiese chandges ane nat anticpated by Fund management. A Fund may nol be
atile 1o hedge againt dhanges @ inbenesl rates or may chiooie nat o do 4 for
Cost ol cheer reasond. n Sadon, amy hidges miny not work 35 intended

Couration s & measre used (o delemmine the sensiivly ofa SEQUARys prce 10
chianipes I iNDEreSt FAES AT InGOOraEs 4 seasity's vield, mupon, finad
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Convexity is an
additional measure used o understand 2 secunity’s o Fund’ interest rate
sensitity that measures the rate of dhange of duration in response 1o
changes ininterest rates. Fioed income securiBies with longer durasions tend
tor be more sensitive to changes in inferest rates, uswally making them more
vilatile than secmities with shorter durations. A wide vanety of factors can
calse interest rates or vields of U 5. Trezsury secuities (or vields of other
fypies of bomdk) torise (2., central bank monetary podicies, inflaton rates,
general aoonormc oonditions, e ). This is expecially tnae under cument
condions because interest rates and bond yields are near historically fow
lewids. Thass, the Funds curmently face 3 heighiened livel of risk assodated
with rising inlenest rabes andéor bond vields. Thas could be diiven by a variety
of tactors, Inclding baut nat limted b0 central bank encnetany polndes,
changng inflation or real growth raes, general econamic condifions,
increasing bond rsuances or redsced market demand for low yieldng
investrents. Further, while U5 bond markets have steadly grown over e
past three decades, deaber "market making™ ability has remained relatively
stagnant. Given the importance of intermediary “market making™ in creating
& robust and active mazket, foved income seoutifies afe ourrently
fadngingreased wolatlity and Bquidity nisks. All of these factors, collectively
andior indvideally, could cause a Fund 1o lose value. If the Fund |ostenogh
valse, thee Fand could face increased Unitholder redemptions, which coud
further impair it performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely affected
witven & large Untholder puechases of redeems [arge smounts of umts, which
cam dcur 4t any Sme and may impact tae Fund in the <ame manner a3 a ligh
volume of redemplion requests. Large Unithobder fransachions may impact
thie Fand's Bgundty and net atset value. Sudh ransacions may also indesse
the Fund's trarsaction costs o otheraise cause the Rund to perfcem
differently than intended. Moreower, the Fund is subject 10 the risk that
orifver Linkthoddess muay miake imvestiment dedisions based on the choices of &
large Unitholder
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A Fund may have significant expaosure toissuers in the United Kingdom. The
United Eingacen’s withdrawal from e European Umion my impact Fund
rieharres. This dedision may cause wubstanial volatility in forsign exchange
rarkets, bead toweakness in the exchange rate of the Batish pound, resultin
A sustainisd period of market uncertenty, and deabilize sorme or all of the
other Buropean Urion member countries andfer the Euraaone

Foriign fmon-105.) securities in this report ane dassfied by the oty of
moorpoeation of 3 holdng In certain instances, a security’s ountry-of
incerporation ray be diffrent fiom its countny of stononmac sxpodure

1f a Fundimvests directly in foreign fnon-1 % ) cumenides or in secunities that
trade in, and receive revenues in, fonsgn (non=U 5 ) currendes, of in finanaal
derivalive instruments that provide expodure to foreign {non-U5 ) currendies,
itwill bee subiect to the risdk tat those currendies will deding in value relative
to the base qumendcy of the Fund, or, in the cxse of hedgng posiions, that
the Fund's base umency will dedine in vale refative to the cumency being
hedged Curmency rates in foreign countries may fluchuate sgnifcantly over
short periods of dme for a nurber of reasons, indudng duanges n interest
rates, intenvention or she failure todntervene) by U5 or foreign govemaments,
ceniral banks oF dupranadond entibes wdh 4 the lemational Manetary
Fund, or by the smpostion of crrency oontmals or other politcal develcpments
in the United S2ates or abroad. As a result, 3 Fund's investments im foreign
aerency-denominated secuntied may fduce the Fund's returms

The ket values of eqaties, such 35 comemon St and prefermed Seourities
o equity related investments such as futures snd aplions, hawe histonically
risen and fallen in periodic cpdes and may dedine due 1o general market
condtions which are not spedfically related 1o 3 particular company, such 3
real or perceived adverse economic condifions, changss in the general
gutlook for corporate eamings, changes in interest of cumendy rates, public
health emengendies, sich a5 the spread of Infectious Ainess or diseae, o
adverse investor sentiment generally. They may also dedine due to factors
which afect 3 particular industry o industries, widh 35 lbor shomages o
Incredsed produchon costs snd oompentve condiBond within an indutiny
Different types of equity seourities may react differently to these
disvelopments. Bouity seoxinies and equity relsted imvestmients generally huve
gredter market price wolatlity than Soed incomme tecunties

The: Fumds may IRest i certan irstnaments that mely in sceme fadhion upon
LIBGE. LIBOR is an average nterest rate, detemnined by the CE Benchmark
Administration, that banks charge ane angther for the wse of short-lemm
maney The United Kmgdom's Rrandal Conduct Authority, which negulates
LIBOR, has announced plars to ultimately phase cut the use of LIBOR There
remEns uncertzinty reqanding future utilization of LIBOR and the nature of
any replacernent rate (e g, the Sequred Cvernight Rnanang Rate, whichiis
mntended o replace U5 dotfar LIBOR and measures the cost of geernight
bodrowings throwgh repurchase agresment ransacuons collaterafized with
LS. Tregsury securities). Any potential effecs of te transation sway from
LIBOR cn & Fund of on certain instruments e whidh 3 Fund imests can be
difficuln o ascentain, and they may vary depending on a vasiety of factors. The
Iransithon may aiso reslt in @ reduction in e vaue of certain instruments
held by & Fund or a reduction in the effectivensss of relased Fund transactions
siach a5 hedges, Ay such effects of the ranstion asay from LIBOR, a5 well
a5 other unforeseen effects, could result in fosses to & Fund

Begnning in January 2020, gobal fnandal markets have expemenced and
ey continue bo experience significant wolatility resulting from the spread of a
nowel coronadnus known as COVID-19. The outheeak of COMIC-19 has
resylted in fraved and border restrictions, quarantines, supgly dhain
disruptons, bower consumer demand and general matket uncertanty, The
glatal egoncmy, the economies of cenain nations and indvided issuers have
been and may conftinue 1o be adversely affected by COVID-19, parficulay in

light of the mnterconnectivity beaween economies and finandal markets, 28 of
which may negatively impact the Funds' perfimance. in addition, COVID-19
and govemmiental reiponses o COVID-19 may negatiely ingpact the

capatilines of the Funds' service providers and disrupt the Funds' operations

Crecit and Cownterparty Risks A Fundwall be exposed fo oedit ik 0

par ies with whom it rades andwil also bea e risk of seqdement default
& Fund minimizes concentrations of aedit risk by undertaking ransactions
with a large nuember of oustomers and CoUREpartes on recogized and
reputable mochandges, where applicable. OTC defivalive ransacions are
subject bo the itk that a cunterparty io the ransacBon will not fulfll it
contracudl obligations to the osher party, & mary of the protecions afforded
to centrally deared dernvative transactions might not be avadable for OTC
desivative ransactions. For derivatives raded on an exchange or through a
central couriter party, creditrisk reddes with the credisworthiness of

the Fund's deanmg broker, or the deaninghouse itself. rather than with a
oojnterparty in an OTC derivative rarsaction. Changes in regulation relating
1o @ Fund's wie of derivatives and relased nstruments oould patent aly lmit
of Bmpact the Fund's abality to investin denvatives, limit the Fund’s ablity to
emgloy certain srategees that use defivatives andior adversehy affect the value
o perioemance of Genvativies and the Fund A Fund could bose money if te
issuer or quaranior of 3 Sxed Income sequnty, or the counbeparty e a
finandal derivalive insuments onirad, repundhase ageement of & loan of
portiolio securifes, is unable of unwiling 1o make timely prindpal andfor
interest payments, or to ofhenwise bonor its obligatons. Secunites and
finandal dervative instnuments are sulect 10 vaning degrees of credit rick,
whiich may b reffected in credit ratings

Similar to credit mdk, a Fund may be exporsed b0 counterpanty risk, of the sk
that an instilaion or otheer entity with which a Fund has unsetied o open
ransactions will default. FIMKCO, as the Manager, minimizes counterpaty
fisks bo the Funds through a ember of ways . Prior to enteringinto
transactions with 3 new counterparty, e PIMCD Counterparty Risk
Comnmties condedts an extensive qedi reiew of such counterparty snd mst
appioeee thie uie of sudh counterpaety. Furthenrmore, paruant bo the bemms of
the undetying conract, io the extent that unpaid amounts owed 10 3 Fund
xceid 4 precetermned trethold, sech counterparty shall ddvance collateral
1o a Fund in the Tomm of cash of securitied equal invalue to the unpaid
Armount cwied 10 & Fand A Fund iy invest such collaneral in sequniies of
oithed mistruments andwall typically pay inlenest o the counterparty on the
codl ateral received, If the unpaid amount owed 10 2 Fend whsequently
decréases, 3 Fund would be requined 8o return 1o the counterparty 3l o 3
portion of e collateral previcusly adwanced. FIMKCO's attempts to mirimize
oounberparty risk may, however, be unsuccessful

All frarsactions in Bsted secanties are settled'paid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties, The sk of default is considered minimal, as delivery
of senurities sold is only made once 3 Rand has received payment. Papmentis
made on 3 purchase cnce the seaurities have been delivered by the
colmnterparty. The track will fail if either party fails oo meet it obiganon

[b) Other Rizks In general, each Fund may be subjed to additional risks,
inclisding, but nod mited to, risks related to govemment regutation and
intervendon in firandal markets, operational risks, risks assodated with
finandal, economic and global markes disruptions, and cybersecurity risks
Flease refer to eadh Fund's offening documents for 2 more detaled
desiption of the ks of mvesting in e Fund

Market Disruptions Risk The Funds e subect 1o investment and
operational ks assodated with finandal, economic and other ghobal market
developments and dsupsions, induding those arising from war, termorism,
mruarkel FampULAB0n, QovEmmen [ InEnenmons, deefaults and shundowns,
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political changes or diplomatic developments, public hesith emengendies
{such a5 the spread of infecious diseases, pandemics ard epidemics) and
naturalfemvironmmental disasters, which can Al negatively Inpact the searities
rarkets, nterest rates, auctons, secondary radng, ratings, aedi rsk,
millanon, deflason and afer oo relating 1o te Fund's invesaments of the
Manager's operations and casse 3 Fund 1o lode value. Thets events may have
ackerse bong-ermn effects on the LS, snd world sconormies and markets
genieraly. Thete svenls can atsoimpair the technclogy and other opserational
systems ppon which a Fund's senice providers, nduding PIMCO as the
Furds” investment adviser, rety, and could otherwise disrupt a Fund's senvice
providers’ ability 1o fulfill Eheir obligations t the relevant Furd. For example,
the spread of an infectious respiratory lIness caused by a novel sirain of
coronadrus known a5 COVID-19) has caused valatibty, sewere market
dishcations and liquidty constraints in marmy markeds and may adversely
affect 3 Fund's investments and operations

Gowernment Intervention in Financial Markets Federd, state, and other
guwernments, their requiatony agences, of self-reguFlory crganizations may
take actons that affect the requiation of the instruments kn which a Fund
eneests, or the issuers of such instruments, Inways that ane unforeseesble
Legalation of requbaticn may alsa change the way inowhich  Fund insef is
requlated. Sudh legslation or regulaton coudd limet or predude a Fund's
abality b @chiewe s Enaestment objective. Furemmone, wlatile Bnandal
rarkosts can expotes 3 Fund 1o greater market and liquidity rek and patentia
ditfiqulty in valuing portfolio nstruments hedd by the Fund The value of 3
Furd’s hoddings is 5o generally subgect to the nsk of futere local, national, o
global economic dsturbances based on urknown weaknesses in the markets
inwhidh & Fund invests. In addition, it s not certainm that the U5 Govemment
will intervens in response 10 a future market dsturbance and the effect of any
such future intervention cannod be predicted 16 s difficult for isswers o
prepare for the impact of future finandal downtums, dtfough companies can
Sk 10 10en Oty and manage hulure unoertenbes Mough rigk managenment
[HOgrams

Reglatory Fisk Rnancid entities, sch &5 imvestment companies and

e TmEnT advisers, afe generally subject 10 exiensive govemment regulstion
and intervention, Gowernment regulation andior interventen may change the
way a Fund is regulated, affect the expenses inowved drectly by a Fund and
1w vl o i invesstrveenies, and limit andéor prediede a Fund's atality to
achieve its imvestment objecive, Government regulation may change
freuendy and may have signficant adverse corsequences. Moseover,
gowerniment regqulstion may hane unprediciable and urintended effects

Operational Risk An mvestmentin a Fund, Bke any fund, can invohee
operatcn I'Ifi‘ia'lfn;ﬂ'] from factors such & processing erors, human emors,
nadequate of faled internal of extesmal processes, failues n b and
technckogy, changes in personnel and errors caused by third-party service
providers. The oommenae of any of these failures, emors or breadhes could
resiltin aloss of micemanaon, requiatony scruting, reputabonal damage of
gther evenits, amy of whidh could have 3 matenal adverse effect on a Rund
While 2 Fund seeks o mirimize such events through controls and eversight,
there may 4l be failures that could cause bosses 1o the Fund

Cyber Security Risk AS the use of technology has become mone prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds hiave become potentially more suscepSble
Lo operational and infermation eounty rsks resuliEng from breadhes in cyvber
security. A breach in oyber secunty refers to both infentional and
unintenSional cyber events that may, among other things, cause a Fund o
bose peogristarny information, suffer data comuption andfor destuction of loe
operational capadty, result in the unauthonzed release or other misuse of
confidential information, or ciherwise dampt nomal business operations
Cyber security failures or breachies may resdtin fnandal losses 1o a Fund and
its Unitholders. These Esilres or breaches may also result in disrupions o

busivess operations, potentially resulting in financial losses; interference with
& Fund's abdity to caloul #e its ned asset value, process Unitholder
ransactions of otheryise bransao business with Unitholders, irpediments 1o
trading; volations of spplicable privacy and odher laws; regul stoey fines:
penates, reputational damage; remburterent of ofh er axmpertalion cosls;
additional compliance and oyber security risk management oosks and other
Aderie conGequences In addteon, whasnbal costs may be indurmed in ofder
[0 prévent any oyber incdents.in the future

E.MASTER NETTING ARRAN GEMERTS

Thee: Funds may be subject 1o vatious nedting amrangements {“Master
Agreements ™) with select counterparties. Master Agreements govem the
terms of certain rancactions, and are infended to reduce the countenparty risk
assonated with relevant ransactions by spedfying gedt protection
mechanisms and providing standardization that is intended to improve legal
cemainty. Each fype of Master Agreement govems cerain gypes of
trasactions. Different types of ransicsons may be raded out of different
legal entites of affibates of 4 particulas anganization, feultiag in the need for
mulbple agresments with 4 single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are specific 1o unique operations of diferent sseel types, they aliow 3 Fund 1o
diose out and net its total expoture 1 3 cunterparty in the event of a default
wath reqpect o all the ansactons governed under J singe Mater
Agreement with & counlerparty, For finandal reporting purposes the
taterments of Assets and Liakilities generally present derivative assets and
lisbelities on 3 gross basis, which reflects the fill risks and exposures prior 1o
netting

Maser Agreements can also help limincounterpary sk by specifying

coll ateral posting amangements &t pre-aranged eposire bevels. Linder monst
Master Agreements, collatera is routinely ramifemed if the total nel exposure
by CeFLEN Aransactions (net of edsting collateral already in place) govemed
under the relevant Master Agreement with 3 counieeparty in 3 given acoount
enceids 3 speafied threshold, which typcally ranges from 2et0 to §250,000
depending on the oounterparty and the type of Master Agresment. Unitsd
Stages Treasury Bl and W05, dollar cash are generally the prefemed forms of
coll Steral, Although other Secuities may b used depanding on the erms
cauined in the applicable Master Agreemnent Sedurities and cash pledged as
collzteral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Uabilifes as
eitfier a component of Ivestments at value (Secuntes) or Deposits wath
cownterparty. Cash collateral received is not bypically held in 2 segregated
acoount and 35 such is reflecied as a liability on the Satements of Assets and
Liabilities a5 Depotits from counterparty. The market value of n]l'l'r'i-'."lJ..lllLiEE-
received s collateral is not reflected a5 3 componient of HAY. The Rund's
e Al exposune RO QoUMErparty risk Can change sulbstanbaly withan & short
peeriond, as it is aflected by each Wansadion sbject to the redevant Mgl
Agreement

Master Repurchase Agreements and Giobal Mater Repurchase Agreermenty
finchvicually and collecively " Master Repo Agreements ™) goverm repurdhase.
fewerse repurchate, and sale-biback rarsactions bebwesn the Funds and
sefect counterparties. Master Repo Agreements mantain provisions for,
afong ofher things., iINRIAGoR, incore payments, ety of defaull and
mantenance of collateral. The market value of transactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledped o received, and the net exposire by
countesparty a5 of period end are dsdosed in the Notes 10 Schedule of
Investments

Master Senunifies Fonwand Transadion Agresments (T Master Farward
Agreements”™) goven ertain fonward settling wansactions, such as TBA
seapities, delayed-delivery or sale-buyback ransactions by and
beetwen thee Funds and seled colnterparnes. Thie Master Fonsiand
Agresments maintain provisions for, among other things, initiation snd
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8. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund is subject to the following fees paysble at the idlowing anraa rates Stated a5 3 percentage of the sverage daly net sssets of eadh Fund, or Class, if
applicable, taken separately)

Fres

Fund Managemem Bdvisary Blministra tive Agency Distribution
PIKCT Bermuda Fereign Low Duration Furd 1Z5% - - - -
PIMGD Bermuda US. Law Duration Fund 0ZE% - - — -
PIMCO Eurs Total Return Fund - 0 45%! 0553 002% ik E
PIMCO Real Retwrn Furd - {145%% b} o 002% ik}
PIMGCT Shert-Tarm Strategy

= A a4 - - 010%™ 515

= CRBD - - - - -

& ][aP) - - - - -

* )LD - - - - -

. P 0.4 %" = = 010%™ 0 &7 %"

= B0 0&%™ - - 010%™ (67 %™

. Top B 0 farp Vol i g o s o e aeta vy o ke s o) o U v ool Y e Pl s oeume 1 5% e v o b St 50 S0 o 3 sl STy o ooy £ 557% o v appley 0l e O 500wl
i oy oo vy el 1% gl v o e Vs ot a0 e i e £ ) Rl

. Tor UL e P e i st 0 o i o it i o e et ' e i el 29 por s gl i i e 6 58wl e Vo et vty 8 5% por atveaw sl - 0 ! U
malive o de st mr ot and 8 1S e e e ou o o i P s ver ey & ey 3O 130 el

= T AL vy i oo ol ot @ it o b v vl e et e ot P’ i ol 81 0% o aronrm sl e vl e L S0 i i i ' ot oy 7 3 s e 0 ! £ S
wllpn o we Fons'r 2 avers and 8 I poe aveaw gy pa o i i Vi s s aperny o oy 00 | il

B T B Findl Rtre Vo' o rithect 1. idvicery w22 sy e 20 by acere vl o oo Vollpan. 7% e v sl e B Vrr B0 mallim b Pl e ety 1M o e iy o v et SH0 mdlon vl P 1
i vy g% gl om ol e Voo ey oty i e 2 5] il

= T FAL ) Fpal e Fand & ritbeec 1 o i it S 208 v e ot i ot vl o 2 P Pl 300 % o e i 2 i Pt S0 walom o vk Pl v et vty & 7% e s aplien v o vy 40 il iy
s ovr sty o 59 e v ey e o 1 s el e et i ey ¥ L0SY mdipe

L) T FIAEC Fparl et Fad i salyncs 13 dictbaii v S0 v il i i et o ke o i el 8.07% s amea e gl 0 B S S500 ol 1 it P st it 3V poie v i 0 By o 100 il el 0
s 2o v et 5.7 e e e ot il o Futhfs 0 ity e 4157 e

= T Ul o T v e s ey oA vaneed et ot Tkt FET (Pl ol Ky [l “pendey ar) o e 1t o e Dt 0y et o et oY i i ey 100 o) ol 5 PG, liet i el Bt 8 20 21 e ot e i i
el geslcy e ot e 0 P et oh ol o 7 VPG e o e T v ey 0 o il 8 5 1 ST, et 0 o vl B 5 4 [T ey Tk diid ey i a1 P P e it o el B
AT o Dl o it o e e iy v i g, e i i e 1 P o ey 0 i Ve iy i i o (i o o el B Sl el (T 6 oot 138 M 1 S i i

& T Ul T 1 30 ey i S ey B e e S O it r ik iy by T 0 e il v B it oy 1 SRS ot e ok adand poley o8 i Bolear 0 . ot by Sl B 7 SOV Ul i ey o T
et ey i o v -0 PG i obe o el b T BP0 it o T iy pnly S Meaie TSN 1 st 2t o il B 8.0 [Ty e it P aind ey i  hiarie | PTG e e g sl B
& 0 Sl wer ety Sk el gy v 0% g graaee, sk v sy wiall e F (PR o iy 2 vy F she iy o b ol i o et vl S0 g o T 0 e R 1 ST S

L Tir Eliey & s 0 i i Mg YOG i el ot g FIET (Wil it B Pk iy s e i e plied o Lt Bt 2ty il vl v sty Ytk vl gy vty o B 8 P55 vt e e il B 81 20% 21 i ot ity 1V b
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by v iy vy o e i e P e e e ol e 2% i gt ity ot ! iy e i Bt 1 PN 147y e ke e e 1.50% 2 e ot e f i o’ i it ot | (Mied % tiee iy e el e
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The rrunagement, advisery and adrministrative fees, if applicable, are puid monihly in amears to PIMCO for providing of amanging for the provision of advsony,
adminishrative and third-party seraces induwding aud, arstodal, rustes, porttoho acoounting, routing legal, transter agent and printing seraces. The agency and
distribution fees, if apgficable. are paid monthly in amears to remburse finandal intermedianies that provide sendces and distibuBion refating 1o the units of the
appdicable Fund {or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the PIMCO Bermisda Foreign Low Duration Fund and FIMCO Besmuda U % Losw Duraion Fund, FBMCO
out of its management fee, will bear. the costs assaated with advisory and administrative senices, 0.1% of whidh is designated to cover administrafive spenses, in
exchange for fis fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of certain thind-party senvices required by the Funds, induding awdit, custodial, mstes, portfiolio acoounting. legal,
transfer agent and printing services. FIMKCO, and not Unitholders, woukd benefit from amy peice deease in the oost of such third-party sendces, induding dedreases
regulting from an ingease innet xsets. In additon, with respect to Funds that are subject to an administrative fee, PIMCO generally mates a profit on sudh 2 fee

As noted in the table above, certan Funds and Classes of Funds ane not idect bo man sgemenl, adisory, sdmnismatve, agency of dsmibuteon fees. FIMCOO Japan
Ltd, PIMCO"s afifiate in Japan, is pad a fee from the Japaness wvestment Trusts or osher imeesment vehicles that investin such Funds or Classes and a poriion of
sipch fee is then 2located to PIMCO to compensate it for it senices, 55 applicable

The Funds (or Classes thereof, a5 applicable) may bear otfeer expenses related to their operation that are not oovered by the management, ad,ﬁ:r;.n_ administrative,
agency of dsmbution fees, indudng butnat limited to; {) taxes and geemmental fesees, (i) broker e Tees and commessions and othes pOFTCIG TANSaction expenses;
(i) ooses of boamowang mioniey, induding interésl expende; (n] extraccdnary pensss, indudng oots of inigation and indemnification expences; and () ay Expensss
dllecated of allocade to g speafic Class of wnits, a5 applhcable. PIMICO has paad the onganize tional expenses wsocsted with the areation of each Fund

PEACO has pad the organizationdl expentes ssodated with the aeaton of e Trust Bfurther Funds are laundhed, such costs directly atinbutable to the relevant
Fured muay be bome by the rélevant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRARSACTIORS

Thie Imvestrment Adwiser is 3 related party to the Finds and is a magority-temed subadiany of Allianz Asset Management AG Fees paid to the related party, if any, are
disdoded m Note 3, and dooneed relsted pady Tee amounis, if amy, are disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liablities

Certan Funds aré permitted to purchase o sell securnities from or to centain related affiliated finds under spedfied condBons outlined in procedures adopted by the
Ivestmien Adviser The procedures have been dessgned 1o entsune that amy' purdhase o 3 of Seamites by a fund from of 10 anather fund that is or could be
considered an affilate by virtwe of having a cormmaon adviser (o affiliated investment advisers), is effected a1 the cument market price. During the period ended May
31, 2022, the Fundf) belows engaged in punchiases and sales of sequrities among affliated funds (amounts in thousands)

Fund Purch Bl
FIMCD Bastrrands Fosegs Loy Disrabon Fund 3 S50 3 X8
FIMED Bewrmucds UL Lows Durmen Fund 0 18
PIMCD Emar ging Markegs Bond Fund (M) 14,130 &6 68
FIMCO Euro Togsl Rietom Fund 18 a7
FMCD Faval Resem Fund L1 240
FIMCO Shoi t-Tarm Strakegy 16,277 3014

11. GUARARTEES ARD INDEMRIFCATIONS

Under the Trust's ooganizafionad dooements, certaen parties (ncedng the Trusiee and FIMICO) are mcemnified against certain liabilities that may anse out of
perfomance of their duties to the Funds, Addtionally, in the normal course of business, the Funds enter into contracts that contain a variety of indermification dauses
Thee Funds” masirnuen edqposuse widir e Srandements is unknown as it would imialve fulure daims that may be made ag@nst the Funds that have nod ye1
ooodrred. Howewer, the Funds have nothad prior daims o [osses pursiant (o thess confradts

12. URITS OF BENEFICIAL IHTEREST

The Trust may saue up 1o S00,000.000,000 units. The Fends may have a significant concentration of risk, a5 certain Uinitholders own mone than 1en percent of the net
assets of each regpecive Fund Sudch concentration of Unitholders’ interests could hawe 2 materid effect on the Funds in the event these Unitholders request to
withdraw wibetannal amonte of cagntal an e same t Subricrapions and rederpiaons of units of the Funds ane denominated in the Funds” NAY currency and
comverted 10 the Funds’ funcional qurmency at fe spot rate on the ransaction date. Units of eadh Fund ae fssued withcat par value. The Tristee, with the consent of
the Manager, may in the fubure geate and offer an sddtional Fund or Class or Classes of units
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(U stwere 35 follows (units and amounts in thousands*)
Vour Ended Your Erced Yoar Ended Y Erded
iy 71, 2022 My 71, 202 Wy 71, W22 Ny 31, 1022
Units B pusl Urim Amant Unin Amoar lnin sl
At for unie sakd f B e 1 % m [ 140 N Nk
&) Wi N H# L] L] S0 4311 & ms
Coxt of wri radeamad [Tl {2576 [ (26501 fLrai] 1,334 Y N
|50 L A L] L] R KK ossm 1180594
Mt [decrpers] nessking from
Fund uni? raresction 1.1 (355N [, S | (23 B3 8 (a3 B & (580G
Viewr Eniad Yiuur Enched Yar Enched Yowr Encded
My 31, 2022 My 71, 2022 Moy 31, 1022 Ny 31, M122
Unz Bt Unim hmont Unin Ampur lnin Az
Rmcaipn lor urie skl o TE3 W& L 1 EUR Xl Fe R BT |
} [EAL) [Ty [ 1w # ELTE] [T N& [ N
| D0 He T i el K Ny N N
| INR N Y » 1,33 L N MN'& i
| N Ne [T [ o T3 N T3 N
) (TRY N Ly Fal 2082 [ L] 1} L] MiA
J AR N A 18 575 R R L) M
Cort of wris rackwmad ne ] i L2 [as 0,930 (27 1.1 ]
J EAL) N R 25 (5,654 Ha MK N i
J 00F1 H& L Wy [m Ne N N Nix
J ONR Yk LY 2n 17,630 MR L) N8 Mk
J TRLRY L] L @n (2048 A NA N& Mi%
| (TR i R .35 CEATE LT 1Y N M
J AR N N B (1651 RA MK L] | 1]
M2 [decrmara] rking from
Fund it rarcesfon 1.1 | {33 0EH ¢ M (188 EUR 11,588} (711 ] 413
Yiur Erded
My 31, A2
Unm Ll
Paca i for uniw ssld
AL 18 ¥ 11535
C a0 14 14645
J UPY i 240
J S0 n 185
IFY il 18535
|50 1 JIE6 115,058
Coxt of i recesmed
ALD (e (26,8261
{250 (26045
11E: 1145500
S0 (] 2218
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Notes to Financial Statements

Yar Erclad

My 31, 222
Unm fapt
IFY L7 T S . |
150 115431 [VES ST
= — Courdt il
Fund unit meneecions LT B =

" 7w Sl My T mal aeetesty Nostding B s phan ek Dviesaned

13. REGULATORY ARD LITIGATION MATTERS

ifraton procesdings and are not aware of ar

et T A Fmi ¢ ]
WIS IO Audust 17
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INVES TMENTS IH SECURITRES 1
-ml{lf IHIR I ID'I'EE i

.}p- Hllllrlﬂ .Eﬂ
1000 doe 1 VIIZEGD E 2 @ el
100% do | DAO8/2053 1 &
1 500% due 1 00872053 §:} A
Hardia Lrpde Reabrediaieneh kad
BUS00% dus 1 0VINZ04T L] -]
L0 doe | DASI20E0 176 il
1.500% ds 100872063 18 i
2000%: due 1 DAGL2053 }11] | Fd
Mykrndit Ried leredt 55
1000 e | DAOR/2050 1405 wr
OO0 dus TOR2053 1.8 2m
1.500% due 1002053 et ] n
J000% doe 1 0EZMT [ |
J500% doe 1 DA0R20ED 50 n
Realiredii Danmark &5
1 000% dow TODHIZ050 1,066 Fiil
100 doe 1 DGA263 46 2
1500% due 1040812053 1% A
2000% due 1253 1w LF:
TS00% due DALTLTNT i 1
1,749
Imperial Eramds Fisamw PLE
RIS doe DTSN a1 1] 196
ATAT, lec.
1550% due | 2AORI20C0) el FiFd
Tetsl Carperate Bands & Hatin LIET
it $2EED
Fanaie Max
1 3564 due DTES2007 5 5
1. 386% o D0VES2GT 7 7
TATE% e 1 DAORI20N 1 1
A5 due D550 3 |
SI000: dus DSTR2043 1] L}
JE00% due DBTAZHI k] 18
Famain M, TER
JE00% choe OMORI2OET (ki 7 [:x ]
Frodle Maz
1A75% due 12NPS200T 1] 1]
Dimaie Bar
032% due DROGT06G -1 T
Total LLS, Government Ageaties 1,159
L= ERRTHT

L5, TREASLRRY DEERGATIORS 108.5%

Tresary luflatise Protected S maritie k)

QA25% due (PO 500 S5
ON25% due 01/P5°200°3 1 L
RUI2E% dow TOVES20 (B 158 1.o%
BA25% due DUIATI0S il ] 11E
BA25% due TIVIS005 f1x] 54
R125% due PRI0G i} [ifE]
B25% due DTIVSRI0H LI .20
BN25% due 1 D00 i [i2x]
DN25% due MSESRET &7 43
0 125% due SZE) 111] i
BTSN due VISTIG] k] ki
DN25% due 11152001 1,060 1, 0%
RA25% due DTVESR0GN (B 4,118 L0
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s PIMCO Real Return Fund

FRSLF&R
NN T VAN
s} 0
0 135% dee DINS2032 00 ] 1358 4 1,351
RIS due RS0 51 Ll
0 125% due [RAST52 amn am
0L 250'% due TTNS2025 1.4 1143
0 250% due [0V 52070 1585 1,1
0 5% due (BASZ50 145 135
D375% dus (TNST0E3 ] a
U375 dun DRSS Fiiz T
0L375% due DINS202T 1343 1428
DL375% due ORMSR0ET fad 13
0L500% due DRNS202E ) 10 2360
00 500% due (01752008 (1) 150 2502
0 E25% s RN S0 ) bal 1243
0 E25'% due M52 P L 113
0 E25% due A S2I6 1537 1,505
0 E35% due (EAST043 158 144
0 750% dus [DNS2008 1947 2037
0TS s RN52042 i i
0 70% due TN S2045 L 561
O E75% due DNSEUIY 1362 1431
D A75% due (RAST04T 55 540
1.000% dhe (R ST0HG AT i
1.000% due TN52048 B B
1.375% due [RNS2044 (1 2588 2067
1, 750% due (MAST0E 1047 1.Y50
7. 000% dus (NAGTIEG :ri] it
TA25% dus IBNSMD 1M Fin
L% due IRNST041 5l i
375% duee NS5 1311 1474
2 300% due MASZ0I W3 ar
3 T75% dus DENST03Z 15 X0
JEISY due DR i) a1l
JATEW due RN 5209 i 10
LLE. Tressary Beads
1 E25'% due 11NS2050 (1) 50 =T
Tetal LS Treasmry Diligations 489 553
[Ced 8501160

AT GAGE-BACEED SECURITIES 24%
AEEIT Tras

T150'% due DENS2IT 1 1
Base o Bmwwica Fuading Trast

3 1E2% due N G047 # 5
Bagview: Oppartanity Master Fand [Va Trst

3 A79% due IGFEZTGH 12 12
CIM Trast

2006 due MOST040 & &

Cemntrywide Home Loas Mestgage Pass-Thrangh Trast
1.586% due (WIS il b
C5 First Beatun Martgage Secaritivs Corp.

T % doe 01250002 b m
GEAMP Trasi

1.741% due: DR52005 (d) 18 18
G5R Martgage Lesn Trmt

T due DAISO03S 11 11
Hiwdamaer Marigagin

1,703% dus (652053 GEP B2 G
Hame Eqmity fased Trmst

1, TRE% dus (DV572006 i ] Bl
HE Bssed Secaritization hr!lr.ﬂju Trat

1.156% due (STS2017 k- -
IndyMlac IRDX Marigage Lean Trmst

1.436% due (V252035 112 o
1. 546% due (ST 116 105
JPMargan Maripage Trest

T 841 dus DRSNS I 1
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FRNCIFA

AT R L
L] [Lei]

Lehman X5 Trest

2155 due 1 20037 14 H k| I iz

Leng Ersc b Mestqags Lags Treat

1.741% due DEZ32035 i

Mulan Residentis] Faading Corparation I-Il‘l-ull FPass-

Thrangh Trest

1. 78% due 08752032 ] 5

Rirw R sidmtial Martgage Leas Trmt

2 T50'% due 0220059 1§ 13

Dptias Our Merigage Lass Trey

1 E61% diw 1 25034 [ix} fif

Reidemtial Mertgage Secorities 12 PLE

1500 dus EEME0T0 224 m ]

Sauss Bzset Smmnities Tresi

1.316% due 09250037 * | 13

Stratten Martgage Fanda g PLC

1 250% dus (I5ERE051 2= ) ]

Terwod P oo Meatgage Feacing Graviced FLC

1651 due 1 GE0051 13 154

Twiin Exidges FLC

1 ET0% dus (57 20053 in Pkl

‘WaMs Martgage Pass Threagh Corificates Trast

2 S due O2NT03Y 14 ¥ 15 15

Tetal Mbarigage-Bachord Secarithes 1580

Cest 41,586

Beapkires CLD [V DAC

(B0 dus 1 2715030 HiR 15 bl

Calra CLO W DAC

[US50% dum 1 TR0 T (1}

Gires vmar Plazs CLO BY

0 T o 1D 50 54

Harvest CLO XV DAE

[LET% due 1 1NRTOH 18 il

Mideeean Credia CLOY

LN dus DT 3202 2 (1] 185

DZLM BT Led.

LI due OTRE03E L[] ]

5D Lid

1590% du 0758030 K] [k

THL Crodit 'Wied River CLO Lid

1 128% due MAS20H 100 ]

Tedal AssetBacked Secarities -1

Cest $1.027

Amirafia Deverement Bamd

000 due (HT0ANTS K AGD i iz

Canad Gowernmesi Bead

4200 due 1 SORETEG LAl i 158

Framse Gowmsen Bead E)

[ 800 dhuw (K010 HIR rik) 3

0RO e DTS20 1] ]

000 due OIESE03 [ i 13

Italy Bmani Pulivanali del Tesore &)

(U800 dum (51507 1z fil ]

0400% due B5757030 ™ m

1ADDM duw DSTRTTES 1356 1450

Japam Government CPI-Limbed Band kI

(B8 due 03102031 ¥ A 168

0 00 dhue D30T 10,211 L]

Mesice Daversment laverastional Brad

450 dhw 1RSI MiR ] 17

Pem Governmen It ermablonal Bead

00 e EN 200 FEN 108 e

B.150% due DEN 20032 Fili] iz
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund (Con)

LU
167574 e 1172212022 s m
Tetal Gewwiiign banes 72

£ 1283}

BRF Paribas Banh
00 THOMG] A DBTNFOZE B a i
$0 41 (M) e DETE ¥ ¥ 5 g
QAO0% dos KZD ] ]
HSEL Bank PLE
5 Y
Sumitemn Misui
VL THON] dow DGDNGOZT 5 I
Swmitems Mitsui Trest Bank Lad
40 TO0M] des DETNAD 5 (i
VLA M) s DBUNTZE ¥ o I
B0 dow DETA 202 CBP k] ]
186
1. 260% de DR0GTET e ARG 5400 i3
Tatal Shart-Term [straments ]
Cut 5710
Tetal Iwmimints i Secaritin W 127.5% § 58487
CxmstdELTIE
Fimamcial Derivative
lestraments i) (0L1% ®1)
Cast or Prominms, an § 231
Dabes Pasets amd Liakilins, set 27 4% _nxmem
e Baaets 1000% % ARBET

HOTES TOSCHEOULE OF IVESTRENTS:

A zere balance may reflect actual amounts reunding to 434 than sne theusand

[3) The allozation of Tetal Investments by gesgraphie reglen as of May 31, 2022 s 119.2% of Net Assets In the United States and other csuntries
oemprising of 16.7% of Net Assets in aggregate.

(&) Whendssued security.

(] Prinsipal amcunt of security i+ adjusted for inflasion.

(dy Security 4 in default

(¢ Coupon represents a yield e maturty.

Payalibe fur
Enrrwwsing S tilem ot Wlaturity Ampum Frverse Repurchase
Caimrpasty Fate! Dats Bagrasnad'’ Agren BaALL
BSN i 7] [l 1 H 1,58

Payubln by
Barrawing Seithmeal M turiny Rmaunt Sale-Buykact
Caumtergarty FRate Date Date Barrwened ' Teamactions ™
N LEN'% osEaR £ £ 2.3 L 2 3361
Tetal Sale-Buyback Trammacten 13 338
Saq s vmpying nay Srvvanl g | Mg 311, S [
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)

Femaining Comtractual Maturity sf the Agresmants

Dvermighi and Oreatsr Than
C i tihosh L Usg % 30 duryd 3180 daya 0din Tatad

Rewerse Repurchase Agresments

% Govemmant Dby 2 [1kE] ] 07 ] i} $ ] ] w03
Total Reverss Regurchass Aqrerments [ i ED ] 0,278} [ 1] § 1] ] Mo, 387
Sale-Buyback Tramactions
05 Govesmmsnt Oetn & a2 [ 138 g ¥ 1 H e il
Tetsl Sale-Buybich Tramuetians § ] § 233 & a E a £ 2.338)
Total Barvewdngs ] (118} & (12,618 § 1] & 1] & 12,736
Payalle far Reverss Repurchase Agreements and Sale-Buylachk Transactians ¥ LI HE

The bobswan & & tom mdfy by coustenparyy of B maet el vifue ol B rowengs 8o (b nimcang Trandas e and colanees pledoedas vl i of May 31, 102

I Securities with an aggregate market valus of $12 854 have baen pledged as collateral undaer tha terms of the follewling master agresments as of May 21,

2022,
Regurchase
Agrerment Payable for Tatal
Precess Awverse Payahls far Berrewings and
b Rapurchase Sile-Buybast Paywhls far  Onher Finarcing Callataral
Caumterpary Recwivid Agroema mty Traniactianm Shart Saben Trarmaction  Fladgd Recaived] Pt Expesure”
et e Agretmend
7 0 4 |75&m & 1] 8 ] & # 1478 £ B4
] [22n 1} ] 25 1%
Securitis. Foraard Tranee bord A
s 1] 1] a.33 {i .38 i 1%
Tatal Barrewdngs and Other Finamcing Transactans & ] & 10387 & A28 & ]

Th g wemgar of BoTownge sovmarsdreg armey tis ganee] anded by 11, 2000w 513 061 o1 wwaighind soumgpn ivaa caie of (100 %. Avecogs bemwwongs mony i hude sde-boyback: v tor s rvarss rpamiaes
e F e dareg T pened

Fagtin lor mafw-bas bk S fwem. i ipdes: 310 of dafermed proe dreg

T e | DR hat . T byt |1 ] B o | menta (e Comnpety o i e o Gabvul Dopemeant Froo oty 50 nhar BEDEEN] DRI CO 08y b B o TR (rReSET 00 gieverned ande The
S Foad o g reamand i iR oy il iy T Mot B Whwsiyt Rhe L T Y =% Yt (o e T4 Dnr ey mlor i on oty TRt el aegaanit

} FINANCIAL DERFVATIVE | RETRUM ENTS: EXCHANGE TRADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED

s adized
Expiratan #af Appreciatian’ WVariagan Margin
Decriptian Type Memh Comracts  [Depeaciitien Rater Lisbiliey
I greh POREDA Inmeres s R March Funyes long I A ] H ™ b a 3 M
EaBabl SYen Kow (-] Sha 2 ar] 14 T T ]
BaroBTP 3, b i bad Fiilones it ! 3 i ]
tur-BIP 10-Yes Bored Jore htune shoit a 1] 13 1]
w mber Futns shant 7 ! 7 I
B re 3hart i BE kel 1]
- rem ber Furue Shart 3 3 (i}
k& w Sapmbe Fonre hitt 32 3 ] fl
Jag it b 5 1]
B shart 1] m 1 ]
o avury 5Fear Hoie Sepmnbe Fuiae long oo i 1 { 114
E Trespeory 10-Yaar Nase Se ber Fumre higi iVt a7 ] . (i}
; Shaty I 3 1 £ ]
¥ hail ] i 15 ]
05 Treazury Ukra 36 ear Bond Sepiembar Fuiunes Shot 3 5 . i)
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)

Umarea lied
Pay Recaive Matwity Haganal Marke1 Appreciation Warlation bargin

Flwaging Rty Finad Rat Amauni Walus Do pawcia ties) FEEnl Liakiliey
o™ N 576%) ER 1400 [ (= [ () 1 (] i)
Py 1. (% H] kL -] 3 1 i
Recieey'® D% 30 1] 14 1
P 1075 100 I amn 1] [Fi}
Py teroh L1 Ex Tobacos Dady
#bes e I rdix EUR A 3 i i]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund (Cont)
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)
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chedule of Investmentz PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Com)
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Real Returm Fund {Con)
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62,281 8,634
0 0

18 2

102 14

11 2

317 44

73 10
7,296 1,011
0 0

TBA 2,239 310
134 19
125 17

0 0
72,596 10,064
16,213 2,248
2,969 412
25 3

202 28
638 88

0 0

TBA 3,356 465
0 0

21 3

0 0

0 0

0 0

17 2

10 1

1 0

9 1

0 0

0 0
23,461 3,252
49,135 6,812

2021

31

2021 31
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2021 31

1,347 187
0 0
1,347 187
201 28
112 16
103 14
9 1

17
0 0
442 61
905 125
1,245 173
0 0
294 41
(514) (71)
43 6
1,068 148
1,408 195
0 0
® @)
(61) (®)
©)) @
1,333 185
2,401 333
3,306 458

184/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

905 125
1,068 148
1,333 185
3,306 458

0 0
0 0
6,199 859
9,505 1,318
39,630 5,494
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2021 31
3,306 458
(131,916) (18,288)
129,632 17,971
(1,616) (224)
1,642 228
(58) ®)
294 41
(513) 7))
30 4
TBA 7,420 1,029
43 6
19 3
356 49
TBA (11,959) (1,658)
@ )
2 0
0 0
0 0
2 0
2 0
2 0
(1,245) (173)
(294) (41)
514 71
(1,408) (195)
5 1
61 8
(36) ®)
(829) (115)
(6,545) (907)
9,549 1,324
(1,606) (223)
147,752 20,483

(150,146) (20,815)
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95,212 13,199
(94,160) (13,053)
0 0
6,601 915
56 8
28 4
84 12

18 2
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2021 31

19.08 2,645
0.41 57
1.10 152
1.51 209

20.59 2,854
7.91

49,135 6,812
0.99
0.95
2.03

0.01
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5,000

2021 31

0 3,226

200 1,802
19,482 100,873
589 246
1,062 481
22,194 143,165
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219/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JITF
2021 31 2021 31 2021 31 2021 31
16 1,655 10 1,103 333 13,075
4,526 81,947
an|  (7.642) @l  (5,094) @17 (28,250)
(10,360)|  (186,147)
68|  (5,987) B9 (3,991) 384 (15,175  (5,834)  (104,200)
2021 31 2021 31 2021 31 2021 31
88 5,587 38 422 390 7,826
134 4,012
5 404
13 835
29 1,566
47 644
37 1,139
@171) (10,802) an)| (1,922 G| @,627)
(270) (8,150)
(®) (581)
@4 (1,648)
(50) (2,806)
(3,029)|  (44,761)
(68) (2,098)
(83) (5,215) (3,188)  (51,444) @34 (1,500) 309 6,199
2021 31
489 38,036
161 16,732
50 4,921
5 526
240 22,516
2,870 310,406
“23) | (32,168)
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@74 | (@8,152)
(41) | (23,433)
(10) (985)
322) | (30,350)
(1,402) | (151,520)

1,243 136,529

13
14
US GAAP
2021 31
2021 31
15
2021 12
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Statements of Cash Flows
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Statements of Cash Flows puny Year Ended May 31, 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund discusssd in this repact (each a "Fund” and callecthedy, the ™ Furds™), wiedh also indudes eadh dass of units of thal Fund (each & "Olass™ and collectivily,
the "Classes™), is a senes rust of PIMCO Bermuda Tnast (e "Trust™), an open-ended wnit tust established under the laws of Bermuda a5 a multi-series trust purssant
Lo fruest e s tisd Bry Wincdhestter Global Trusd Company Limited cn August 8, 2001 (a5 Smended from time 1o time, the "Trust Déad™) Effecthe o of the dose
of business (Exstem time) on September 249, 2017, Maples Trustee Senaces (Bermuda) Limited (the “Trustee™) was sppointed as trustee of the Trust Pagic nvestment
Management Company LLC (TPIMCO", the "Manager™ or the " Investment Adwser™) is the sponsor of and was responsible fior structueing the Trust

ThE Trust is Slbjedt 1o negulataon Jnd Superdson & provdded fog in the Investment Funds At 2006 and related ndes relatng i standsad funds

The terms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to estabish further funds in addtion o the Funds
aumently in operation a5 of the date of this report

References o umithobders (each, 3 “Unitholder”, and collectively, the “Unithcdders ™} in, or units of (or an investmentin), the Fund shall mean Unitholders of the Fund
whea hold urits, or dasses of wnits (as applicable), which are atrbutabie to that Fund

The Funds presented in this report are fisted below:

Fund Difered &
PIMC) Bed muda Foreign Lowy Dorasan Fund DHeied oy 1o bond with 2 Tond of Funds™ sochurs, a5 delfend 0 the e of e el i end Tk
PIMCD Batmigda U, 5. Love Deratice Fond Acuription, Jape, o o bk with somiar o ruciure s any other pradcsion
PIMCD Emergng Mart ee: Bond Fund LITTF)
FIMCD Emargng Mades Bond Fund (Yentadged
PEMCD Emer g Moarkezs Bond Fund 0
PIMCD Bro Total Retumn Fund Oftered 10 rednd irvasion in Jepan by wany ol pabdc offerng shiogh & deirbuba n Jagen, end @iy
PIMCD Real Fapem Fund B pblered 80 othes sesion ot B decoetion of the Kasger
PIMED et Term Strate g™ DHered 10 resud irvesion in Japan by wery ol pubdc offeneg thiough & detibuter sadior & sales

Harding com parry i Jepen, and my be offered 10 other invetion at the deoeton of the Wasager

PIMCD Emergng Marte e Bond Furd ) OHured anky b other Fundh 10oerve @5 an ondering e snt vebacls for ouch Fendk

= M S ! VG i i R T Dot -l Sty e iy 1 o it i T i Py ™ ity i alieie i Wi vl s irvhToiest [et it i ¢ 55 il et 3 il iR Ty i SR pOiE

Pl £ (00 iy i A D P iy i oy i i oy i ooy it i ey vt e il o ol Pl

Linits. of the FAMCO Buro Total Retum Fund, PIMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD. JFY, and US0 Classes of FIMCO Short-Term Strategy have been regrsfensd under the
Finanda Instruments and Exchange Law of kspan. Units of each of ihe remaning Funds and the C (USDY, B{IPYY, and ) (USD) Classes of PIMCO Shor-Term Strateqy
have not been and are not cuently expected to be registered umder the Anandal Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan Accordingly, sudh Units of these Funds may
niot bee, directly of indirectly, offered in Lapan of to sy residant in Japan, excepd in compliance with applicable lapanese |aws and regidstions

2. SIGRIFICART ACCOURTING POLICIES

The folbowing 14 2 sumenany of sanificant sccounting polases conusiently foll cwed by thee Trwst in the preparaton of its Snandal statements in confanmity with
acoaunting prindples generally accepted in the United States of Amenica (TUS GAAFT). Each Fund is treated a8 an investment company under the reporting
requirements of LS. GAAP. The preparation of fnancal statements in accondance with LS. GAAP requines mana gement o make estimates and assumptions that
affent the reported amounts of assets and lisbilites and dedosure of contingent assets and Babilifes 1 the date of the finanda Statements and the reported amounts
ofinceases and dedreases in met assets from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates

{a} Acquired Funds The Trustee and the Mansger may appdy a0l of @ portion of e assets of PIMCO Emerging Markers Bond Fund (TR, PIMCO Emerging Markes
B Fued (Y en- Hedgedh, and PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 1 {each refered 5o heresn 2 8 "Fund of Funds™ or the ~Acquinng Fund”, which inveus in ather
Funsds) o the respective areckt of the PIMCO Emengng Markets Bond Fund (M) frefermed to herein a5 an " Acquired Fund(s)") Any assets 5o applied will b2 held i such
Arequired Fund(th a5 il recehsd dirscsy. Whine 30t ts o 5o appised, the Acquired Fund(s) will recond the issue of units i the relevant Acquinng Fund At the it price
per unit of sudh wnits and will repurdhase such units at the reparchase price per unit of sudh undts at the dme of repurch ase

Ratigs showm in the Fnangat Highlights de notindwde expenses. of the Acguired Fundis). See Mote 9, Fees and Expenses, for further information regarding fund fees,
a5 apphcable

(b} Securities Transaciions and bvestment Income Securities Fansacions are recorded a5 of the trade date for finanaal reporting purposes. Seawities purdrased o
Siodd on 4 when-sssued of delayed-deliveny Dasis mary De sedthed beyand & standard setiement period for the Securiny after the rade date. Realized gans and |osses
from sequities sold are recorded on the identified costbasis. Dhvidend income s reconded on the ex-dividend date, except certain dvidends from Toreign seasities
where thi ex-ghadend date may have passed, whech are reconded a5 5000 354 Fund s inforened of she ec-dradend date merest income, adusted for he agretion of
discaunty and Enornzation of preminmd, i4 recondid an the acmeal basis from settlement date. with the saepbon of wecriies with 3 forwand Startng effective date,
wihere interest income |5 recorded on 1he sooudl bass from effiective date. For comvertible seaaities, premiums stwibutsblz o e conversion feature ane not
amortid Estimated L lrabilites on certan foseign seamities ane feconded on an acorual bases and are reflected &% components of inberest inooime of el change in
unredized appredation (depredation) on imestments on the Statements of Opefations, a3 appropriate. Tax liabilities realined a4 3 result of widh secunity sales are
reflected &5 2 component of net realized gain doss) on imeestments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and [osses on mortgage-related and ather

ArvnniRagart | Mg 31, 2028 7%
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Notes to Financial Statements

asset-backed securities, if any, are recorded a5 companants. of interest income

on the Siements of Operatons. Debt cbligations may be placed on non- Fondiss AV Currerny i)
acerual status and related interestincome may be reduced by ceasing curment T
accrals and wiiting off interest receivable when the collection of all or . IR Japanesa yen U5, dolar
porticn of interest has become doulbaful hased on consistently apptied = JIEAR) Jepaneda yen U5 cedlar
procedures. A debt obBgation is rermowed from non-accual status when the FIMECD Eura Total Fetum Fund Eiro [
issuer esummes Entenest panrnents of when oollectability of interest is probable PMCD Risal Fiogam Fund U5 dollar U5 dollar
fcl Cash and Foreign Currency  The financal statements of eadh Fund are Hm.m::nm Sersgy .
presented using the asrendy of the prmany econamic evvirenmentin which it S ;‘;“{;';“u”" 3 ; ﬁ
operates (e “functicnal cumency™), The functional aumency for each of the . JUPW r e
Furds is listed in e below tabie s, e T

Jwpanesa yen U5 dollar
Thee masket valees of foregn seauriies, cumency holdngs and other assets LI Japnesa yn US doller
anc Rakilites are trandated into sad Fund's functional asrency based on he = UsD U5 dols U5, dollar

et enctianoe rates each busnes day. Purchases snd sales of seounses
anwd inooired amd expente items dencminated in foregn aurnendaes, if any, ane
trandated into eadh Fund’s respective fanceonal quency 31 the exchange
rate in effect on the transacion date The Fends d not separately repoet the
eflects of changes in foreign exchange rates from dhanges. in market prices on
securities held Such changes are induded in net realized and net changes in
unfeaized gain of [oss Fom investments on the Statements of Cperation
The Funds may invest in foreign cumency denominated securities and may

[ Mudtacless Operatiens Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
fighits b the assets of the Fund squal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, emcept for spedfic assets and gains and losses designated to a Jass
refating to qurrency hedging operations. ncomes, non-lass specific expences,
and non-Class spedfic reafined and wnrealized capital gars and losses are
allocated toeach Class of units based on the relative net assets of each Class
of the respeciive Fund {ass spedfic expenses aumently indude
mananement, advsony, adminisratve, agency, and distnbution fees, whire

engage in foreign currency transacticns either on a spot (cash) basis at the apglicable

rate pravailing in the currency exchangs market at the ime or trough a

forward foreign currengy contract, Realized foreign exchange gains or losses [e} Distribution Palicy The foliwing table shows the antiopated frequency
anising from sales of spot forelgn qumendes, quFrency gains of ksses reghped of dictibusions for each Fund. Distibuticns from eadh Fund may be dediared
Betweien the frace and settlement dates on securities ransacions and the and distritwted to Unithodders only upon the authonization of the Manager,
dhifference between the recorded amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign which authorization may be withheld at the Manager's ditcrefion

withholding taes and the funcional asrency squvalent of the amounts

QU nCy FARSC0nS o the Srabements of Operations. Net unrilized fl:ll'l':i!}"l PEMCD Ewes Tortel Petun Fusd
i Ry ster b b i
fomeign denominated assets and liabikties other than invesiments in secities hecibved RS Full Kl
held at e end of the reperting period are induded in net change in PEUCI] Ervvai g Mathsts Bond Fueed LITF)
unredized appredation or depredabon on foreign cumendy aytets and FIMCL Ermar geng Blarkns Bend Fund [Yen-Hadged
[iahilities on the Statements of Operaticns FEMCE] Ermen gy Adackiss Blond Fund |1
The Mat Asset Value {"NAY™) and total retums of certain Funds (or Classes PRUICE) SeoreTenm Sramgy
thereal, & applicable) are presented in thee currency foewhich e NAY i5 o !JH"
reported (the "HAN currency™) a3 detailed in each Furd®s Odfering = .IJEI:I'l
Memacandum (e “Offering Mernorancum™). For she purpases of the Declared and Paid Quartecky:
presentation of the MAV and the total retum in the N&V qurrency, the PRUCT] Blermvoda Forsign Low Durazon Fund
begnning and ending MAVS are gomvverted wsing the period beginning and PALICT) Bersreda U1 5. Low Duravice Fund
exchange rate a1 the time of the distibuton See the folowing tabde for the RIS Sl At
Ky qumency of eadh respecive Fund FIMID Red et Furd
PN Shar e Tore Sora ey
Fanias . AUD
ot MAY Gy Eani . COGH
e JPY
FIMAC) Blerrurda Formn Low Dusaton Fund Japanecs ven US dolla U
| PME0) Eormuds U 3. Low Duration Fund apuress ven U3 cklly The Manager doss mst epeci s declare disiribuions with respeet 19 this Fomsd
P‘Ilmfmmuyh; Band Furd LITE) dapanesn yo U5 dolly for Classes theread, if applicabled; but may, in its discretion, declare and pay
”"'3”‘"""1'&"""'“ Buoee Fueed 00 U5 dokat 03, el dis mibutinns t 1he Unithalders at any time.
-
PR Emangeng Martew Bord Furd Cenfindpedl | Dspanssoye | U5 ailw P00 Eroweging Bty Burd Fid 14
PEMCD Emergang Markem Band Fusd | dapbemse yen US dllw Distribustions, if amy, will generally be mada from the relevant Fund's {cr
e Class's, i applicable) net invessment inceme 1 additon, the Manager may
o ANA authorize the payment of net realized capital gaing available for distribution
= JWR Agditional disributiors may be dedared a5 the Manager desis appropeiate
2 Eéstributions paidwith respect to amy Fund {or Class thereod, if applicabie)

v Raprt | b 31, 200 "
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will recpce the NAV of such Fund dor Class thersof, if appicable). At the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash dismibutions from a Fund (or Class theseof,
it applicable) ray & ther be reimvested in addiionad urits of a Fund {or Class
thereod, If applicatle) or paid to 3 Unathalder in cash. Cash payments will be
peaid in the HAW aurrency of e Fund. Eadh Fund {of Class theneod, if
applicable) may dedane further distbutions d considered necessary in cader
L aimtain 3 feasonable level of destibutons for & Fund (or Class thereof, if
applicable) In the event that there is inadequate net ncome and net realized
capital gains to pay a distibution of 3 Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable)
reguired by the Offering Memorandiem, the Manager may pay a distribuion
congsting of a portion of the capital of sudh Fund {or Class thereof, if
applicable). Dstributions not oollected within o years from their due date
will lapse andwill accnee 1o the benefit of the relevant Rend {or Class thereof,
if applicable)

19 Mews Acceunting Pronsuncem enis and Regulatory Updates i March
2020, the Rnancial Accauntng Standands Board T FASB™) issued an
Ancounting Standsnds Update {"ASU"), ASL 2030404, which provides
optional gadance 10 eate the potenti i accounting burden ssosated wath
transioning away fom the London interbank Critered Rate {TLUBDR") and
ather refenenoe ranes hal ae expecisd o be decontinued The ASL L
etfective immediately upon release of the update on Manch 12, 2020 through
[Crecemiber 31, 2022, At this time, management is evaluatng the implications
of these thanges on the finandal staements

3. IRVESTMENRT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

{o} Investmem Valuation Pelicies The price of a Fund's wmts is based on
the Fund's NAY. The HAV of 3 Furd, o each of its Classes, a5 applicable, is
determined by dviding the total valuee of portfolio nvestments and other
assets atmbutabde to that Fund or Class, less m;::atﬂlinea by the ot
number of urets cutseanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dray (a4 dhatcribed in the dament Crifering Memocandum of he

Trust), Fund units are ordrarity valued as of the dose of regular wadng on
thie Mew York Stock Exchange ("N SE Close™) Infaimation that becormes
kniowm to the Funds or their agents after the time 23 of whidh MAV has been
cabculated on 2 particular day will nat genenally be used bo retroa cively adust
the price of a security o the MAV detérmined earier that day Each Fund
resenves Me right to change the time as of whidh its NAV is calafated if

the Fund dases earlie

For purposes of calculating MAV, portiolio securities and other assels for
which market quotes are readily avalable are valued at market value Market
wale is gener ally determined on the basis of official dosing prices or the last
reported sales prices, of if no sales are reported, based on quotes obtained
from established market makers or prices (induding evaluzted prices) supplied
Ery the Funds’ approved pricing serices, QUeCaton feportng sysiems and
aher therckparty sources (ogedher, "Pridng Senices™). The Funds will
ncarreally use pricing data for domestic equity secunties received shartly after
the HYSE Close and do nat nonmally take into socount radng, dearances of
selfferments that take place after the WYSE Cloge | markel value pridng is
used, a forsign (non-U S ) equity sequrity traded on 3 foresgn exchange of on
g than one exchandge i5 bpically valued wiing prdang nlormation from the
exchange congderad by PIMCO fo be the pamary exchange. A foreign (non-
L% ) equity security will be vatued a5 of the dose of rading on the foreign
exchange, of the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close oomrs bedore the end of
tradfing on the foreign exchangs. Domestic and foreign fnon-L 5 ) fixed
ncome seqsites, non-£xchange raded derivatives, and equity apdions ane
el by walued on the Baus of quotes oblained from brokers and dealers of
Pricing Sendces wsing such data reffecing the prindpal markets for those
securites, Prices obtaned fom Pricing Sendces may be based on, among
other thands, Infofmaton prow ded by marked makers of ssbmates of madet

values obtaned from yield data relating to investments of securites with
similar characreristics. Cenain foed inoome semunties purchased on 4
defarped-dilivery batis are marked o market daly unil seidement an the
fonward setdement date. Exchange-traded opdions, except equity oplions,
futures and oplhons on futures ane valiusd an the settiment prce desemmined
bry the relevant eochange, quotes obiained fram a quatstion reporting gystem,
estatlished markelmakers of pridng Senvices. Swagp sgreements ane valwed
on the bats of markeldased prices applied by Pricing Services of quabes
oitained from brokers and deaers. A Fund's investments in open-end
management investment companies, otfer than exchange-raded funcs
("ETFs"), are vaued at the NAVs of such imvestments.

If & forelgn (non-US ) equity seouity's value has matenially changed after the
dioze of the security’s primary exchange of principal market but before the
NYSE Close, the sequrity may be valued at fair value based on procedures
estabdished and approved by the Manager. Foreign fon-U S, ) equty
senuities that do not trade when the NYSE is open e also valued 2 fair
wvalue With respect (o Toregn (non-L1S b equaty seunbes, & Fund may
determrane the L value of irmestmentt based on information provided by
Fricing Services and other third-party vendors, which may recommend fair
vl of adusirments with riference 10 ather Secunises, indioes of J5wE.
considering whether far valuation is required and in delermnining fair

values, a Fund may, among other things, comsider significant events iwhich
may be conddered 10 indude dhanges in the value of U5 sequrities o

s ties indices) that ocour after the dose of the relevant market and before
the WYSE Choge. 4 Fund may utilize modeling fools provided by thisd-party
wendors to determine fair values of foreign (non-UL5 ) seaurities. For these
pumposes, any movement in the applicable reference index or instrument

(" 2010 triger™) Detwesn the eadier dose of the appScable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 1o be 2 significant event, prompting the
appdication of the pricing mode (effecively resulting in daiy fair

valisstions). Foresgn exchanges may pemiit rading in foreign non-U5 )
equity securities on days when the Trudt is not open for business, which may
resuli in & Fund's portfolio e saments being sffected when Unitholders ane
unable b bary o sell units

Semor seogred foating rabe loans for which a0 SCthee Secondary matkel exdsty
1o a reiable degree will be valwed at the mean of the |t available bidfask
prices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Pricing Sendce Senior
seniired floating rate foans for which an active secondany market does not
exist 10 2 refiable degree will be valued at fair value, which is ntended 1o
approximate marked value. In valuing 3 senice secured floating rate loan at
fakr value, the factors considered may indude, but are not fimited to, the
fiolloweing: (2) the creditworthiness of the borrower and any intemediate
partidpants, () Se terms of the foan, (0 recentprices in te market for
sirpdar loans, if ey, and {ch rescent pivces in thee marker for rstruments of
similar quality, rate. period until mexl mberest rate reset and matunity

Irvies e s valued in cusmendcies other than the functional ourmency

of & Fund are comvened 1o the Sancionsd quendy wsing exdhange rates
obtsned frofn PrRdng Sendoet. AL 3 residt, the value of audh ifettinents and,
in tum, the MAY of the Fund's umits may be alfected by changes in the wale
of urrendies in redation to the functional currency. The value of imvestments
fraded in foretgn markets of denominated in axrenoes ather than

the functional currency may be affected significantly on a day that the Trust is
not open for busmess. As a result, to Bhe extent that a Fund holds foreign
(non-L15 ) imvestments, the value of those investments may change a1 times
wiven youl canniot purchase, recesm of exchange units and the value of such
ireestments will b reflected in the Fund's next cahaulated NAY

Investments for which market quotes or market-based valuations are not
reaclly arvad abilie & vabued at far value &5 detemmined in good faith by
the Manager of persons acting a1 ther dinscteon. The Manager has adopted
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et Sor valing securities and other assets in drosmstanes whers
kel quates. are nof readly svalable, and has delegated 1o PRACO the
respansstulity for spphying the far valuation methads. In the event that market
quotes of market based valuations are not readly available, and the seaurity
of a%eR cannon be valwed pursuant o & Manager appicesd valuation
rmedhod, the value of the seamity or asset will be determined in goad faith by
the Valuation Cornireties. Markel quotes e oonsdened not readdly oealable
in anomatanoes where thene is an absence of current o reliable market-
based data e g, trade information, biddask information, indicative market
quotations (T Broker Queotes™), Pricng Sendces’ prices), induding where
events ooour after the dode of the relevant market, bist prior to the NYSE
Close, that materially atfect the valwes of the Fund's sequities of asets In
additon, market quotes ie conshdened not readly avalable when, duelo
extracedinary droumrstances, the exchanges o markets on which the
SECUrifes rade 4y not open for Trading for the entire dyy 3nd mo other
rritkoel prices ane available The Manager is nespensible for monitoning
significant events that may matenaly athect the values of the Fund's securities
of Jeats and B determiming whethi the valise of the applicable tecunives of
agsets should be reevaluated in light of such siqniicant events

Whien 2 Fund uses fae vakaation to determine the value of § pordohio seaurny
o other asset for purpodss of cakaulating its MAY, such imvestments will not
be priced on the bass of quotes from the primary market in which they are
traded, but rather may be priced by anogher mathod that the Manager of
persons acing at their direction believe reflects far value. Fair valuation may
require subjective determinations about the value of 2 sequrity. While

the Trust's policy is Intended to result in a caloulaBon of & Fund's NAV that
fairly reflects sequrity values a5 of the time of pricing, the Trust cannot ensure
that far values detemmined by the Manages oF persons Bang a1 mheir
direction would acouwrately refect the pce that a Fund could obtzin for a
security if it were 1o dispose of that sequrity & of the dme of pridng (for
insiance, in a forced or disressed sale). The prices used by a Fund mary differ
Tromm the ke that woutd be realized if the securilies wene sold

(b} Fair Valus Hisrsrchy U5 GAAR deteribes fair value a2 the prce tat

a Fund would recehve to sell an aoset or Py 0 transfer a abili Ty an orgedy
Lransahon betwben market participants at the meatdnement dae It
establighes a fair value hierardhy that priceifizes inguts to valuation metods
and requanes disclosuse of the far vale hierarchy, separately foe each maioe
categony of astets and HabiiBes, that segregates fair value messurements inlo
bevets Level 1, 2, or 3). The inputs or methodology used for valueng secunities
A nof receisanly an indcaton of e ridks Meoaated with imeesting in thos:
securifes. Levels 1, 2, and 2 of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:

» Level |—Cuoted peices in active markets of exchanges for identical assets
and liakifities

w Linvef 2—Sinificant ather observable inputs, which may induwds, but ane
nok limited o, quoted prices for similar asseds o lizbilties in markets that are
active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or lizllties in manets that
are not active, inputs other tan gquoted prices that are cbrservable for the
assens of labiliges (suwch a5 interest rates, yield qunves, volatilities, prepayment
speeds, loss seventies, aedit nisks and defaudt rates) or other market
corroborated nputs

* Level 3—Significant unobsenvabie inputs based on fhe bect indormation
availabie in the droumstances, to the extent ebservable inputs ae not
dviailabie, which may ndude ssumpdions made by the Manager or peraons
acting at ther direction that ane ubed in determining the fair valee of
imvestments

In acccedance with the requirements of LS GAAF, the amounts of transders
in and out of Level 3, if material, are disdosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Imrestments 1o each respective Fund

For fair valuztions using significant unobaervable inputs, LS, GAAR requires
to disclose transters into and out of Lewel 3 of the fair value hierarchy and
punchates amd imses of Level 3 eets and liabalties dunng the periad
Additionally, U5 GAAP requires quaniitative Information regarding the
sgnificant unobaervable imputs wed in the detanmananon of tair value of
assets or Eabilities calegorized 3 Lewed 3 in the far value hisrardhy. In
acoordanae with Be requirements of U5 GAAR, a faar value hierandhy, and if
materid, detsls of significant wnobservable mputs, have been nduded in the
Maotes to Schedule of Imestments for eadh regective Fund

el Vel tion Technigues and 1he Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewal 1 and Lewel 2 trading assets and trading liakilities, a1 fairvalue The
valiation methods (or “techniques™} and significant Inputs used in
deterrining the fair valses of portidio secunties o other asets and fabilizes
categorized as Level 1 and Level 2 of the far value Rieranchy are 35 follaws:

Fioed irioome seauri e induding composate, convertible and municpal bomds
and notes, LS, government agendes, U5, reasury obligalions, sovereign
Ismies, bank loars, comeertible prefemed seamities and non-LS. bofds ane
nomalby valued on the basis of guotes oblained from brokers and dealers or
Fricing Sendces that use broker-dealer quotations, reported rades or
valzation esdmates from thelr intemnal pridng models. The Fricng Sendces”
intarnd models wie inputs that are observabie such & isswer detals, inberest
rates, yield unves, prepayment speeds, aedit risksspreads, defaull rates and
uoted prices for smilar assets. Secunties tat use Smile valuaton
technigues and inputs. 35 dascribed abowe are Categonized 3 Leved 2 of the
far value Peerandy

Fixed Income Seun ies purcnased on & delaped-delivery basis of 35 3
repisichate SOMTEMENT in 3 sale-buyback Fansscmon are marked ba rmarkel
daly until sertlement at the fornwand setlement date and are categorzed a5
L 2 of ghe fair value hieraedhy

Mofigage-related and assat-badbed secinities are wiually istised a4 separate
randhis, of dasses, of seounties within cadh deal These seomites sre alka
nommally valued by Fricing Senices that use broker-dealer quatafions,
reported rades of valuation estimates from heir mterna pridng models, The
pricing madels fof these securities wsueally consider tranche-Jevel attributes,
tument market data, esimated cash fows and market-based yisld spreads for
each ranche, and incorporate ded coateral performance, a5 available
Mongage-related and assel-backed seounities that use sAirelar vahiatan
techniques and inputs. 35 described abowe are categonzed as Leved 2 of the
fair value Rierandyy

Commen stocks, ETFs. exchange-traded notes and finandal dervative
insbnaments, sdh &5 fulures conracts, ghts and wamants, of opliods on
furures that are raded on 2 national secuntied exchange, afe stated a1 the
last reported sale or settiement price on the day of valuation To the extent
et Seipfiting. e actively Iradied and valuation djus rents are not aplied
thiy are cateqorized as Level 1 of the far value hieranchy

Irvvesmenits valwed (denaminated) in cimendes other than the functional
cumendy of a Fund are converted to the funciona qumency using exchange
ranes (umency spot and fonward rates) obtaned from Pricdng Serdoes. Asa
resudt, the NAY of 2 Fund's units may be affecied by changes in the value of
cumendes in relation 1o the funcional curmency. The value of seqmities traded
in fareign markets or denominated in curencies cther than the functional
cumency may be affected significanty on a day that the Trust is not open for
business, Valuation adustments may be apgiied to certain sequrites that are
Lolely raded on 3 for elgn exdhandge 1o aooound for Bhe rarket movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NY3E Close. These sequrities
are valued using Priaing Services that consder the comelation of the [rading
patterns of the faréign secunty o the ntradsy Trading in the U5 markels for
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mvestments. Sequrities using these valuation adjustments are categorized &
Lewel 2 of thie fair value hierarchy. Preferred seounties and other equides
tracied on indcSve markels of valusd by reference 8o Similar irsuments are
also categorized as Leved 2 of the faw value herardy

Ecquity-lmkd seqsities ane valued by referemang the last réported sae of
serherment pice of e lined referenced egquity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adjusments ane applied to the Last reported price o
convert the linked equity®s rading cumency to the conlract’s setfing cumency
Thiste inme4tments ane categadized 45 Level 2 of the far value Feeranchy

Imvestments in registered open-end Rwesiment companies (other than ETFs)
will b valued based upon the NAVS of sudh investments and ane categonzed
as Level 1 of the fair walue hieranchy Investments in nregistered open-end
meestment comparies will be caladated based upon the NAVS of sudh
imeestments and are considered Level | prosaded that the NAVS are
observable, cabodated daily and are the value atwhich bath purchases and
sales, will be conductied

Valuation adustments may be appfied to certain exchange raded futures and
Qptions 10 ooount for markel movement between the exchange settement
and the NYSE dose. These sequrities are valued usng quetes obtained from a
quekaion reporing system, establshed marker makers of pridng serdces
Fenanoad derivatives irang hese valiation sdustiments ane calegorined a5
Lewel 2 of the taif value hicranchy

Ecuuity exchange-traded ophons and over the counter finanaal defmvatie
mstruments, such & forward foreign qurmency coniracts and oplions coniracts,
derive Bneir value from underbdng asset prices, Indices, reference rates, and
other inputs of a comienation of thess factors. These contracts are nommaly
watyed on the basks of guates obtained from 2 quotation reparting system,
ettablished market makers or Pridng Sendces (normally detemined as of the
MY 5E Clese), Depending on e product and the tenms of the trantaction,
financial derivative instruments can be valued by Fridng Senvces using a
senies of techiniques, indudng Srealation poang models. The pnong models
use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets siach a5 guoted
prices, issier details, inchoes, bidfask spreads, intenest rates, implied
wiatliies, yield curves, doadends and eochaindge rabes. Rnanadl denvatne
imstrumen ts that use similar valuaton technagues. and inputs 5 desdibed
abowe are categonzed as Level 2 of the fair value Feranchy

Cl?fll.l'dﬂj' desfed avaps and over the counier S&aps déive their value from
underlying aset prices, indices, rebenence rabes, and othes inputs o a
cormbination of these factars. They are valued wsing 3 broker-dealer bid
quotanon of of market-based prces provided by Prang Senaces (Rormaty
determined a5 of the NYSE Close) Centraly deared swags and over the
counter swaps can be valued by Fridng Senices using a series of tedhniques,
including simulation peicng models. The pricing models may use inputs that
are obsenved from actvely quoded matkets such as the overnight index swap
rate Q") LEOR fonward rate, Interest rates, yield qurves and aredit
Spredds. These sequniies ane cabegonzed a5 Level 2 of the far valye Foeranchn

Level 3 trading assets and irading liabilities, #t fair value When 3 fa
waluation method is applied by the Manager that wses significant
uncbservable mputs, investments will be priced by a method that

the Manager or persons scing at their drection Believe reflecs fir value and
are categorized as Level 3 of the fairvalue herandy. The valuation
technigues and significant inputs used in determining the fair values of
portholic: aseets and Ratalines capegedized a5 Level 3 of the fair value rsranchy
are a5 boilows

Progey pricing procedures s the base price of 3 fued income secuity and

subsequenty adpust the price propomionally 1o marker vaiue chanoes of 4 pee-
diterimitied Secunity deemesd t be comparabide in duration. generally a LS

Tregsuny of sovereign note based on oountry of issuance. The base price may
be a broker-dealer quote, wansaction price, of an intemal value 35 derived by
analysis of marked data. The bate peice of the secunity may be rewet ona
periodic bass based on ihe availability of market data and procedures
appnoved by the Valuation Commities. Significant changes in thi
unobservable imputs of the prosy pridng process (the bate price) would resalt
in direct and proportionsd changes in the f2r value of the ssaunity. These

e ties, are calegonized 2 Level 3 of the fair value hierardry

It Ehirdkparty evali Med vendor pRang is Aot sealable of not deemed 10 be
indicative of fair value, the Manager may elect to cbtain indicative market
quotation directly from the broker-dealer of passed-through broker quate
frorm a third<party vendor. In e event that far vale i based upon a ange
sourced Broker Quate, these seamities are categorized as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Broker Cuotes are typicaly received from established market
patidpants, Although independently recerved, the Manager does not have
the transparency o view the underying inputs which suppcet the markes
quotaticn. Signifcant dhamges i the Broker Quote would have direct amd
proportional changes in the fair value of the security

Short-1em debt mstaments Gudh a5 commerd dl paper) handng a remaning
maturity of 50 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, 50 long a5 e
Amortized oSt vl of such short-term debil instruments is ppecodmatedy the
sarmoe 35 the tar walue of the instrument as detenmined without the use o
amrtized oost valuation These seamilies are cateqorized a5 Level 2 or Level
3 of the fair value hierardry depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

[a) Deleyed-Delivery Transectiors Certain Funds may purchase or sell
senifies on 3 delayed-delivery basis. These transactions involve 2
commitment by & Fund to purdhase or sell seqsities for 3 predetemmined price
o yield, with payment and delvery taking place tepond the qustoemary
seidement period When delayed-defivery iransactions are cutsiandng

& Fund wall designate of receive &5 collateral liquid assers in an amount
siffident to meet the purchase price of respeciive cbigations. When
purchasing & secunity on 3 delayed-delivery Dasis, 4 Fund asssmes the rghts
and risks of cwmerthip of the seaunity, induding the nsk of price and yield
fluctsations, and takes such fuctuations ke socount when determining its
MNAY A Fund may dispose of of fensgol ste 3 del ayed-delnary ransaction
after itis entered into, which may result in a realized gain or loss When

a Fund has sold a sequnty on a delayed-delivery basis, te Fund does not
partidpate in futuré gans and losses with respect to the sedurity

[l Infiationdndexed Bonds  Certan Funds mayinvest in inflation sndeged
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds. are fived income sequrities whose principa
walus 15 periodically adusted by the rate of mBanon The inbsfedt rate on
these bonds is generally fixed atiswance at arate kower fan typical bonds
Creer the life of an infladion-indexed bond, hosnever, interest will be paid
based on @ prindpal value, whidh is adusted for inflation. Any inredse or
decrease in the princpal amount of an inflationdndeed bond will be induded
a5 imerest income on fhe Statements of Operations, even though ivestors do
Nt receve their prindpal wned matarity, Repayment of the onginal bond
principa upen matanity (35 adjusted for inflation) is guarantesd in the case of
W15, TIPS, For bonds that do nol provide 3 similar guarantee, the adusted
prindipal value of the bond repaid at manity may be les than the orgnal
prindipal

fe] Loan Participations, Assignments and Driginatiors  Cenain funds may
ISt in denect debi instrurments which are indefests in mounts owed to
lepders o lending syndicates by corpofate, goverrmental, of other boriwers.
A Fund's imeestments in loans may be in the formof pariidpations in koans of
assigriments of ol or a porion of [ands from thind partes o imesiments n or
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oniginatons of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by 2 bank: of
other fimandal insinution (the “lender ) that acts a5 agent for all holders. The
agent admiristers the tere of the loan, a5 specified in the |oan agreemént

A Fund may imvest in muldple series or ranches of a loan, which may have
wanying tiemns and cary different assodaned isks. When o Fund punchases
Assignmenits from lenders it aoquires direct ights against the bomawers of the
loans. Thiete laans may indude pardpatons in bedge lasnd, whath ané [oans
Laken out by bomrowers for 2 ghon peniod (ypically [es than one year)
pending arrangement of more permanent finandng through, for example, the
issuance of bonds, frequently high yvield bonds issued for the purpose of
acquititions

The types of knans and related invesiments in which the Funds may invest
indude, among others, senior loans, subordinated |oans (induding second
lien lgans, B-Motes and mezzanine |loans), whole loans, commesdal real
eilate and ather comemendal leans and sruchined bans. A Filﬂlﬂmé-'f
oniginate loans of acquire drect interests in boars. through primary [oan
distributions andor in private ransactions. i the case of subordinated loans,
Lhesre mury b sgnificant indebibbdneds rarking shead of Be Bormomwers
obligation to the holder of quch a loan, induding in the event of the
o™ iFschency. METZanine laans ané Hypicaily secusied by a pledoe of
An-equity interest in the morgage bormower that owns the real estate rather
than an interest in 2 mortgage

Imrestments in loans may ndude unfunded |oan coemmitmen ts, which are
contraciual celigations for funding Unfunded boan commitments may indide
revolving credi fadlities, which may obligate a Fund to supply addiional cash
b the bomower on demand . Unfunded loan commitments. represent a fubure
obdigation in full, even though 3 percentage of te committed amount may
not be utlized by the bomower . When imvesting in a loan partidipation,

a Fund has the right to receive payments of prindpal, interest and any fees to
whach it 5 enitiled only from the lender selleng the |oan agreemint snd only
upon feceipl of papen i by the lendsr frofm the bomawer. A Furd may
receve § commibment fee based on the undrawn portion of the u ndething
[ine af cred portion of 4 [oan. in cemain drournstances, & Fund may fecenve 3
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower, Fees pamed of
pand are recorded a3 a -::\mpm-:nm!m‘.ems'. PO OF INARMESE g 2,
regpecively, on the Statements of Operaticns. Unfunded loan commitments
are reflected a5 a liabdify oo the Statements of Assets and Ligbiliges

|di Mertgage-Related and Oiker Assat-Backed Seewrities Certain Funds may
lmest i morigage-related and other asset-hacoed Secunies hal deecty of
imdirecty represent a partidpation in, of are seared by and payable from,
boans on real property, Mortgage-related sequrities are eated from pools of
resdential o commendal mortgage loans, induding mortgags |aans made by
saings and loan insBhutions, mortigage bankers, commerdal banks and
others. These sequrities provide @ monthly payment which consists of both
interest and principal Intenest may be determined by fived or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underking mongages will affect te price and
wilatibty of a mongaoe-related sequrity, and muay have the effect of
shiterind of extendag the effectve daation of the tecuity felatve to what
wan anficipated a1 the time of purchase. The timely paymment of prindpal and
nterest of certain mOrtgage-fel Slid SeourBes |4 giaranteed with the full faith
and aredt of the L5, Govemment. Pools creabed and guarsntesd by nan-
QUWErnIEnLE bssuers, indudng qovermmment-ponsonsd CIpOrasons, may be
supparted by various forre of insurance of quarantess, but there can be no
assurance that private insurers or quarantors can meet their obdigations under
the irsurance polides or guarantes amangements. Many of the risks of
imeesting in mortgage-related sedunities secmred by commerdal mortgage
fpans reflect the effects of local and ofher econcmic condiions on real estate
rrarkes, the sbiliny of tenants to make lease payments, and the abilioy of a
property to attract and retain tenants. These securities may be less liqued and

miay exhibit greater price volatiity than otfer types of mortgage-related or
oifver assei-backed securities. Other asser-badved securines ane ceated Fom
many types of assets, includng, but nod limited 1o, 2010 loans, accounts
recededble, such a5 aedit cand receivabies and hosgetal acoount receivalies,
home equity loans, siudenl loans, boat boans, mobile horme [aans,
recreational wehicle loans, manufactured housing loans, aircralt leates,
computer lesses and syndicated bank boars. The Fund may sreestin drry bevel
of the capital structure of an issuer of morigage-hacked o agsel-badked
securities, induding the equity or “firstloss” wanche

(e} Callateralized Merigage Obligatsers ("CMOs") are debt obligations of a
gl ertiny that are collateralized by whale mortgage losas of private
mortgage bonds and divided into dasses. Ch0s are structured into multiple
dhasses, often referred 1o a5 “tranches”, with each dass beaning a different
stated matwrity and entitled to a different schedule for payments of prindpal
and interest, including prepayments. CMOs may be less liguid and may exhibit
reater price volatility than ofher types of mortgage-related or asset-backed
e

[l Seripped Morigage-Back ed Securities  ("5MES") are derivative muli-das
mortgage securiies. SMEBS are usualy structured with two dasses thal receive
different proportons of the interest and principal distributions on 3 pod of
mortgage sets An SMES will have one dass that will receive 3 of the
interest {the imterest-only of " 107 dass), whibe the other dass will receive the
entire peindpal (the prindpal-only or "PO" dass). Payments receved fior IO
are induded in interest income on the Statements of Operafions. Because no
principal will be recetved a1 the matunty of an |0, adjustments are made o
e coit of the seauity on & monThly basis untl matsity. These adjis ments
are induded in interest inoome on the Statements of Operaions Payments
received for POS e redted a5 recducions 1o e st snd podvalue of the
Leniities

[g) Collateralizad Debt Obligations (TCDC0%™) anclude Coltateralzed Bond
Ciodigations ("CB0S™), Collsteralized Loan Obégations ("CLOS™) and ather
arndarly sspctured securites. CBOS and CLOS Sre types of asset-backed
seapitios A CBOS 2 trust which is badeed by a dversified pool of Righ ridk,
befowr imvestment grade fioed income seaxities A CLOs a trust typically
coll aterakized by 3 pod of loarns, which may indude, smom] others, domestic
and foreign senicr secured loans, senior unseaurad boans, and subordinate
oonparate kars, induding loans that may be rated Delow imvestment grade of
equivalent unrated boans. The risks of an imestment in a CDO depend largely
on the type of the oollateral secunities and the dass of the C0O in which

& Fund invests. i addition to the normal risks associated with ficed income
securities disoussed elsewhers in this report and the Funds® Offering
Memorandum (g, prepayment nsk, qedit sk, liquidity risk, market s,
structarad sk, begal risk amd interest rate misk dahich may be exacebated if
thie i ferest rate payable on a stnactured finandng changes based on
mraltiples of chan ped AN BNGEresE fales oF imversedy 10 dhamges in intenest
rates)), CBOs, CLO%, and other COOs carry addiional fks indudng but hot
limted ba, ) the possitdity that dstributicns from collateral sequrities will not
Do anchescpurantie b riakon inRerest of other paymments, (i) the quality of the

coll ateral may dedine in value of default, (i) the nsk that 3 Fund may imeest
in CBOs, CLOs, of other C00s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (W)
the gomplex strucure of the seqanty may nod be fully understood at the Gme
of investment and may produce disputes with the issuer or unsepecied
investment results

[l Payment In-Kind Securitses  Certain Funck may invest in payment in-kind
seapities [TPIKE™) PIKS may give the Bsuer the oplion at each inberest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor additional
et securities. Those additional debt seourities vsualy have the same tenms,
inclding mansriby dates and interest rabes, and assodaed risks a5 the
origenal bonds. The daly market quotations of the ceiginal bonds may induds
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the aconed interest {referred fo 35 3 "dirty price™) and reguire 3 pro rata
adustment from the unrealized appredation of depredation on investments
Lo inerest receivable on he Statemunts of Asuers and Liabalities

(i) Resrricted Securities  Certain Funds may hold investments that are subject
to legal of contractual restmictions on resale. These sequrities may be sold
prvvanely, Dt ey be requared 1o De registensd o exermnplid from such
registration before being sobd to the public Frivate placement seourities are
generdly considensd 1o be resmicted. Disposal of resiricted imvesiments may
ety lime-CoRSUMing Regal 30ans and epentes, snd prompl sale at an
acceplatie price may be difficult 1o achieve. Restncied imeestments held by
thes Funds 3t May 21, 2021, a5 applicable, are disdosed in the Rates 1
Schedube of mestments

) Struciured Nates Certan Funds may investin stiuciured nates and other
redated instroments, which are privately negotiated debt obligations in which
the principal and’ or interest ks detemined by reference to the performange of
a benchmark asset, marke of inberest rate {3n “embeddad index ™), sch a5
selected seourities, an inde: of ssotes or spedbed intenedn rates, or the
differential perfomance of two asets o markets, sud a5 indeses reflecting
fcandts. Siruchured irsnements may be issoed by corpodations, indudng
baniks, s well a5 by governmental agenides. The tenme of dh struciuned
insraenents noemally provick that thelr prncipal andfor interest punyments ane
L b achusted upweands of dowerrevards (but ondinasily not Below 2era) 1o
reflect changes in the embedded index white the stictured instruments are
ourstandng. As a retult, the mbenest andior pranapal payments that may be
rrezde on 3 strpchuned product may vary widely, depending on a vaniety of
factors, induding the wolatility of the embedded index and the efect of
changes in the embedded index on prindpel anddfor inferest payments

1k} LL5. Gevernment Agencies or Governmeni-Sporserad Enderprises

Certain Funds may imvest in searities of S Government agendes or
gonernment-sponsored enterprises. LS, Gremment sequities ane
obligations of and, in cenain caes, guarantesd by, the LS Govemment, its
agencies of instrumentalities. Some U S, Government sequnities, much a5
Treasuny bdls, notes and bomds, and secuiies quaranteed by the Govemment
Kationsl Morgage Assodation (CGNMAT o “Ginnie MaeT), ane wupported
Ery thee Tull faith and credit of the U5 Govemiment: athers, such as thise of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by Se right of he sauer io
borrow from the 15 Department of the Treasury (he "5 Treasury™); and
others, such as thase of the Federal National Morlgage Assodiaton (TFRMA”™
of “Fanme Mae”), ae suppoited by the disaretionany authiority of the U5
Goverment o purdhase the agendy's oblagations. L5, Govemment seurilies
mary indisde fero coupon securiies, which do not distribute interest on a
cument bags and tend tobe subject 10 3 greater nisk than interest-paying
securifies of similar matuniies

Govemment-related quarantors (e, not backed by the full faith and credit of
the U5 Government) indude FHMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation ("FHLMC" or “Fredde Mac™) FNMA is 2 government-sponsored
corporason. FNMA purchases corventional (e, nalinsuned of quaranteed by
amy government agendy) residential mortgages from a listof approved
sellersfsenicers which indude state and federally chartered savings and loan
Awoaatons, mitual swindgs banks, commendd banks and aedt urions and
modtgage bankers. Pass-thnough securities ssued by FUMA are quaranteed as
Lo Hirrvedly payrrienit Of prancipad and inberest by FHMA, but are not badoed by
the full taith and credit of the U5 Gowverrment. FHLMC Fsues Partipation
Certificates ("FCs™), which are pass-through sequrities, each representing an
undivided interest in 3 pool of residential mortgages. FHLMC quarantess the
tmehy payment of interest and ultimate collection of prindpal, but PCs are not
Dacked by the full faith and credt of the U5 Govemnment

in June J0T9, FNMA and FHLIMC stated mouing Unifom Mongage Baded
Securities (PUMES")in place of thir curent offerings of TEAligble
Secapities (The ~Single Security initatve™) The Singe Seourity nidatve seekd
10 suppoet the overall liguidity of the TBA market and dligns the
characrerisics of FMA and FHLMC certficates. The effects thar the Single
Sequnily Initiative may have on the market for TBA and othér mortgage-
ke sequnities ane uncertain

Rell-Bming sirateges can be used where a Rund seeks to extend the
expiration of matunly of 3 position, sich 4% 3 TRA Seaunily on 0 underying
assel, by cloding out the podition before expiration and opening a new
position with respect to substanBially the same underying asset with a Later
expiration date TBA secufities purchased o sold are reflected on the
Staterments of Assets and Liakifities as an asset or liability, respectively

) Whendssued Tramsactions  Cetan Fifds may puchase of sell seasities
on & when-ssued basis. Theds rantactions ané made condiSonally because a
seqnrity, Athough authonized, has not yet been issued in the market
Tramsactons bor prunchidse or tal Lt on 3 when-ssaed Dadis mmaohe

a commitrment by 8 Fund o purchase o sl these securites for a

prede termened price of yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyord
the axstomary setlement period A Fund may sell when-issued seamities
beefiore they are defiverad, which may result in a realized gain or loss

[m) Bank Obligatiors Eank cbligations in which a Fund rmay imvest indude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fized tme deposits
Certihcanes of deporsit are negobisble certificates issued against funds
deposited in 2 commendial bank for a defirite period of time and eaming a
spedified return, Bankers” aoceptances are negofiable drafts or bills of
exchange, normally drawm by an imponer of exporter 10 pay for spedific
merchandhise, which are "accepted” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bank unconditionatly agrees to pay the face value of the Instrument on
maturity. Fixed G deposits ane bank obfigatians payable M a wated
maturity date and tu?a-l'l!"llj interest 3t 3 fixed eate, Fived time deposits iy ie:
wathdrawn on demand by the imoestor, But may be subject o sarly
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market condiions and the
remaning manurty of the obigation

5. BORROWINGS AHD OTHER FIRARCIHG TRANSACTIONS

The following disdosures contan information an the Funds™ ability to lend o
b cash or securities o the extent permitied under the Offeing
Memorandurn, which may be viewed a3 bormowing or Srandng transactions
bey the Funds. The location of these instruments is desaibed below . For a
detailed desoription of cedit and counterpay risks that can be assodated
with bormowings and other finandng transactions, please wee Note T,
Frincipal and Other fisks

[a) Repurchese Agreements Certan Funds may engaos in repurchase
agresments. Under the tenms. of 2 fypical repurchase agreement,

a Fund purchases an underhing debt obligadon (collateral) subject toan
obligation of the seller o repurchase, and a Fund to resall, the obligation at
an agresd-upon price and time. In an open maturity repurch e agresment,
there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
termminated by the Furd of counterparty a1 sy time. The market value of the
Coll teeral st Bee equal b oF exdeed th 101l amaunt of the repunchas:
obgations, indwding interest Repurchate agreernents, induding acirued
Interest, are included on the Statements of Assers and LiabaRies Interest
eammed is reconded 4 4 companent of inlerestincome on the Statements of
Cperations. In periods of inoreased demand for collateral, 3 Fund may pay a
Pt for receipt of Collateral, which may result in interest experite ta the Fund
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(b} Reverse Repurchase Agreements Certan Funds may enter inho revens
repurchase agresments In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund defivers a
security in exchange for cash o 2 financial instiuBon, the counterparty, with
a simadianecus agreement to repunchase the same of substantially the same
security at an agreed upon price and date. in an open maturity reverse
requrthase agreement, there i3 no pre-getenmined repurchass date and the
agréerment can be termanated by the Fund of countenparty At any bme

A Fund ks enftitled o receive pandpal and interest payments, if any, made on
the seauity delhvered o e countepaty during fe term of the agreement
Cash recenved in exchange for securites delvened plus accrued inderest
payments 1o be made by 4 Fund 1o counterparties are reflected a5 a liabslity
on the Statements of Assets and Liabdities. Intenest payments made by a Furd
to counterparBes are recorded & a componsnt of interest expense on e
Statemnents of Operations. In periods of increased demand fior the secunity,

a Fund may recenve 3 fee for wse of the seomity by the counterpany, whidh
rmary resalt in ingerest income 30 3 Fund. A Fund will seqregate assets
determined 1o be bquad by PIMCO of will athenwise cover its cbligations
LI TeverGe PepUnchass SOniements

fcl SaleBuybacks Certain Funds may enter into fnandng ransactons
referred to a5 "sale-buybacks’ A sabe-buvback finandng transadon consisks
of asale of @ sequrity by & Fund 1o a finandal institution, the counterparty,
with & Umultameors Sgreerment 1o repanchase the Sime o wostanoaly he
Same S04ty 3t i agresd-upon price and date. A Fund is not entided to
recene princpal and mierest paaments, if sy, made on Be sequnity wold 1o
the counterparty during the term of the sgreement The agresd-upon
proceeds for securities 10 be repurchased by a Fund are reflected & 3 fability
o the Srate rments of Asters and Liabdites. A Fund will recogrene el inaome
represented by the price differential bebween the price received for the
transferred security and the agresd-upon repurchase prige. This is commenly
referred o a5 the "price drop” A price drop consists of () the foregone intenest
and inflationary income acjustments, if any, a Fundwould have otherwise
recerved had the security not been sold and (i) the negatiated finandng terms
between a Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and infiationary income
adustments, if any, are reqrded a5 components of interest income on the
Sraterments of Operations. INterest penfnents Based upon negotated fnandng
Lerng Friade by @ Fund to counbérpanies ane reconded a5 a component of
bnnerest expense on the Statements. of Operations. In period of ineased
dernand for the secunty, & Fund may recese 3 fee Bof use of the secunty by
the counterparty, which may resdt in interest income o a Fund A Fund wall
segiegate dnsets deterrnined 1o be Bouid by FIMCO or will othervwise cowver its
obligations under sale-buybadk iransactions

{d} Short Sales Cértamn Funds may enber inbo short sales ransactions. Shan
sales are transactions in which the Fund wels a seourity that it may not owm

A Fund may make short sales of seasities to §) offsel potential dedines in
bomg posstions in Smilar secunties, (8) 1o ingease the fledbility of the Fund,
(i} fior imvestment retunn, (vl as part of a risk arbirage strategy, ard (vh a5
partof its overall portiolio management srategies imechang the ute of
derivalive instruments. When a Fund engagas in a short sale, it may borrow
the security sobd shoet and deliver it to the: counterparty, The Fundwill
ondnanly have o pay & ik e premmau i b boemow a Secufity and be cbiigated
to repay the lender of the sequrity amy dividend or Enterest that acones on the
Uy during e penod of thetoan Seqmities sold in thon e Tansation
arned the dividend or interist payable on wich searties, if any, are refleced as
payabbe for short sabes on the Staterments of Assets and Wabilities. Short sales
expade the Furd o thie Ask thataowl be required B0 Cover IS Shoft poation
ata time when the seaxity or other ai421 has appredated in value, thus
resulting inlosses 1o e Fund. A short sabe i “aganst the box™ o

the Fund halds in its portfolio o has the right to aoquire Bhe security sold
short, o securities identical to the security sold short, at no additiona cost

A Fund will be sbject bo addSonal risks to the extent that It engages in short
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sabes that are mod "against the box ™ A Fund's loss on 3 shoet sale opuld
thecretically be unlimited in cases whese the Fund is unabbe, for whatever
feasan, b dose oul its thort position

B. FIH ANCIAL DERIVATIVE IRSTRUMENTS

The fedlowiang disdodsnes contan infemation on bow and why the Funds ase
finandal derivative instuments and how fnandal demeative instruments
affect the Funds” finanaal position, results of operations and cash flows. The
locaton and tair value amounts of these instruments on the S1anements of
Augsets and LiabaliSes and the net realized gain Joss) and net change in
unrealized appredation {depreciation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categonzed by type of finandial dervative contract and related risk sxposure,
are induded in 3 table in the Motes to Schedule of mestments. The finandal
derivative nstruments. outstanding 2z of period end and he amoums of net
realized gain (ioss) and net change in ynrealizd sppredation {depredation)
on finandal derivative instruments during the period, a5 dsdosed in the
Motes 10 Schiedule of Imeestments, serve 5 ndcatoes of the volume of
financial dervatve acinaty for the Fonds

[a) Forward Foreign Currency Comtracts  Certain Funck may engage in
fonsard foreign oumrency confradsin connection with setting planned
punchases of sales of seounites, 1o hedoe the oumency exposune assonaned
with some of 3ll of a Fund's sequnities of & part of an investment srategy. A
fewiard foreign Cumency CONITB0 IS an AQreement benween o pamies 1 biy
and sell 3 Qerency at a se1price on a Tuture date. The market value of a
fonesard foreign amency coniradt fluchuates with changes in foreign cumendy
exchandge rates. Forward fanmgn qurrency coniraots ane marked to market
daly, and the change in value is recorded by & Fund 21 an wrneali 2ed gain o
loss. Realized gains or losses are equal bo the difference bebween the valve of
the contract at the dme itwas opened and the value a1 the time itwas dosed
and are recorded upon delivery or receipt of the cumency. These contracts
may imvohve market sk in excess of the unrealized gain o logs reflecied on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilifes. In ad®tion, 2 Fund could be exposed
to risk if the counterparties are wnable 1o meet the terms of the contracts or if
the walue of the currency changes unfavoradly to the functiond curency. To
fratigane asch fisk, cish of stuntied mdy be exchandgsd a3 collaterdl puriuan
e the terms of the undertying contracts

Certan Funds, having a hedged Class, may Alod enter into foowand foneign
umency contracs designed 1o offset the effect of hedging at te Fund level in
ceder 10 ledne the hedged Class wath an expoture 1o caurendes ather than the
functiona cumrency. There can be no guarantee that these (lace spedfic
faoreiard foreign curmency oonracts will be sucoesil

[b) Futures Contracts  Certan Fiands may enter in1o fuures contracts. A
fufuires CORERACT i4 &N Agreerment 10 buy of sell & wecurity of other 241 1or &
el price on a future date and i baded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fubuires, Cnbraces 1o mn age it expdute [0 the wsuntes markets of 1o
mimements in interest rates and cumendcy values. The primany risks assogated
with the wse of fulares contracts are the imperfect correladion between the
change in markeq value of the seaurities held by a Fund and the prices of
fubures conbracts and the possibility of an iliquid market, Fulures contracts
are valued based upon i quoted daily setfement prices. Upon entering
into & futeres confract, a Fund i required to deposit with its futures broker an
amountof cash, LS. Govemment and Agency Obligations, or select sovereign
deit, In accordanae with the inital mangen requirements of the broker of
exchange. Ramnes coniracts ae marked oo market dasly and baded on such
mrreemenis in the price of the conlfracts, an appropriabe paysble of receivable
for the change in value may be posed of calleced by the Fund (" Fistures
Variation Margin®). Fulures Vaniation Marging, if amy, are disdosed within
cenirally deared finanaal demedbive InStnaments on the Statements of Assets
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and Liakeities, Gains of losses ane recognized but not ansidered realized unil
the contracts expire of dase. Futures Coniracs imohe, 10 vandng degrees,
sk of hoss in exnceds of the Futures Vaniation Mangn induded within
exchange traded or centrally deared fnandal derivative vstruments on the
Srateemenis of Assets and Liabilities

Ic) Optiors Contracts Certan Funds may wille of purdnase opsons (o
enhance retwns or 1o hedge an exsting position of fubee investment. Certain
Funeds ry weite call and put aptions of Seduni ies and frnandal derivatie
natrurments ey own of in which fhiesy indy nvest Writing put cpions tends
Lo increase a Rend's expodure 1o the undedying instrument. 'Writing call
options tends i dededse 4 Fund s epasune 1o the underhing instnument
When a Fund wntes acall or put, an amount equal o the premium receved is
recorded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the current value of
the opfon written. These amaunts are indeded on the Statements of Assels
and Liatdities Fremiums recesved from wiiting opSons which expire are
treated a5 refized gans, Premiums recefved from wriling apfions whidh are
exeqcised or dosed e added o the progeeds o offset Jgairat amounts paid
on the underying fibures, swap, seournity of QuITendy Famaction to deteming
the realized gan of Ioss. Certan oplions may be whiften with premaurns to be
deterrmmied of 2 future date The premiurms for thise opBons e based upon
implied volatlity peraemeters a1 speciied terms. & Fund a5 a writer of an
oplion has no contral ower whether the underhing snstument may be 1ol
("cal ™) or purchased ("put”™) and &5 3 resudt bears the market nsk of an
unfascratle change in the price of the instrument underhsng the written
optian. There i the ridk 3 Fund miay not be able to enter nlo a dodng
tramsacton because of an illiquid market

Certan Funds may also punchase put and call options. Furchasing call aptions
tends b inrease 3 Fund's expasure (o the underh@ng instrument. Purchasing
put options tends 1o dedease & Fund's expasure o the underying insnament
A Fund pays a premivmiwhich is induded 25 an 2558t on the Statements of
Assels and Ligblities and subsequently marked to market to reflect the
current value of the option. Premiums paid for pundhasing options which
expire are freated as redlized losses Certan options may be purchased with
premiunT 10 be determined on & fubure date The premiums for these options
arie based upon implied volassity parameters. st spedfed tenms. The ik
amodated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the prersum
paid. Premiiens paid for purchasing options whidh are exeroned of dosed e
added 1o the amaiunts paid o offsel againg the procésds on the underying
imeestment Eransaction 1o determine the realized gain or loss when the
underlying iransaction is edecubed

Credit Default Swaptions Certain Funds may weite of purdhiase aedi
default wvapticons to hedge expoure b the aredt md of an imestment
withoutmaking a comnmitment 1o the wrderhdng insrument. A aredit default
SwapGon is 40 aplion to sell o buy aredit protectaon 1o a spedific referemoe by
entenng into a pre-defined swap agreement by scme spedified date in the
future

Forwign Currercy Options Certain Funds may winle of puschase foreign
curency opions bo be weed a5 4 thom or long hedoe agand possible
wanaticns in foreign exchange rates of 1o gain exposure (o foreign arrendes

Imtlation-Capped Options  Certain Funds may wilte of punchase mifl ation-
Capped apbons w0 enhano: returng of for hed@ng oppomumities. The purpose
of purchasing inflation-capped ophons is 1o prabect a Fund from nflation
ergion abdve 3 cerlain rate an a given notional exposure. A floor can be
usied 10 grve downside protecton 1o mvestments i imflatondinked peoducts

Interest Rate-Capped Dptions  Certaen Funds fay wiile o punchiie intengst
rate-capped options to enhance retummd o for hedging cpportunities The
papcse of purchasing interest rate-capped apUons 15 10 protect 4 Fund friam

fipating rate risk bove 3 certain rate on 3 given notional exposare, A floor
cam be used [0 gve Aot DRoTEchon 1o imvestments in inlersst rate linked
prodacts

Inerest Rate Swaptions Certzin Funds may write or purchase interest rate
swaptions which are options 1o enter into 3 pre-defined swap agresment of
[0 sharten, extend, cancel of osheranse !'I!ll.‘lfl-' AN Eas 000 S 30 Mjeement,
by some specified date in the futare. The writer of the swaption becomes the
COUNBErparty 10 the swap if the buyer exerdses. The inlerestrate SWEPLIoNn
sdpeamnnt will specty whether i buyer of the avaption will be 4 Sxed-sae
receiver of 3 fied-rate payer upon exerdte

Dptiors on Exchange- Traded Futures Comracts Certan Funds may wiite of
purchase options on exchange-traded futures contracs (" Futures Option”) fo
hisige an exising posibon of future invesirment, for speculative puiposes of 1o
Mmandge exposune o makel movements. A Filures Opoon i5 an apbon
contract in whidh the underbang inrument s 3 ange Riumes conirac

Dptiors on Securities  Cenain Fundk may wiibe oF purdhase aplions on
sequnifies to enhange refums oo to hedge an exdsting position or future
inestment. An opion on & Se0mMity uses a spedied SBOUnTy a5 the endetlying
instrument for the aption contra

[d) Swagp Agresmants Certan Funds may st m swvap agreements. Swap
Fgreements are balaterally neqotisted agreements between 3 Fund and a
counberparty 10 exdhange O Svap imvestment cash Riwis, 35815, ftr!th_]rl
cumendes of masketlinked retusms at spedbed, futue intenvals. Swvap
agreements may be privately negatiated in the OTC market or may be deared
throudgh & third party, known a5 2 central counterparty of demames deanng
crganizaton (Tcentraly deared waps ™) A Fend may enter inlo asset, aredit
default, goss-currency, interest rate, total refum, vanance and ofher foms of
SWAD aFeements 1 manage its exposure Lo dedt, aaTendy, interestrane,
commodity, equity and inflation risk. In connection with these agreements,
sequnities or Carsh may be identfied 35 collateral or mangin in aocordance with
the terms of the regpeciive suap agreements. io provide assets of value and
reccurse in the event of default or bankruptoginscbency

Centrally deared swaps are marked to market daly based upon valwations as
determined from e underking contract of in acoondance with the
requirements of the central counterpary or derivatives dearing onganization
Changes in market value, if amy, are refiected 2 2 component of net change
in unredized appredation (depreciafion) on the Statements of Operations
Doy changes in waluation of centrally dedred Swaps (" Swap Vanalion
Margin®), if any, are disdosed within centrally deared finandal defvative
inADnATRALS On the Statements of Asets and Lisbdines OTC swap papments
received of paid at the beginning of the measuserment penod are induded on
the 4tatements of Assets and Liabiides and represent premivems pad or
received upon entering into the Swap agreement 1o Cmpensate for
difterences between the stated terms of the swap agreement and prevaling
market conditions (oedit spreads, cunrency exchange rates, interest rates, and
oither relevant Factors). Lipfrant preeniunns receaved (paid) ane initially receded
5 liabilities {assets) and subsequenthy marked 1o market 1o reflect the qument
vl of the swap. These upfont premiems are reconded a5 realized Qans o
leesgies o Bhe STatements of Cperanions upon eimination of mannty of the
swap. A liquidation payment received or made a1 the termination of the swap
I8 recorded &6 realized Gain of | 054 on Bhe Statements of Operatons. Net
pesiodic payrments recenved of paid by a Fund ane induded 3% part of realized
gamns of losses on the Statements of Operations

Fir purposes of applying certain of a Fend’s imvestment palides and
TESECHONS, Swap dgresments, like amer derdyative inSrUEenls, oy be
valued by 4 Fund at market valee, notional value o full sxposure value in the
case of 3 oredi default swap, in apphing certain of the Fund’s imeestment
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policies and restrictions, the Fund will value the oredt default awvap atits
notanad value of its full exposuns value (e, the sum of the nosmal amount
far e contract phus the maket value), but may value e gedt defaull wvap
atmarket value for purpases of applying certain of the Funds other
ifmeestment pobd es and réstriciions. For example, the Fund may v alue aedit
default avaps at full espodure value for pusposes of the Fund's oredit quaity
uiddelinees. O any) Because sch vl in geméral Detber reSects thie Fund’s
achual economec exposure duing the tem of the gedit dedault swap
agresment As a result, a Fund may, at times, have notional exposure toan
asselt dass (before netting) that is greater of lesser than the stated limitor
reshriction noted in the Fund's Offenng Memorandum. In Shis coniext, both
the radonal amount and the market value may be positive of negative
depending on whether the Fend i5 Sedling o bining peotection theough the
qredit default sweap. The manner in which certain securites or afer
nsaruments ane valued by the Fund for purpases of Apphang imvestrment
policies and restricions may difer fom the manner in which those
imeestments e valued by other types of imeestors. Enteinginto s¢3p
Agreeren s irneobes, 10 vaning degrees, elements of interest, qedi, markel
and docurnentation nek in exceds of the amounts recodnized on the
Ltaternents of Astets and Liabilities. Such risks imeadve the possitality tat
thistee wall bee nte i miarkét for these agreements, that the counterparty 10
the agresments may default an its cbdigation 1o perform cr disagree as to the
meaning of contraciual terms in e agreements and that there may be
unfaworgtie chamges in interest rates or the values of the a5iet upon which
the awap is based

A Fund’s maxdmum sk of loss from countergarty credit sk is the discoented
net valipe of the cash flows to be recedved from the oounterparty over the
CONTAS Nermaining I, bor theee extent that amcunt is posithee. The risk may
b mitigated by hanving a master neting arrangement betwesn a Fund and
the counterparty and Iy the posting of collateral to 3 Fund 10 oover & Fund's
Expidure 10 M CounEpanty

To the extent 3 Fund has & poicy o Bmit the net amount owed 10 of 10 be
receved from 2 single counterparty under existing swap agresments, such
fiemitation only applies to counterpanies 1o OTC svaps and dots notapply (o
centrally cleaned swaps whiene e Courterparmy i & ceniral Ooun terpay of
derivatives deating organization

Credit Default Swap Agreements  Cerfain Funds may enter into

credit default swaps on awporate, loan, sovereign, LS. municpal or US
Treasuey issues 1o provide 3 measure of protection against defaults of the
issuers 1.8, to reduce risk whese 3 Fund owns of has exposure 1 the
referenced cbligation) or to fake an active long or short position with respect
to the edibood of a partiodar isswes defaalt. Credit default swap
Acpeenvents Fniolvie o party eraking 3 steam of payrnents (efamed 1o &
the buyer of pratecton) ba anather party (the Seller of protecion) in exchange
for e Rght 1o recerve 3 spedfed relum in the event that te referenced
entity, obligaton of index, a5 spedlied in the Swap aqreement, undengoes a
certain credit event As 3 seler of protection on gedit default swap
agpeernents, o Fund will generally recetve from the buyper of peotection 4 foed
rate of income hroughout the tem of the wvap provided that there is no
credit event As the sefler, 3 Fund would effectively add leverage to its
portfolio because, in addtion Soits ot ned assets, the Rend would be
sisbiect to investment exposue on the notional amount of te swap

It a Fund is & seller of protection and a credit event ocours, 2% defined under
the temms of that parthaular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either ) pay to the
busger of protedion an amount equal to the notional smount of the swap and
Laie defrery of the referenoed obligaton, ather deliverable obligations of
underkying securities oompiising e referenced index or (i) pay a net
settlernent amount in the form of cash or securities equal o the notional
amount of the sweap less the recovery value of the referenced ciigation of

underhing sequrities comprising the referenced index. (f 3 Fund is a buyer of
peatecton and & aedt event ooours, a5 defined under the terms of that

[ ticular swap agresrment, a Fundwill either (1) receve trom the seller of
protecton an amount equal to the noSonal amount of the swap and deliver
e peferenced abligaton, other deliverstle abligatons of undedying
sefities comprising the referenced index o () receive a net setfement
armountin the form of cath o securiies equal to the moons] amouni of the
S lets the recoveny value of the referenced obligation o wnderiying
ey ties oornprising the referenced index. Recovery values are esmated by
market makers considering either indwstry standard reovery rates of entity
spedfic factors and considerations unBl a aedit avent ocowrs If a cedit event
hears cocuimed, the recovery valys is detenmined by a fadlitated aucton
wiivestietny 3 menimum number of llowable beoker bids, together with a
spedfied waluation method, e wsed (o calaate the settlement value The
ability to dehver osher obligations may result in 3 cheapest-to-deliver opton
{the buyer of protection”s right to choose the deliverable cbligation with the
loweest valies Toliowing a credit évent)

Credit default svap sgreerments on credit mdices involve oné party making a
stream of payments 1o another party in exchange for the right 1o receive a
spectied return in the event of 2 write-down, princgal shortall, interest
shortfall or default of all or part of the relerenced enfities compnsing the
aedit index A creditindex is 2 basket of gedt instnements or exposures
deggried to be repretentative of sorme pant of the gedit market 25 3 whole
These indices are made up of reference credits that are judged by a poll of
cealers o be the most liquid entities in the medit default swap market based
on e sector of the index. Components of the indioes may ndudz, but are
not limited to, investment grade securities, high yeld securities, asset-badked
e ties, emengEng maskets, andlon vanous dredit ratings within each secor
Credit indioes e raded ving dedt defaull fvaps with stsndadized terms
indisding a fixed spread and standand maturity dates. An index credit default
swap teferences ol the names in the inde, and if tere is a defaalt, te aedt
event is setled based on that name’sweight in the index The compasition of
the mdioes changes perodcally, usrally svery six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weight i the index. A Fund may use qedit
defauit swaps on cedit mdices to hedge a portiolio of credit default swaps or
beonids, wehich i less expensive than it would be 1o by many oedit default
Swaps o achieve 3 similar effect Credit default swaps on indices ane
instruments for profecting invesiors owning bonds against default, and
traders use them o speculate on changes in oed 1 quatity

Innpied oredit spreads, represented in absclute terms, wilized in detemining
the market value of aedit default swap agreements on coporate, boan,
sovereign, LS. munidpal or U5, Treasury issues &5 of period end, if any, are
disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They serve &5 an indicater
of the aurent stats of payrenyperormance itk and represent the likelihood
o ridk of defauit for the referanced entity. The implied credit spread of a
particular referenced entlty refleas the cost of buyngselling protecion and
may indude uplront payments required 10 be made 1o enter into the
agreement Wider credit spreads reprasent a detenoration of the referenced
enlity™s credit soundness and a greater’ lkehood o risk of default or other
aedit evenl octuming &5 defined under the terms of the agreement . For aredt
default swap agreements on asset-backed sequities and aedit indces, the
quoted market prices and resul ling values serve a5 the indicator of the cumen
status of the payment/iperiormance risk. Increasing market valuss, in dbscdute
tenms when compared to the notional amaunt of the swap, represent a
deterioration of the referenced entity's oredit soundness and a greater
likefibood or risk of default or other dedit event ooouming as defined under
thie tefrres of the Sogpeerment

The masimem potential amount of fubwre payments {undiscounted) that
& Fund as & seller of protection could be fequined to make under a oredt
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default swvap agresment squals the notional amount of te agreement
Natonal amounts of eadh indnddual aedi defaul swap agresment
outstandng a5 of period end fof whech & Fund is the seller of protecion ane
disdosed in the Motes o Schedule of investments. These potental amounts
wiold be partsally affsel by any recovery values of The repectve rederenced
obligations, upfront payments received upon éntering into the agréement, o
et ancunts recerved Tron e settiement of by protecton dedit default
wwap agreements entered into by a Fund for the same referenced entity o
enftities

Imterest Rate Swiap Agreemeris  Certain Funds are subject to interestrate
Ttk eepitiang in Ahe noirnal course of puring teir invesiment objsctves
The vaue of the fxed rate bonds that 3 Fund holds may dedreate if interest
rates rise Tohelp hedge against this risk and to maintain its ability 1o
generate income a1 prevaling market ranes, a Fund may enter info inbefiest
rate svap agreements. Inferest rate swap agreements imealve the exchange
Ery & Fund with anaither party for thesr respective commitment to ey of
receive interest on the natdonal amount of prindpal, Certgin forms of interess
rate svap agreements may indude: () interest rate caps, under which, in
renam for 3 premium, one parmy agrees to make payments 1o the other to the
extent thatintenest rases exceed 3 ipeafied rate, of “cap”, (i) ntenest rate
floers, under which, inretum for a premium, one pary agrees to make
DTS 1o i athier Do The extent hiat inderest rates fall below a spedfied
rate, of “flooe”, (i) interest rate collars, under which a pasty <slls a cap and
purchases 3 foor or vice versa in an atternpd o prodect itsalf against interest
rate rmosemen s enteeding gven MMM & masmiam bevels, (W) callable
imterest rate svape, under which the buyer pays an upfront fes in
congderation for the right 1o early terminate the wwap transaction in whole,
al zero 006t and at a predetermined date and ime prior 1o the maturity dite,
{v) spreadiocks, which allow the interest rate swap users tolok in the
forward diflerential (or spread) Detween the interest rate swap rate and 3
spedfied benchmark, or (W) bass swaps, under which bwo parties can
exchange vanable interest rates basad on different segments of money
matkers

1. PRINCIPAL ARD OTHER RISKS

{a} Principal Risks In the nomal course of business, the Funds (or Acquered
Furdi(s), of apgiscabde) rade finandal insirumients and enter into Snandal
tramsacRons wihvere fisk of potential boss exists due o sudh things a5 dhanges
i the mwaeker {market nsk) o Taiure or inabdity of the other party o 3
tramsaction to perform (medit and counterparty rigdd), See below foe a detaled
desaripaion of select pindpal risks

Fund of Funds To the extent that certain Fends invest substantialy dl of
Uit neSpeciive a5Sets 0 Acquaréd Fundis), the fues s sed wath imesing
i theese Funds will be dosely related 1o the risks assodated with the sequrities
and other imeestments held by the Acquired Fund(s). The ability of the Funds
Lo achiewe their respectin: imasstment obpectives may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fundis) to achieve their respective investment objectives
Thieree can be no assurance that the nvesiment obsective of any Atquired
Furid(s) wall be achioved The NAY of an Acquining Fund will fluctuste in
response bo changes in the respective AW of the Acguired Fund(s) in which it
sty

In the noemal course of business, Acguired Funds) rade Bnanda instuments
and enter into Snandal rarsacions where nsk of potential loss edgats due 1o
changes in the market (market rigk), or fadure or inabdity of the oher party o
a transaction o perform (et and counterparty riskh

Market Risks A Fund's investments in finangdal derivative imstruments and
osher fmanddl instruments exgeose the Fund to vaious ks such as, but not

linited b, Enterest rate, foreign: {Ron-LI S ) cpmency, equity and commodity
nsks

Interest rage risk is the risk that fixed inoome securites and ofher instuments
Peebed bry 1 Furvd sy checlne in walue because of an inmease in imterest rates. I
nomnal inbenet! rabes mse, the value of certain fixed nooeme seambes held by
& Fund woold likely decrease. A normnal interestrate <an be desoibed a5 the
sum of a real interest rate and an expected indaton rate. Intered rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may [ose money if
thiede chamges are ROt antapated by Fund managesent. A Fund may not be
abie o hedge against dhanges in interest rates of may chodse not bd do 50 for
cost or other reasons. In addtion, amy hedges may not woek a5 intended

Caration is & measure used to determine the sensitivity of 3 security™s price 1o
changes ininterest rates that incofporaies a seariny’s vield, coupon, final
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Convexity is an
addifional measure used o understand a secunity’s o Fund’s interestrate
sen sty that measunes the rate of change of duration in responss 1o
changes i inbenest ranes. Floed noome seourises with longer duratons ted
by e mare sensitive o changes in interest rates, waually making them more
wilatile than secuines with shofler duraions. A wide vanety of factofs can
cawse interest rases of yebds of LS. Tressury Secunties (or yeelds of other
Ryps of bonds) 1o rxe (@ . ceniral bank monelary poliies, inflaton rabes,
general sConormc oondiions, etc). This 1 egpeaally tree under cument
comditions because interest rates and bond yiekds are near histoncally low
levels. Thus, the Funds qumrently face a heightened level of risk assodiated
with rising interest rates andior bond yiedds. Thas could be driven by a variety
offactors, induding but nat limited to central bank maonetary polices,
changing inflation or real growth rates, generdl econoimic condifions,
increasing bond kssuances or redsced market demand for low yisidng
investments. Further, white U5 bond markets have sieadly grown over the
i1 three decades, deaber "rnarkel making ™ ability has remained relabvely
stagnant. Green the importance of intefmediany “rmarkel making™ i creating
3 robist and active market, fed income seunties ane aerently
fadng inoressied wolatlity and Bquidity frsks. All of these factor, coleCtvedy
andfor indvidualy, could cause 3 Fund b0 lose value, i the Fund |ost enongh
wilise, the Fund could face inceased Unathobder nedemplons, which could
further impair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely attectsd
wiven a large Unitholder purchases or redeenns large ameunis of units, which
Cam occur at any B and may impact the Fund in the <ame manner a4 a high
volume of redemplion requests. Large Unithobder ransacions may impact
the Fund's liquicity and net aset value. Such transacions may also ingredse
the Fund's Tarsaction oosts of otherwise cause the Fend o perfem
cifferently than intended, Moreower, the Fund is subject 1o the risk that
otteer Linithiolders may make investment dedsions bised on the choices of 2
large Unithol des

A Fund may have Sonificant exposane W isipens in the United Kngdom. The
United Kingdom's withdrawal from the Eurcpean Usson may impact Fund
refurns. This dedsion may cause substantal volatliny in foreign exchange
marker, |ead 10 weakness in the exdhandge rate of the Brtsh pound, redilt in
a sustaned period of market uncertainty, and destabilize some or all of the
otheer European LUnion member countries andfor the Eurozme

Foreign (nion-U'5 ) securitied in this report are dassfied by the country of
ingorporation of 2 heldng. In certain instances. a sequnity’s country of
incorparation may be different from its country of economic exposure

I a Fund imoests directhy in foregn (non-1U05.) currences of in securities that
frade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U5) aamendies, o in finandial
derivative insiruments. that provide exposiure to foreign (non-U S ) oumemdies,
it will be subject to the risk that tose qumendes will deding in value relative
1o the base currency of the Fund, o, in the case of hedging positions, that
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the Fund's base curencywill dedine invalue relative 1o e curency being
hedged Currency rates in foreign countries may fluchaate signiboantly oy
shoft penads of tirme for & nurber of feascers, indudng changes in inlerest
rates, Interventon dor the falere to intervene) by LS. or forelgn governaments.
cenmiral banks o wprandiond entites wdh 45 the intemational Monetary
Furd, or bry the imposition of currency dontrals or other poliical developments
i 1P Unabed 518008 of abiodd. A4 & mesult, 4 Fund's irvestments in fofegn
aerency-denominatad seauritied may reduce the Fund's relurm

The ivaekel valies of equties, dwch 4% ooenon shocs md prefeted Seculilied
or equity related investments sich as futures and aplions, have historically
risen and fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due 1o genera market
condticns which are not spedfically related 10 & particular company, such &
real of perceived adverse economic condiions, changes in the general
outiook for coeporate eamings, dhanges in interest or cumendy rates. public
health emengencies, sech a5 the spread of indections diness of disease, of
adverse inviestor sentiment generaly. They may also dedine due to faciors
which aflect a pantioula Imdusiry o indusines, such &5 bor shomages of
ncreartid prodiaction cots and oompe e condiBons within an industry
Ditferent fypes of equety securities may react differently to these

vl ot Equily securities and equity nelated svesiments generally have
greater markel price walatility than foed indore securities

Cirtan Funds may ivest in certan nstrurments fat rely i some faskon
upion LIBOR LIBOR is an average interest rate, detenmined by the ICE
Benchmark Adminkstration, that banks charge one anather for the use of
short-term money . The United Eingdom’s Fingndal Canduct Authority, which
regulates LIBOR, has anncunced plans o phase cut the wse of LIBOR by the
end of 2021 The wansition may resultin a reduction in the value of certain
mstruments held by a Fund o 3 reciection in the effectiveness of related Fund
tramsacions such a5 hedges. There remains uncertainty regarding future
ustization of LISOR and te nanse of any replacement rate (e.q, the Seured
Oreernight Rnancing Rabe, whech 15 ntended 1 replace L5, dollaf LIBOR and
measunes the oot of ovemnightbomowings through repunchase agreement
rransacsons collaterabned with LS. Tredsury securities), and amy potentisl
effects of the transifon away from LIBOR cn a Fund or on certain instuments
I whidh & Fund invests are not known Snd oould result in lodses to 4 Fund

Beginning in January 2020, gobal fnandal markets have experienced and
iy ConlmLe 1o experience dignifcant wolatility resulting from the spread of a
nowel coronavinis knawn as COVID=19. The outbeeak of COVIC- 19 has
resulted in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply dhain
Do, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty. The
glohal economey, the economies of certain nations and individua issuers have
been and may continue 1o be adversely affecied by COVID-19, partiadaty in
[eght of e interconnecivity between eonomies and Snands mardets, 3l of
which may negatively impact the Funds” performance, in addition, COVED-19
and governnmental responsss to COVID- 19 may negitively impact the
capatifities of the Funds’ servioe presvdders and desrupt the Funds” operaticns.

Crodit and Counterparty Fisks A Fundwill be exposed 1o cedtnsk 1o
parties with whom it Bades and will also bear the risk of settfement default
A Fund minimezes concentrations of oredin risk by undertaking ransactions
wath a lange number of Qustomers and counterparses on recognized and
repuiabée exchanges, where applicable. OTC derivative ransactions are
Sitgect 1o the nide that & counberpaty 0o the Farsacton wall nol fulfll its
contractal obisgations 1o the other party, as many of the protections atforded
Lo centrally deantd dervalive mansactions might not be seailable for OTC
derivative ransactions. For derivalives traded on an xchange o through a
ceniral counterparty, oredif risk resides with the cedibworthiness of

the Funds clearing broker, of the deannghouse itself, rather than with 2
corinterparty in an OTC derivative transaction. Changes in requiation relating
to & Fund s use of dervatives and related imstnuments could potentially limit

of Bmpact the Fund's ability bo investin denvatives, limit the Fund™s abdity to
employ certain srategoes that use defivatives andior adversely affec the value
o perhoemandce of demvatives and the Fund A Fund oould Bose money if the
issuer or guarantor of 3 Bxed income sequnity, or the counterparty i 3
finandal derivative indtruments oonirad, repundhate ageement of & loan of
portiolio securites, is unable of umwilfing 1o make timely prindpal andfor
INTERES payrenis, of 10 olhenaie honds it obligateons, Seauntes snd
financia derivative instruments re subject 10 vaning degrees of credit risk,
which may be reffected in credit ratings

Similar to oredit midk, a Fund may be exporsed bo counterparty rick, of the sk
that an instilaion or otfeer enfity with which a Fund has unsetted o open
ransactionswill default FINKCO, a5 the Manager, minimizes counterpay
fisks bo the Funds through a member of ways . Prior to entering into
ransactions with a new counterparty, e PIMCD Counterparty Fisk
Comamties condects an extensivie qedi review of such Counberparty snd must
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthemmaore, persuant to the terms of
the underying coniract, o the extent thatunpéid amounts owed 1o 4 Fund
exceid A precetermned threthald, such counterparty shall advance collateral
1o & Fund in the Torm of cash or securities equal in walue to the unpaid
Armount cwed 10 & Fand A Fund may invest ssch collateral in sequntied of
othes mstruments and waill typically pay interest 16 the cunterparty on the
codl ateral received, If the unpaid amount owed 10 @ Fund sbsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be requined Bo retumn to the counterparty 3l o 3
portion of e collateral previcusly adwanced . FIMICO's attempts to mirimize
oounberparty risk may, hoseser, be unsuocessiul

Al frarsactions in Bsted secanties are setted'paid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties, The risk of dedault is considered minimal, a5 delivery
of seqrities sold is ondy made once a Fund has recefved payment Paymentis
made on 3 purchase cnce the seaurities have been delivered by the
colnterparty. The tracke will fai if sither party fails to meet it obiganon

[b) Oeheer Risks I gerieral, each Fund may be subjadt o addtional rides,
induding, but not imited to, risks related 1o govemment regulation and
intereention in finandal markets, operational risks, risks assodated with
finandal, econame: and global markes dsnuptions, and obersecurityfisks
Flease refer to-eath Fund's offering documents for @ mose detaled
desaiption of the risks of investingin the Fund

Market Disruptions Risk  The Funds are subject to imvestment and
operational rsks assodated with finandal, econcmic and other ghobal market
developments and disuptions, imduding those arising from war, temorism,
markel ManpUlason, Qovemmen inlenennons, defaults and shutdowns,
peolitical changes of dptomatc developments, public ealth emengenides
(such a5 the spread of infectious disegses, pandemics snd epidemics) and
naturaliendronmental disastens, which can Al negatidly impact the secuntied
marbers, interest rates, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, credit risk,
inflation, deflation and other factors relating 1o the Fund's Emvestmisnts of the
Managers operations and cause a Fund o lose value. These évents may have
adeerse |ong-tem effects on the U5 and world economees and markets
generally, These events can also impair the technology and other operational
systemes upon which a Fund's senvice providers, induding PIMCO as the
Funds’ investment advizer, refy, and could othenwise dieupt 2 Fund™s sendce
prosiders” stality to fulfill thelr obligatons to the relevant Fund. For example.
the spread of an infections respiratony Biness caused by a nowel strain of
cononavngs known a5 COVID-19) has caused valatdity, sevene market
didocations and Bauidty consirants in many markets and may adversely
affect a Rmd's imvestments and operations

Government Intervention in Financial Markets Federal, state, and other
grpeemiments, thesr requlatony sgencies, or self-requilatony organizations may
take actions that affect the requlstion of the insruments in which 2 Fund
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imvests, of the ksuers of such instrements, in ways that are unforesesable
Legshation o requlation may slso change the way in which a Fund ltseli is
riequlated. Sud lagslation o requlason could limat of precisde 4 Fnd's
ability b achieve: iis investment ajective. Furthenmaore, volatile fnancial
rrarkels can expose a Fund 1o greater marker and liquidity risk and potentia
ditficuley in valusng portfolio mstruments held by the Fund. The value of 3
Fured’s heddings is as0 generally sbgect to the sk of futiee local, national, o
glabal econcmic disturbances baed on urknown weaknessss in the markers
inwhidh a Fund invests. In addition, it is not certaim that the U5, Govemment
will intervene in response 10 a future market dsturbance and the effect of any
such future intervenGon cannot be predicted 1tis difficult for isswers o
prepare for the impact of future finandal downtums, dthough companies can
seek 10 Identify and manage fuure uncertantes thaough risk managenment
programs

Fegulanory Fisk Fnancad entities, wuch a5 investment companies and
imvestmient aduisers, are generally subject 1o extensive govemment regudation
and intervention. Govemment regulation andir intervention may change the
way a Fund is requlated, affect the expenses. inogred directly by 3 Fund and
the vale of its investments, and linit andsor predisde a Fund's ability to
achiswe (s irvestment objectiee. Govemnmind requlation may change
frequengy and may have sigrificant adverse comsequences. Moreover,
geernment reculation may have unpredctable and unintended affects

Operational Risk An mvestment in 3 Fund, Bke any fund, can imolve
operaticnal risks arising from factors such 3 processing enmors, human emors,
inadequate or Talled inernal or extemal processes, failures in systems and
Lechnchogy, chandges in persannel and errors caused by thind-party service
providens. The ootumence of any of these failures, emors of breadhes could
resltin & loss of infoemnation, fequiatony Soruting, repu tasonal damage o
ather events, amy of which could have & matenal adverse eflect on a Rnd
While 3 Fund seeks to mirimize such events throwgh controls and oversight,
Uhesree muany' anilf e failusres that could cause bosses 1o the Fund

Cyber Security Risk AS the use of technology has becoeme more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become potendally more sscepsble
b operational and infmation security ricks resulting from breaches in cyber
security A breach in cybeer secunty refers 10 both interticn d and
umintenSonal Gyber events thal may, among olher things, caase a lund b
lose proprietary infoemation, suffer data comuption andfor destruction or lose
operatond capadty, result in the unauthonzed refedcs o other misuse of
confidenti d information, or ctherwise disnupt noemal business operations
Cyber seurity Tailures or breaches may result in fnanoa bosses to a Fund and
it Unitholders. These Sailures or breaches may also result in disruptions to
business operations, potentatly resulting in financal losses; intederence with
4 Fund's abilieg bo cabaslate it net el value, prooess Unitholde
Lransactons oF othensese ransact busness with Umthobders; impediments o
trading: vickations of applicable prvacy and atfer lavws, regqulatony fines
penaltes; reputational damage; rermbursement of ofier compesation cost,;
additional compliance and ober seqeity i management cosls and other
adverse consequences. In addition, substantial costs may be incumed in order
b prevent any cyber incodents in the Suture

B.MASTER HETTING ARRAHGEMENTS

Ene Fureds may be subject tovarious netting arrangements (" Master
Agreements”) with sslect copnterparties. Matter Agreerments gowem e
teamns, of certain transactions, and ae intended to reduce the coenterparty risk
associated with relevant ransactions by spedfying gedit protecton
rechanisms and peoviding standandization thatis miended o imgrove legal
certainty Each type of Master Agreement govems Certain types of
transacmons. Dffenent rypes of iransactons may be waded out of different

legal entities o affiliates of 3 parficular organization, resuling in ifee need for
mreluple agreements with 3 single counterparty. As the Masier Agreements
are specific bo unigue oper sticns of diferent 35521 types, they alicw 3 Fund o
doss out and net s total exposure to & counlerparty in ihe event of 2 defaudt
with respect 1oall the Bransachons governed wnder 4 singe Madter
Agréeement with a counterparty. For finandal reporting pumpodes the
Stanements of Assets and Liakilities ganesally present dervative atsets and
liakslities on 4 gross basis, wiach reflects the full rides and expodures price to
netting

Master Agreements can 350 help limit oounterparty risk by spediying

ooll ateral posting arrangements at pre-amanged exposure fevels. Under most
Master Agreements, coilateral is routinely ransfemed if the wtal net exposure
b certain fransactions (net of exdsting oollateral already in place) govemed
under the relevant Master Agreement with a counterparty in 3 given sccount
exceeds  spedfied heshold, which typically ranges from zem 1o §250.000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agresment United
Stanes Treasury Bt and WS, dollar cash are generally the prefemed forms of
ool ateral, Although other Securities iy be wied depasnding on the s
cutned in the applicable Master Agreement. Securities and cash pledged as
coll tral are reflectied 45 295t on the Statements of Astets snd Labikbes o5
either a component of Investmentd at value (secunties) or Deposits with
cownterparty. Cash collateral received is not fypicaly heldin a segegated
acoount and s sudh is reflected a5 a labiling on the Statements of Assets and
Liabilities a5 Deposits from counterparty. The market value of any secunties
received s collatera is not reflected s a component of HAY. The fund's
crvef 8l exposure o COUNGErparey risk Can -.11&'"]'7 mbﬁ-‘.i‘lﬂ‘:’i:‘j within a short
period, as it is affected by each ransadion subject to the relevant Master
Agpeerent

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurdnase Agresments
(indvidually ard collectively ™ Master Repa Agreements ™) govem repurdiase,
feveiie repanchase, and sale-buybadk wardactions bébwesn e Funds and
seledt counterpartes. Master Repo Agresments manian provucas for,
Armon] ofher thifs, initiation, income payments, ewents of defalt, snd
mantenance of collateral. The market value of transachons under the Masher
Repa Agreement, collaneral pladaed of received, and the net exposue by
counterparty a5 of period end are dsdosed in the Motes o Schedule of
Investments

Master Secutities Forward Trarsacion Agresments (T Master Forward
Agreements”) govem rtain forward setiling ransactions, such as TBA
e ties, gelayed-deliveny or sale-buybad: ransactions by and

betwreen the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forward
Agresments mainain provisons for, among oter thing, initiation and
conrmation, payment and transher, events of defsult, temmination, and
maintenance of gollateral. The market value of fonw ard settling transactions,
ool ateral pledged of received, and the net exposure by counterparty & of
periced end ané disdodied in the Nobes o Schedule of invesments

Curshorner ACoount Agreements. 3nd redated sddends govemn desed
desivatives iransactions such as fulures, options on fufures, and desred OTC
detivatives Such transacions eequire posting of iniial mangin a5 determined
Loy mach redewant deasnng agency whidh i seghegated in an sooount at a
futures commisson menchant {"FCM™) registered with the Commaodity
Fusres Trading Cormmisson (CCFTCT) [m e Linited SEanes, counterpaty fisk
may be reduced a5 creditors of an FCM cannot have 3 daim fo Fund assetsin
the segregated acoount, Portability of experure in the event of an FCM
defalt scenario further reduces risk to the Funds. Variation mangn, of
changes in marked value, are generdly exchanged dasly, but may not be
neted bepween futures and deared OTC derivatives unless the paries have
dreed 10 4 Separitl STRGEMENT IR resped of fund margineng. The maket
value or acoumelated unredized appred ation (deprediation), initial margin

droan | Rapart | My 30, 2020 W
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Notes to Financial Statements

9. FEES AND EXPEHSES

Each Fund is subgect o the boll owing Tees payable af the followmng anmu al rates (aned a0 a peroentage of the swerage daily net sgsers of eadh Fund, or Class, if
applicable, taoen separatel)

Fees

Fund Managemem Adizary fudministrative Agency Distribion
PIRSCO Bermuda Fereign Low Duration Furd 02i6% - - - -
PIMECD Bermuda ULS. Laws Duration Fumd 0236% - - - -
PIMCO Eurs Total Return Fund - 045%™ 03E%= 002% 3%
PIMCO Real Retwrn Furd B 04%" 0IEN™ 0n2% ik )
PIRICT) Shert-Term Sirategy

= AUD D As%M - - 010%™ ETR

= Ciuso = = = = =

= AP - - - - -

= I LED) = = = = =

. P 045 %" - - 010%™ ik

= 20 045 %M - - 010%™ 057 '™

. T ALY oy T o P! iyt B e vy o ot iy B! o e e el el Vi o e (1% o e ey 2 et O S5 el 5 S i e ety 0% o s spilen el et (U K ol o
iy Sy oo avvany el 2% v on o' e Vend's o oty i e DY ) il

. T AU o T e ol st 5 e i ey e ' v i i e it e i P s %6 por it sl i 2 e £ 57 e e v et st 8 5% o e gl i 8 ! O 0
wllon o S Fond'r oot gy and i pwr e ey oo o o i Py s oy o ey & 08 T sl

. T L] fary Tl Retpe Pl o byt ¢ it o 24 v el Pl et e i vy Pt el 310 e i e 0 vt Mt LU S sl (i v et ity {1 (5P e o b v e o (OO0 57
wallpn oy Fond'r et averty and § X% poe avwwe gy i o o e P v vt ey o ey 9 OR 1 el

= Ther SR ! it Fard’ i pabec? £ it iy S L ey o 8 508 apei® bl o by i i Vilirae ) 5% e o oo o S i ES0 enallind o Sk Py ot gty 1 M poe et il o Pl o ST sl ol Faned
it gy g 5% qpptew o o' S Vs et oty 0 e 50 il

® T RBL T Rl Pt s’ o i e it S D v il 3 St et v i o P i Wl 0% i it il 0 il iyt L7 il b Fandl v it it & JE e g il i 0 il 5.5 sl o
Py i sty ot P o arvcrm gy i o 1 sy Rl oo e 0 s ¥ ATEEY il

L} Tl FOUE Y Pl Etrst Fated v 13 s Euttabaition Vo 08 v i it Libgp it o it P i et 0%, o i il 50 by v S50 it s v Finedf s ot it 3 S e st e il 0 Sl il S0 sl ! ol
oty 2o vy 1. 2T e v dpplens o o pT o Py A By 8 e 21 31 e

a T ey @ sa b o gt oy Ay vames husnd e v FBE (Tl Ui Ve e sy ') i o s il oo S o iy vl oo mansk Y vite vesand ey race &) Bl £, Pl sk S i B £ 39% 21 Dl ot oy i s
ekl ey rar i derienn T P, rhan o o el e .2° 0 o Ol i v JF it vl iy Sk i et (5 3% 1 0N, ohowt nhe B el B . 0% o S i vt ¥ ke | iy e o it [0 vl o e el B
8 iy e e O i s ey R & % i i Shie She g il £ P i e ey Y sk iy i o 8 Sty e il e Bl el AT 38 il 18 A e R

u The e o A T 00 20 ey e ShGE ey ol e e RS O e Ptk iy o T o e ol v e Pt Sy o TRR pewi maed Y ob adand pe ey o i e 1 P, ot g o il B 11 YT o e e ey o T
el peidey o e 60 P, i o (o ol o 7 PG ol B e O 1 v sy S i T ) ST, o o o sl B T 0% (T et e dind ey A iparit TP M, i rle o el B
o B Ll ety o SR e Ay R T i g s pig N wall b O 1 o (e i v F ke ey s e ok Uiy of o vl S WSty sl i 6 il (¢ SR e g

L] T Cley o s 1 o dradam dur TR oy it oot it VT (Pl Ul Ko b "y vl i o e plrd o0 R it 'y il e v i Y 2 i ey o 0 el 51 (% et ke o i B 0 27 01 ey o gty oV by
el geiley sty o et 1 P50 G plhvet v i ol i 1 0 o i o it o o il gy vty o erainis . F%- ) (% it S gt il ey 0 50 ol st ity of el v gy v b Bttt | 5 0 S S B il e
& A% o Sy wr oy S vhe aand podey vaw & 25 o pmarer phon e fne wili i 8 54 o Sl e oy e iy v i e Cliny o nur el ke Sanapee uedl s pliT 20 g aiher 1R (R T ey qrmnip R

B Jor il o calecs i o mamagrenpi ay e varars bl o e Bt o Jap oo (oot (ol e Prpiod tsbe ol e} o i thed Ve it Bavienr o 11 b v ity Wt v ek e w ok 1%, B o e il b
& 1% of Doy o acor  she scend soly cee o bevaser 8550 1%, Son the b wed e 209% o e vor sty 't raend poloy v o bovusen £ 951 5%, rime vl o well bo 8 0% ol v ax sy iy s padcy v o deramen
T M7 R v it o il b 1 VG ' ey iy vy o i vl padcy e @ 2 0% o e Do vt e ol e 7 4 0T Ul o iy F o gy e el Ul mer vl i e il palien @ pquiaier ¢ DR T s
s

n Tl & GaghT 10 B0 AN B0 SR i A T P B o Lisaaed i i Ul s Exgsresd irde sy oy 7 0 b ol 50 L D i T vt MR ol v pdcy 1 ¢ B % T i e il B
£ o ey ar s f B sxend paly oy ¢ beveeee S PR S sy S el b O ORTN of (ley cur et e e ol v o b £ P51 % e v ey wll e 35 0 Uy o ity i e iy rie 8 letamen
LR, i e foe e O 0 Ol s asery o ol e peley v s B 0% o grosiee. o b die il e O 0% o Clra ver apae. W rie pelcy e e s S i v sl b Bl wal' sl am gt e TG i vy

Lt

S MOl s o bttty TR e sl e Vi St 1 Mgt Ghpeuened Syl Cal Bt Expoctd b ek e T i phe vl 1 et et ey )50 v sl i v ey iy ok 1% s s ol
o % o Sl e ey o T | Y R e TR0 0N, bvet b e e e 0 T e 1 sl a0 R F om0 L R ok i et e LT o LT e i oV iied peiy 0 i eaies | P
0% pln e o el et 6 f e e Y e ey 2 e et I Bl B 0 ST i b ety e ey B i R i e vl e M el AT i S AT 0 ST e
L
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i anan ey e F baremen (0% 3% how v e el B 0.5 % Ul e sy o il e syt o frammen P 1 N, e e b il e {17 Yl e ey o e v poley e eramem | et % vhow e fow wil By
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. Fie (o sabcr o0 g i o e vamey haend i rie Fdal Fands Targer Rl (1w psicy ST o s i’ 00 e sy iy S vy mach 7o coand by vt o v i1 % e e e ol o % oY i o vy
by e iy vy o e i R P e e e ol e 0% i ot ity ot s’ iy e i Bt 1 PN 1%y e ik e e 1 50% 0 e ot e f il o’ i vt ot | (ied % i e e el e
& S ey ot oy ot s oy vaiw 1 5% o e shoe e S il 0 S o ey o ety e oy e S e ey o oo el 6 Slarap wal yelr a0 aoparale e i © e rir

The rrunagement, advivery and admindstrative fees, if apgplicable, are pusd monihly in amears to PIMCO for providing of amanging for the provisson of advisony
admminishrative and third-party seraces induwding aud, arstodal, rustes, porttolio acoountng, rouling legal, transher agent and printing senaces. The agency and
distribution fees, if apgiicable. are paid monthly in amears to reimburse finandal intermedianies that provide senices and distibuBon relating 1o the units of the
applicable Fund {or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the PIMCO Bermisda Foreign Low Duration Fund and FIMCO Bermuda U % Losw Duraion Fund, FMCO
oul of its management fee, wall bear the costs aswaated with advisory and administrative senvices, 0.1% of whidh is designated 1o cover administrative expenses In
ewchange for dis fee, PIMCO will bear the costs of certain third-party services required by the Funds, including audit, custodial, trustes, portfiolo accounting, legal
transfer agent and printing services. FIMCO, and not Unitholders, woukd benefit from any peice derease in the oost of such third-parey sendces, induding \.-._rr-g;-ﬁ
regylting from an ingease innet xsels. In addifion, with respect to Funds that are subject to an administrative fee, FIMCO generally mates 3 profit on such a foe

As noted in the table above, certan Funds and Classes of Funds ane not idject bo man agemenl, adisony, sdranbratve, agency o dsmbiuton fees FIMCO lapan
Ltd, PIMCO™s affifiate im Japan, is paed a fee from the Japaness wvestment Trusts or osher imeesment vehicles that investin such Funds or Classes and 2 poriion of
susch fiee is then 2located to PIMCO (o compensate it for it seniges

The Funds (or Classes thereof, a5 applicablel may bear otteer expenses related to their operation that are not covered by the management, .’ld.-'i".:_\!':,'_ administrative,
Agency of dimbution fees, indudng bt nat limited 1o i taxes and girremmental tees, (i) brokerage fees and comimassions and other pOFTCIG Tansaction expenses;
(jii}) ooses of boarowang mioniey, induding interésl expende; (v exraordnany @penses, indudng omts of inigation and indemnification expenses; and () ary Expinsss
allocated or allocabe v a spedfic Class of Wnits, 35 applicabde. PIMICO has paid the T tional expenses Fsocted with PIMCO Short-Tenm 51 Regy’s mnitial set-
up

PEAACO has paed the onganizationdl expenses ssodated wath he deabon of the Trust. M further Furds are landhed, such costs directly atributable to the relevant
Furd may be borme by the reéevant und
10. RELATED PARTY TRARSACTIONS

The imvestrnent Adviser i a related party 10 the Fends and 15 & magon Ty-owred subsideary of Allianz Assel Menagement AG. Feet paid 1o the related party, it any, e
discloted in Mobe 3, and acowed related panty fee amounts, if any, are disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Diabilities

Certain Funds ari: piefinid thed 1o purchase o el seoenties from of (o cenain related affliated fands under speated condse ed in procedurss adopted by the
Imrestiment Adveser. The procedures have been dessgned 10 ensure that amy purchase of <3e of seamities by 3 fund from or nflu:-lher fend that is or couk
congdered an affifane by virtwe of having a cormmaon adviser {or affiliated investment advisers), is effected 2t the cument market price. During the period ended May
31, 2021, the Fundis) below engaged in punchases and sales of seaurities among afiilisted fends Gmounts in housands)

fund Purcheses Sl
PiMCDO Barmuds Foresga Low Derabon Fund 3 o i 128
FIMCO Berrruds 115 Loww Ducataon Fuad xn 1e
FIMCO Erver gursg Mack sz Boed! Foed (M) 13,432 1mE
FIMCO Ewos Teesl ieasm Fund a3 ME
PAMECD sl Regem Fund 1.0 &1
FIMCD Short-Tam Strataqy 22194 14,185

11. GUARANTEES ARD INDEMRIACATIONS

Under the Trust's organizafional doosments, certain parties (ndwdng the Tnostee and FIMOO) are indemnified against cerain liabilities that may anse out of
peerfourmamoe of their duties b e Fumds. Addticnally, in the normal oourse of business, the Rands enter inlo contrecs that contain avanery of indernification dauses
The Funds” rmasimium exposune under these arran ETEN S is unknowm a5 this would invalve future dams that mary b medde aganst the Funds that have not yet
oooarred. Howewss, thi Fands hinee pot had pior dsirrd o [osses pursiant (o these conrads

12. URITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust miay rssie up 0 S00,000,000,000 units. The Rends may have 3 significant concentration of nick, as centain Unitholders own more than ten percent of the net
asets of each respeviive Fund Sudh concentration of Unitholders' interests oould have a matenal effect on the Funds in the event these Unitholders request to
withdraw substantial amounts of cagital at the same time, Subsariptions and redemptsons of units of the Funds are dencménated in the Funds® NAV aurrency and
convertisd 1o thi Funds' hundsonal qurrency at the 4pol rate on the rantscton date, Lnits of s Fund e isued wathout pae value. The Trustee, with he monsent of
the banager, may in the future create and offer an additional Fund or Class or Chasses of units

Brvan | Bapar, | by 30, 2050 o
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1anges in yrets of benefical interestwene 5 follows (units and amounts in hosand )
Your Encled Your Encled Yoar Ended Yuwr Erncled
My 31, 2001 ey 71, 200 Moy 71, 30 Ny 31, 2001
Urits Aaourt Uriw hmount Unim Anort Unit Amour
Rmcxirs for urie sokd B 2 1SS W 1@ no& 13005 N N
=) N M H# L] ] 0] LI-T ] ¥ B1LS4T
Coxt of writs rackamed [ TEE [ (5050 mn 26,2500 N M4
IS0 L A L] L] R L IC] {10.35m [TEA14N
Mt [decrpere] nessking from
Fund uni? fraresction [} ] 55T (5] ¥ (3.881) (k1] 5 HETS) 5EM) 5 [Ioa
Yar Erded Toar Evcled Your Ended Tt Euded
My 31, 201 My 1, 31 My 31, 1A My 31, 23
Unm Bm ot Unm hmo Uniz Ampan lniw Amoum
Reaipe for uniw wokd [} g 5547 HA Mg 3E EIR LF 50 H i)
1 AL ) e NA ™ L T Wik T8 “Nik
) DK N L2 -] 1 KR L] N8 Mk
J ONR N [ 13 B [T Nk N Mk
I (ML Hi e el 1586 i Mk i L
TR N N i B4 A Hk e Mt
| (ZAR T} [ 37 1138 [T Ni& -; N4
Cart of it raceamad {17 10802 H& M (173 (1,822 B FLE2N
J [ERLY N Nk 2 (150 L] M L L 1C]
| 00Fd T N B (-1} [T Nk N N4
N T} M [71]] {1548 TR [Ty (73 NI
J Y H& Fetd [ ] |2.636] R A A M4
TR Yok N 0, 8 L] LT Nk N'& Mik
H& A [icx) 12 0rad) 1] Nk & M4
& SR 1 TTIE S Y [134) EUR (0,500 W &
Yiuar Ercad
ey 31, 21
Unix Amoumi
L R I <
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158 28m J10406
Cort ol wnile rucnmpd
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Yiar Erclad
My 31, 2001
Unm fa
(I} {111 ]
IFY Bl (30,350
e A} 11515200
Nt i rerlting from
Fund urit mareection e S I & |

“ & e bshn n ey e DTl BTeEE redEg T e T ot

13. REGULATORY ARD LITIGATION MATTERS

dedendants in Emy materal hogaton of afdranan proceedngs and are nol aware of ary matenal Bigaton of dasm pending o

HMDed, medsuned, prese

rernents of Fe re

321, the date that the F

sure in the Rund
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2022
62,730 8,696,260
16,063 2,226,814
46,667 6,469,446

2,316,431
20.15 2,793
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2022
984,456,267.25 1,364 7,517
1,250,000 850,000
150,000 250,000
850,000 150,000
90,932.70
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
2022 984,456,267.25
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2022
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. Ilvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

Joachim Fels

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang
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(Rene Martel)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Scott A. Mather

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1971
1940

BMA

BMA BMA

BMA

BMA

60

BMA
BMA
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2022 329
684,889,434,253

113 414,465,732,000
23 14,238,370,121
13 22,287,076,299
68 161,611,584,606
9 7,693,238,713
31 10,175,811,515
36 17,406,081,028
13 21,506,561,014
3 670,662,587
5 2,178,659,511
15 12,655,656,861
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2022 31
138.63
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(c) 721,198,092 99,979,691 670,905,056 93,007,568
2(d),3 29,741,057 4,123,003 30,870,470 4,279,573
2(e) 993,957,179 137,792,284 798,701,996 110,724,058
2(e) 317,540,465 44,020,635 314,822,326 43,643,819
47,497,769 6,584,616 45,702,592 6,335,750
2(e) 21,577,432 2,991,279 23,912,871 3,315,041
2().,7(c) 32,250,845 4,470,935 19,755,282 2,738,675
6 33,463,658 4,639,067 17,306,918 2,399,258
54,848,716 7,603,677 64,128,683 8,890,159

2,252,075,213 312,205,187  1,986,106,194 275,333,902

2021 12 31
230,285,768 2020 12 31
213,677,355 2(0),4 111,294,054 15,428,695 121,111,682 16,789,712

2(1),9 173,842,283 24,099,756 195,322,419 27,077,547
2(j).7(c) 1,140,825,289 158,152,610 855,055,452 118,536,337

2(h) 30,865,176 4,278,839 30,865,176 4,278,839
2(9).5 32,984,825 4,572,686 35,265,467 4,888,852
2(b) 36,988,617 5,127,732 14,710,139 2,039,267

8 61,620,430 8,542,440 51,541,356 7,145,178

1,588,420,674 220,202,758 1,303,871,691 180,755,733

3,840,495,887 532,407,945  3,289,977,885 456,089,634
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2021 2020
444,187,520 61,577,716 398,802,753 55,286,026
7(c) 301,432,498 41,787,587 216,289,372 29,984,196
81,689,779 11,324,654 122,043,872 16,918,942
2(i).9 31,437,762 4,358,217 33,157,779 4,596,663
6 95,602,945 13,253,436 37,379,146 5,181,871
2(r),7(c) 32,250,845 4,470,935 19,755,282 2,738,675
10,676,405 1,480,070 4,928,294 683,209
997,277,754 138,252,615 832,356,498 115,389,581
2(r),7(c) 1,140,825,289 158,152,610 855,055,452 118,536,337
2(i),9 182,746,288 25,334,118 204,137,201 28,299,540
7(c) 138,931,408 19,260,061 152,799,181 21,182,550
4,046,469 560,962 4,306,979 597,076
1,466,549,454 203,307,751  1,216,298,813 168,615,504
2,463,827,208 341,560,366  2,048,655,311 284,005,086
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841)  (103,214,782)  (14,308,665)
150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033  1,308,035,518 181,332,964
2021 12 31 74,205
2020 12 31 58,608 69,610,604 9,650,118 43,399,986 6,016,540
2021 12 31
102,231 2020 12 31 148,726 7(a) 32,693,374 4,532,282 37,843,422 5,246,234
2(0) (52,708,748)  (7,307,014)  (44,741,570)  (6,202,524)
1,376,668,679 190,847,579  1,241,322,574 172,084,548
3,840,495,887 532,407,945  3,289,977,885 456,089,634
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(e) 4,520,575,834 626,687,428 4,012,403,139 556,239,447
2(e) 1,166,893,208 161,766,405 1,095,151,513 151,820,854
2(e) 1,272,072,660 176,347,433 1,155,727,878 160,218,556
2(e) 350,424,117 48,579,295 360,487,808 49,974,425
2(e) 32,477,418 4,502,344 46,057,465 6,384,946
7,342,443,237  1,017,882,906 6,669,827,803 924,638,228
7 2,695,488,619 373,675,587 2,283,500,614 316,561,690
666,590,135 92,409,390 777,771,809 107,822,506
2(s) 633,462,121 87,816,854 605,822,180 83,985,129
233,154,167 32,322,162 235,901,474 32,703,021
4,9 179,499,423 24,884,005 168,804,503 23,401,368
2(n) 105,285,247 14,595,694 108,835,693 15,087,892
47,627,284 6,602,570 43,316,136 6,004,916
48,672,649 6,747,489 44,512,301 6,170,740
4,609,779,645 639,053,752 4,268,464,710 591,737,263
2,732,663,592 378,829,154 2,401,363,093 332,900,966
126,921,569 17,595,137 52,168,123 7,232,067
2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (768,742) (6,676,919) (925,621)
2(b) (1,327,780) (184,070) (1,321,069) (183,140)
2,852,712,104 395,471,479 2,445,533,228 339,024,271
8 107,478,838 14,899,791 103,991,820 14,416,386
2,745,233,266 380,571,688 2,341,541,408 324,607,885
2(0) (7,967,178) (1,104,490) 13,877,124 1,923,786
2,737,266,088 379,467,198 2,355,418,532 326,531,671
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PIMCO

2020 12 31
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2021 12 31

2021 2020 12 31
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850,000 (683,902,349) (94,809,383) 150,000 1,288,040,853 178,561,103 48,876 28,952,832 4,013,731
1,694,470,162 234,904,399 520,315,348 72,131,317 126,755,898 17,572,170
(1,133,305,426)  (157,110,131) (500, 320,683) (69,359, 456) (116,146,639)  (16,101,409)
12,785,179 1,772,409
6,737,652 934,041 3,837,895 532,047
850,000 (103,214,782) (14,308, 665) 150,000 1,308,035,518 181,332,964 58,608 43,399,986 6,016,540
1,942,092,906 269,232,340 614,678,821 85,212,925 188,461,539 26,126,423
(1,861,825,611)  (258,104,884) (589, 207,643) (81,681,856) (171,157,203)  (23,727,523)
8,451,432 1,171,622
8,062,808 1,117,747 8,906,282 1,234,678
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841) 150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033 74,205 69,610,604 9,650,118
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2019 12 31

PIMCO

2020 12 31

PIMCO

2021 12 31
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2021 2020 12 31

153,400 32,591,945 4,518,221 (58,618,694) (8,126,310) 607,064,587 84,157,364
2,341,541,408 324,607,885
(1,749,772,748) (242,570,996)
12,785,179 1,772,409
15,827,024 2,194,100 15,827,024 2,194,100

(10,575,547) (1,466,088)
13,877,124 1,923,786 13,877,124 1,923,786
148,726 37,843,422 5,246,234 (44,741,570) (6,202,524) 1,241,322,574 172,084,548
2,745,233,266 380,571,688
(2,622,190,457) (363,514,263)
8,451,432 1,171,622
11,819,042 1,638,474 11,819,042 1,638,474

(16,969,090) (2.,352,425)
(7.967,178) (1,104,490) (7.967,178) (1,104,490)
102,231 32,693,374 4,532,282 (52,708,748) (7.307,014) 1,376,668,679 190,847,579
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2,745,233,266 380,571,688 2,341,541,408 324,607,885
11,600,078 1,608,119 15,508,853 2,149,992
65,880,266 9,132,981 65,464,604 9,075,358
5,545,277 768,742 6,676,919 925,621
1,327,780 184,070 1,321,069 183,140
1,665 231 12,114 1,679
29,028 4,024 (44,308) (6,142)
4,206,963 583,211 14,256,907 1,976,435
15,036,589 2,084,522 15,010,423 2,080,895
(13,788,912) (1,911,557) (11,695,316) (1,621,322)
(108,645,764) (15,061,562) (146,673,050) (20,333,285)
(5,545,277) (768,742) (6,762,761) (937,522)
(194,961,547) (27,027,519) (130,819,174) (18,135,462)
(18,406, 245) (2,551,658) (25,708,793) (3.564,010)
180,065, 741 24,962,514 103,679,079 14,373,031
63,479,303 8,800,136 10,538,563 1,460,961
2,751,058, 211 381,379,200 2,252,306,537 312,237,255
(144,367) (20,014)
6,500,203 901,123
(17,229,114) (2,388,472) (7,078,726) (981,324)
(4,902,545) (679,640) (13,730,247) (1,903,424)
(23,500, 150) (3,257,826) (18,000) (2,495)
(45,776,176) (6,345,951) (14,326,770) (1,986,120)
337,000,000 46,718,310 416,000,000 57,670,080
(337,000, 000) (46,718,310) (644,000,000) (89,277,720)
(2,622,190,457) (363,514,263)  (1,749,772,748)  (242,570,996)
8,451,432 1,171,622 4,984,931 691,061
(33,282,796) (4,613,994) (30,720,464) (4,258,778)
(2,647,021,821) (366,956,635) _ (2,003,508,281) _ (277,746,353)
(7,967,178) (1,104,490) 13,877,124 1,923,786
50,293,036 6,972,124 248,348,610 34,428,568
670,905,056 93,007,568 422,556,446 58,579,000
721,198,092 99,979,691 670,905,056 93,007,568
2,547,664 353,183 1,300,045 180,225
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2021 2020 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2021 12 31 74,205
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC 1934
FINRA
2021 2020 12 31

0.00319 0.00206
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA
PIMCO 2021
PEG
PIMCO
AREO0A
1ASB IFRS

IFRS
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2022 25

PIMCO

PIMCO

AAM LP

2021 2020 12 31 323.9 347.1

2021 2020 12 31 807 2.3
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FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO

PIMCO
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2021 2020

12

12
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30
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IFRS

PIMCO

2021 2020 12
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IFRS

IAS 19
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IFRS
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
2021 2020 12 31 29.7 30.9
2021 2020 12 31
NAV
2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
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2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2021 12 31

2021

PIMCO

2021

24.7

PIMCO

PIMCO
31

90
PIMCO

PIMCO
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2020 27.0 27.8
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080, 000) (637,931) (100, 000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080, 000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825
2020 7.2 8.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 23.6
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 2020 12
21.5 8.6
LIBOR 0.2
AAM LP PIMCO 2021 2020
AAM LP
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020 102 373
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2021 12 31 10
2020 822.6
2021 2020 55.9
52.4
PIMCO
2021 2020
7.3 7.8
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2021
PEG 400.4 2020 147.3
PEG 41.6 2020 55.1
PEG 2021 PEG 85.8
2020 41.3
2021 12 31 26.2 2020

13.5 PEG 74.1 2020 28.8 PEG

AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20

2021 12 31 0.264
LIBOR LIBOR

AAM LP PIMCO
2021 2020 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2021 2020 12 31 102,231 148,726
74,205 2021 12 31
2021 2020
2020
17,806
3.84
25.1

11.1
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0.6
2021
2020
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5,478) (5,478) 15,218
2021 12 31 102,231 102,231 15,330
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11,804 17,806
1.99
20,924 2021
17,806 2020 2021 41,017
2021 31 2021 28
15,597
2021 12 31 73,774 431
AAM LLC
2020 27,775 2020 30
9,732
2021 2020
11.6 15.5

2021 12 31 2025 12 31
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12.7
AAM LP
401
100
2021 2020 59.1
55.1
AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2021 2020 12 31
12 874.8
12 31
2021 2020
81,038 29,332
3,988,116 3,432,731
115,094,758 121,394,722
119,163,912 124,856,785
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)

107,478,838 103,991,820
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40.9
2021 12 31
12 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2020 12 31

12 31
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32.8 23.2
2021
54.8 44.8 2021
285 247

12 31

2021 2020

31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813

(19,310,763)

214,184,050

276/352



10

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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2021 12 31

AAM LP
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2021 12 31 2021 12
31

Pl LLC

11

PIMCO

2020 CovID 19

covib 19

12
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2021 2020
3.3 731
12 31
2021 2020
2,408,685,532 582,606,016
567,143 222,021
13
2022 25
38,253 PIMCO
2022 31
16,727
2022 LIBOR

SOFR

2022
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Note 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 721,198,092 670,905,056
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 29,741,057 30,870,470
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 993,957,179 798,701,996
Private accounts 2(e) 317,540,465 314,822,326
Prepaid expenses 47,497,769 45,702,592
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 21,577,432 23,912,871
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Receivables from affiliates 6 33,463,658 17,306,918
Other current assets 54,848,716 64,128,683
Total current assets 2,252,075,213 1,986,106,194
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $230,285,768
and $213,677,355 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 2(f), 4 111,294,054 121,111,682
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 173,842,283 195,322,419
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 32,984,825 35,265,467
Investments in associates 2(b) 36,988,617 14,710,139
Other noncurrent assets 8 61,620,430 51,541,356
Total noncurrent assets 1,588,420,674 1,303,871,691
Total assets $ 3,840,495,887 3,289,977,885
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 444,187,520 398,802,753
Accrued compensation 7(c) 301,432,498 216,289,372
Commissions payable 81,689,779 122,043,872
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,437,762 33,157,779
Payables to affiliates 6 95,602,945 37,379,146
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Other current liabilities 10,676,405 4,928,294
Total current liabilities 997,277,754 832,356,498
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 182,746,288 204,137,201
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 138,931,408 152,799,181
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,046,469 4,306,979
Total noncurrent ligbilities 1,466,549,454 1,216,298,813
Total liabilities 2,463,827,208 2,048,655,311
Capitdl:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (6,433,247) (103,214,782)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,333,506,696 1,308,035,518
Class M members (74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020) 69,610,604 43,399,986
Class M unit option holders (102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020) 7(a) 32,693,374 37,843,422
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(0) (52,708,748) (44,741,570)
Tota capital 1,376,668,679 1,241,322,574
Total liabilities and capital $ 3840495887 3,280977,885

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues: Note 2021 2020
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 4520575834 4,012,403,139
Private accounts 2(e) 1,166,893,208 1,095,151,513
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,272,072,660 1,155,727,878
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 350,424,117 360,487,808
Other 2(e) 32,477,418 46,057,465
Total revenues 7,342,443,237 6,669,827,803
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,695,488,619 2,283,500,614
Commissions 666,590,135 777,771,809
General and administrative 2(s) 633,462,121 605,822,180
Professional fees 233,154,167 235,901,474
Occupancy and equipment 4,9 179,499,423 168,804,503
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 105,285,247 108,835,693
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 47,627,284 43,316,136
Other 48,672,649 44,512,301
Total expenses 4,609,779,645 4,268,464,710
Operating income 2,732,663,592 2,401,363,093
Other income, net 126,921,569 52,168,123
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (6,676,919)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,327,780) (1,321,069)
Net income before income taxes 2,852,712,104 2,445,533,228
Income tax expense 8 107,478,838 103,991,820
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(0) (7,967,178) 13,877,124

Comprehensive income $ 2,737,266,088 2,355,418,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Totd
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694)$ 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Balances at December 31, 2020 850,000 (103,214,782) 150,000 1,308,035,518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 37,843,422 (44,741,570) 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Baances at December 31, 2021 850,000 $ (6,433,247) 150,000 $ 1,333,506,696 74,205 ¢ 69,610,604 102,231 g 32,693,374 ¢ (52,708,748)$ 1,376,668,679

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 11,600,078 15,508,853
Depreciation and amortization 65,880,266 65,464,604
Finance costs 5,545,277 6,676,919
Equity inloss of associates 1,327,780 1,321,069
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,665 12,114
Unrealized and realized net loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 29,028 (44,308)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 4,206,963 14,256,907
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,036,589 15,010,423
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (13,788,912) (11,695,316)
Income taxes paid (108,645,764) (146,673,050)
Interest paid (5,545,277) (6,762,761)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (194,961,547) (130,819,174)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (18,406,245) (25,708,793)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 180,065,741 103,679,079
Other liabilities and payablesto affiliates 63,479,303 10,538,563
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,751,058,211 2,252,306,537
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (144,367) -
Cash acquired through acquisition - 6,500,203
Purchases of property and equipment (17,229,114) (7,078,726)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,902,545) (13,730,247)
Purchases of investments in associates (23,500,150) (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,776,176) (14,326,770)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 337,000,000 416,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (337,000,000) (644,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,622,190,457) (1,749,772,748)
Contributions received 8,451,432 4,984,931
Principal elements of lease payments (33,282,796) (30,720,464)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,647,021,821) (2,003,508,281)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,967,178) 13,877,124
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 50,293,036 248,348,610
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 670,905,056 422,556,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 2,547,664 1,300,045

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2021, 74,205
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00319% interest and 0.00206% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.

PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. (PIMCO Luxembourg) administers and manages investment
funds under the laws of Luxembourg. On July 1, 2021, PIMCO purchased Allianz Investment Real Estate
Solutions S.a r.l, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO Europe GmbH (PEG), which was
immediately merged into PIMCO Luxembourg as the surviving entity.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Services LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of America LLC (AREOA) is a captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)

286/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 25, 2022.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and

key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $323.9 million and $347.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $807 thousand
and $2.3 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management considers investments in money
market accounts to be cash equivaents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining
cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each
institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar
federal foreign programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office egquipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2021 or 2020.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes
The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share

of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(I) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promoational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandlation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

(Continued)

291/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@ Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(r) Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(s General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recogni zes these costs on a gross basis.

(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $29.7 million and
$30.9 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2021 or
2020.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.0 million and $27.8 million during 2021
and 2020, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
Software Relationships  Technology Name Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) - (7,183187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 13,624,825 19,360,000 - - 32,984,825

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.2 million and $8.7 million during 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $23.6 million and $24.7 million
during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $21.5 million and $8.6 million as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2021
and 2020, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term
loans. During 2021 and 2020, PIMCO incurred $102 thousand and $373 thousand, respectively, in interest
expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1.0 billion
(2020: $822.6 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $55.9 million and $52.4 million during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.3 million and $7.8 million during
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2021, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $400.4 million (2020: $147.3 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $41.6 million (2020: $55.1 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2021, costs allocated to PEG
were $85.8 million (2020: $41.3 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a $26.2 million (2020: $13.5 million) receivable from PEG and a
$74.1 million (2020: $28.8 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.264% as of December 31, 2021) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2021 and 2020.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)

296/352



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, 102,231 and 148,726 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 74,205 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2021.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2021. The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of the M unit options granted during 2020:

2020
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1%
Expected dividends 11.1%
Risk free rate of return 0.6%

A summary of the activity in 2021 and 2020 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,146
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 have an exercise price between $11,804 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.99 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $20,924 for 2021 and $17,806
for 2020. M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 15,597 M Units. As of December 31, 2021, 73,774 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2021 and 2020 was $11.6 million and $15.5 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2021, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $12.7 million.
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(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2021 and 2020 was $59.1 million and $55.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2021 and 2020 was $1.2 hillion and $874.8 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-consolidated
deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition.

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
Current:

Federal $ 81,038 29,332
State 3,988,116 3,432,731
Foreign 115,094,758 121,394,722
Tota current 119,163,912 124,856,785

Deferred:
Foreign (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total deferred (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total provision $ 107,478,838 103,991,820
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, income taxes payable amounted to $32.8 million and $23.2 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred tax assets amounted to
$54.8 million and $44.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, amounted
to $285 thousand and $247 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $40.9 million and

$39.8 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:

Year ending December 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813
(19,310,763)

$ 214,184,050
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020:

Year ending December 31.

2021 $ 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
Thereafter 96,750,859
Total operating lease payments 261,441,267
Lessimputed interest (24,146,287)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 237,294,980

(10) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.
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The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financia strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2021.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniquesto limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.
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Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2021, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2021 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and globa markets. Given the inherent
uncertainties, it is not practical to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle.

The Company earned $3.3 million and $731 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment
advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive

removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:
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December 31
2021 2020
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,408,685,532 $ 582,606,016
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 567,143 222,021

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 25, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 38,253 vested subsequent to the date of the consolidated statements of financial
condition. On March 31, 2022, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided
inthe M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 16,727 M units.

On February 1, 2022, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) has replaced LIBOR for AAM LP's
revolving credit facility with Allianz SE (as discussed in note 6).

In late February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the
two countries could result in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse effect on the region and
global supply chains. In addition, current and future sanctions imposed on Russia by the global community could
have a significant adverse impact on the Russian and global economy. The extent, duration, or repercussions of
such military actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant market disruption. As a result of
such events, the Company has experienced negative portfolio returns on managed assets, but the events have not
resulted in a material adverse impact to the Company. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine the overall impact to the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of any future impact.
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30

1,117,718,214 154,949,276
22,187,248 3,075,818
583,419,002 80,879,376
296,058,867 41,042,641
48,191,354 6,680,767
16,822,230 2,332,066
24,264,674 3,363,812
32,472,086 4,501,605
86,134,876 11,940,878
2,227,268,551 308,766,239
102,056,187 14,148,049
158,562,406 21,981,506
1,006,816,397 139,574,957
30,865,176 4,278,839
29,986,888 4,157,082
32,907,785 4,562,006
58,124,696 8,057,827
1,419,319,535 196,760,267
3,646,588,086 505,526,506
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419,088,130 58,098,187
578,771,182 80,235,049

64,870,656 8,993,019

33,834,936 4,690,537

81,830,157 11,344,115

24,264,674 3,363,812

4,490,265 622,485

1,207,150, 000 167,347,205

1,006,816,397 139,574,957

164,933,641 22,864,751

115,010,504 15,943,906

3,615,936 501,277

1,290,376,478 178,884,891

2,497,526,478 346,232,096

850,000 (133,718,082) (18,537,338)
150,000 1,281,455,256 177,648,142
90,933 71,204,614 9,871,096
60,434 21,195,975 2,938,398
(91,076, 155) (12,625,887)

1,149,061,608 159,294,411

3,646,588,086 505,526,506
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2022 30

1,918,013,768 265,894,249
538,043,676 74,588,995
607,567,041 84,227,019
150,045,251 20,800,773

20,791,015 2,882,258

3,234,460,751 448,393,294
958,156,841 132,829,283
239,330,399 33,178,373
321,577,100 44,580,233
117,015,533 16,221,863

90,846,357 12,594,030
55,319,442 7,668,934
17,426,195 2,415,793
21,870,339 3,031,885
1,821,542,206 252,520,396
1,412,918,545 195,872,898

(175,838,837) (24,376,538)

(2,646,132) (366,833)
(4,080,832) (565,726)
1,230,352,744 170,563,801
49,153,693 6,814,176
1,181,199,051 163,749,624

(38,367,407) (5,318,874)

1,142,831,644 158,430,751
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2022 30
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841) 150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033 74,205 69,610,604 9,650,118
820,500,299 113,745,956 263,510,464 36,530,456 97,188,288 13,473,212
(954,645,277) (132,342,475) (315,561,904) (43,746,347) (105,822,415)  (14,670,161)
2,254,593 312,554
4,605,550 638,467 10,228,137 1,417,927
850,000 (133,718,082) (18,537,338) 150,000 1,281,455,256 177,648,142 90,933 71,204,614 9,871,096
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2022 30

102,231 32,603,374 4,532,282 (52,708,748) (7,307,014) 1,376,668,679 190,847,579
1,181,199,051 163,749,624
(1,376,029,596) (190, 758,983)
2,254,593 312,554
3,336,288 462,510 3,336,288 462,510

(14,833,687) (2,056,394)
(38,367,407) (5.318,874) (38,367,407) (5.318,874)
60,434 21,195,975 2,938,398 (91,076,155) (12,625,887) 1,149,061,608 159,294,411
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2022 30

1,181,199,051

163,749,624

3,290,743 456,196
35,746,934 4,955,597
2,646,132 366,833
4,080,832 565,726
1,007,455 139,663
13,890, 086 1,925,583
(7,530,911) (1,044,010)
(73,464,851) (10,184,432)
(2,646,132) (366,833)

0
436,774,977 60,550,115
(27,259,715) (3,779,014)
284,964,118 39,504,576
(20,389,461) (2,826,591)

1,832,309,258

254,013,032

(5,216,311) (723,137)
(636,025) (88,172)
(5,852,336) (811,309)
579,000,000 80,266,770

(579,000,000)

(1,376,029,596)
2,254,593

(17,794,390)

(80,266,770)
(190, 758,983)
312,554
(2,466,836)

(1,391,569,393)

(192,913, 265)

(38,367,407) (5,318,874)
396,520,122 54,969,585
721,198,092 99,979,691

1,117,718,214

154,949,276
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1940 15
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2022
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO
2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 PIMCO
PIMCO 2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 11 18 PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
2021 18 PIMCO
2021 12

PIMCO
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2022 984,456,267.25 1,364 7,517
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2022 25 3,466

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2022 10 4,000 1,441 7,520

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2022 1,209 16 7,604

1989
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2022
119
2022 483 2,313

2022 30 6,700
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Maples
Trustee Services Bermuda Limited
BMA
BMA

BMA

2001

BMA

BMA

BMA

60
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il, PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the
“Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31,
2022 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, including the related notes, and the financial highlights for the year
then ended (collectively referred to as the "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds as of May 31, 2022, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and
for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of the financial
highlights for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America

Basisfor Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 17, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and
the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights
are hereafter collectively referred to as“financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (2)
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2021

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2021

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Rea Return Fund each of their cash
flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 12, 2021
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